
  
MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

City Council Chambers 
448 East 1st Street, Room 190 

City of Salida, Colorado 
Tuesday, April 18, 2017 6:00 p.m.  

 
The City Council may take action on any of the following agenda items as presented or modified prior to or during the 

meeting, and items necessary or convenient to effectuate the agenda items. 

I. REGULAR MEETING CALLED TO ORDER –  

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Led by Mayor Jim LiVecchi 

III. ROLL CALL 

IV. PRESENTATION 

Salida Scout Hut Presentation – Salida Rotary Club 

V. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION – 3 minute time limit. Citizen participation is for items not on the agenda and for 
agenda items that are not scheduled public hearings.  

VI. SCHEDULED ITEMS  

1. Consent Agenda (Christian Samora)   
a) Approval of Agenda  
b) Approval of Minutes: April 4, 2017 
c) Salida Rotary - Bluegrass on the Arkansas 
d) Articipate - Salida SunFest 

 
2. Whittington Contract Cancellation ( Theresa Casey) 

 
3. Short-Term Rental Housing Regulations, 2nd Reading & Public Hearing (Beverly Kaiser)  

Ordinance 2017-07 an ordinance of the City Council of the City of Salida, Colorado, creating a new section, 
amended definitions, and amendments to Table 16-D in the Land Use and Development Code of the Salida 
Municipal Code in order to establish operational regulations for Short-Term Rental Businesses 
 

4. Short-Term Business Licensing Amendment, 1st Reading (Beverly Kaiser)  
Ordinance 2017-06 an ordinance of the City Council of the City of Salida, Colorado, to repeal and replace 
Article VI, Chapter 6 of the Salida Municipal Code pertaining to Short-Term Business Licensing 
 

5. Repeal of Panhandling Regulations, 2nd Reading & Public Hearing (Guy Patterson)  
Ordinance 2017-08 an ordinance of the City Council of the City of Salida, Colorado, repealing Section 10-5-
40(a)(2) of the Salida Municipal Code and Creating Section 10-5-150, establishing regulations with regard to 
aggressive panhandling within corporate City Limits  

 
6. Approval of Ground Lease at Harriett Alexander Field, 2nd Reading & Public Hearing (Zech Papp) 

Ordinance 2017-09 Approving a Ground Lease with O.A. Pesnell 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 1 of 199



7. Centennial Park Tennis & Pickleball Courts Grant Agreement  (Theresa Casey) 
Resolution 2017-23 authorizing the City Administrator to enter into an agreement on behalf of the City and 
with Great Outdoors Colorado, accepting the terms of a grant for the Centennial Park Tennis/Pickleball 
Court Project 
 

8. Additional Budget Appropriation for Community Funding (Guy Patterson) 
Resolution 2017-22 appropriating additional sums of money in the General Fund for the 2017 Budget 
 

9. Additional Budget Appropriation for Salida Airport (Guy Patterson) 
Resolution 2017-24 appropriating additional sums of money in the General Fund for the 2017 Budget 
 

10. Annexation of Snyder Property, 1st Reading (Beverly Kaiser) 
Ordinance 2017-10 annexing to the City of Salida a certain tract of land in unincorporated Chaffee County 
known as the Snyder Annexation  
 

11. Annexation Agreement for Snyder Annexation, 1st Reading (Beverly Kaiser) 
Ordinance 2017-11 approving the Snyder Annexation Agreement  
 

12. Zoning of Snyder Annexation, 1st Reading (Beverly Kaiser) 
Ordinance 2017-12 zoning a part of certain real property known as the Snyder Annexation under the 
Residential Mixed Use Zone District with inclusion in the Highway 50 corridor overlay 
 

13. Annexation of Heart of the Rockies Medical Center, 1st Reading (Beverly Kaiser) 
Ordinance 2017-13 annexing to the City of Salida a certain tract of land in unincorporated Chaffee County 
known as the HRRMC Annexation 
 

14. Annexation Agreement for Heart of the Rockies Medical Center, 1st Reading (Beverly Kaiser) 
Ordinance 2017-14 approving an annexation agreement with Heart of the Rockies Regional Medical Center, 
for the annexation of certain real property into the City 
 

15. Zoning of Heart of the Rockies Medical Center, 1st Reading (Beverly Kaiser) 
Ordinance 2017-15 zoning certain real property known as the Heart of the Rockies Medical Center 
(HRRMC) Lot 1-A Annexation as Commercial C-1 zone district  
 

16. Administrator/Deputy City Clerk                                              

• City Administrator Report –Guy Patterson 

• Deputy City Clerk Report – Christian Samora 
17. Elected Official Reports                                                                                                 

• City Clerk – Betty Schwitzer  

• City Treasurer – Theresa Cortese 

• City Council- Michael Bowers, Hal Brown , Cheryl Brown-Kovacic, Rusty Granzella, Melodee 
Hallett and Eileen Rogers.  

• Mayor – Jim LiVecchi 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 

VIII. OLD BUSINESS 

IX. ADJOURN –          [SEAL]                               

________________ ___            ________________________ 
City Clerk      Mayor 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 2 of 199



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION       Meeting Date:  April 18, 2017  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. 1.

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Administration 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Christian Samora 

  

BY:    

 

 
ITEM:    

Consent Agenda  

 

BACKGROUND: 

• April 4, 2017 Minutes 

• Articipate is requesting use of Riverside Park on May 26th for the Annual SunFest in the park. This 
request does include a special events liquor permit. Articipate is also requesting a waiver of fees for the 
event.  The total fee for this event is $555.00.   
 

• The Salida Rotary Charitible Fund is requesting use of Riverside Park on May 27th and 28th for the 
annual Bluegrass on the Arkansas event.  This request does include a special events liquor permit.  

 

FISCAL NOTE: 

 

 

 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 

 
If Council wishes to approve the items on the consent agenda;  

A Council Member should make a motion to combine and approve the items on the consent agenda.  Followed by a 

second, and then a simple voice vote.  It should be specified as to whether the fee waiver is included in the approval of the 

Consent Agenda.  

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 3 of 199



Meeting Minutes April 04, 2017   
  

1 

 
MEETING MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

City Council Chambers 
448 East 1st Street, Room 190 

City of Salida, Colorado 
Tuesday, April 4, 2017 6:00 p.m.  

 

 

I. REGULAR MEETING CALLED TO ORDER –  

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Led by Mayor Jim LiVecchi 

III. ROLL CALL 

All members of City Council and staff were present.  

IV. PRESENTATION 

V. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION – 3 minute time limit. Citizen participation is for items not on the agenda and for 
agenda items that are not scheduled public hearings.  

VI. SCHEDULED ITEMS  

1. Consent Agenda (Christian Samora)   
a) Approval of Agenda  
b) Approval of Minutes: March 21, 2017 
c) Easter Egg Hunt Fee Waiver Request 
d) Cancellation of Whittington Contract 

 
LiVecchi requested that item “d” be removed from the Consent Agenda.  
 

Brown motioned to combine and approve items “a” through “c” on the Consent Agenda.  Granzella 
seconded the motion.   

 
Brown-Kovacic asked for clarification as to why “d” was removed from the Consent Agenda.  
 
LiVecchi stated that a Council Member asked for more information and there was not enough time to 
compile the information.  
 

With all in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED.  
 

2. Adjustment of Ward Boundary Lines, 2nd Reading & Public Hearing (Schwitzer & Samora)  
Ordinance 2017-05 an ordinance of the City Council of the City of Salida, Colorado, altering the City Ward 
Boundaries  
 
Schwitzer gave an introduction and provided background information.  She reported that 605 notices were 
sent out following the City Council’s request to notice residents that would have a change in what Ward the 
reside in.  
 



Meeting Minutes April 04, 2017 
 

2 

Mayor LiVecchi opened the Public Hearing. 
 
There was not any comment from the public. 
 
Mayor LiVecchi closed the Public Hearing.  

 
Granzella motioned to approve Ordinance 2017-05 an ordinance of the City Council of the City of 
Salida, Colorado, altering the City Ward Boundaries and ordering the ordinance to be published by title 
only. Brown seconded the motion.  With all in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED.  

 
3. Short-Term Business Licensing Amendment, 1st Reading (Beverly Kaiser)  

Ordinance 2017-06 an ordinance of the City Council of the City of Salida, Colorado, to repeal and replace 
Article VI, Chapter 6 of the Salida Municipal Code pertaining to Short-Term Business Licensing 
 
Patterson asked Council to continue to a date certain.  Patterson is looking at ways to accomplish the 
inspections and would like to have the issue at the next work session.  
 
Brown-Kovacic asked if the liability issue would be covered as well.  
 
Patterson stated that in a sense it would be covered as well.  
 

Brown motioned to continue to the ordinance to the April 18, 2017 City Council meeting. Brown-
Kovacic seconded the motion. With all in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED.  

 
4. Repeal of Panhandling Regulations, 1st Reading (Guy Patterson)  

Ordinance 2017-08 an ordinance of the City Council of the City of Salida, Colorado, repealing Section 10-5-
40(a)(2) of the Salida Municipal Code and Creating Section 10-5-150, establishing regulations with regard to 
aggressive panhandling within corporate City Limits 
 
Patterson gave an introduction and provided background information.   
 

Brown motioned to approve Ordinance 2017-08 an ordinance of the City Council of the City of Salida, 
Colorado, repealing Section 10-5-40(a)(2) of the Salida Municipal Code and Creating Section 10-5-150, 
establishing regulations with regard to aggressive panhandling within corporate City Limits, setting a 
public hearing for April 18, 2017 and ordering the ordinance to be published in full. Granzella seconded 
the motion. With all in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED.  

 
5. Approval of Ground Lease at Harriett Alexander Field, 1st Reading (Zech Papp) 

Ordinance 2017-09 Approving a Ground Lease with O.A. Pesnell 
 
Papp gave an introduction and provided background information.  

Papp explained what the request was and explained that Pesnell is willing to pay for $30k of 
the construction of a new taxi way that would allow access to both sides of the T-Hangar.  
The taxiway would serve more than just the single structure.  

Papp stated that he received estimates for what it would cost to construct the taxiway.   

Papp explained further that the area is not compliant for FAA funding to construct and 
grant funds could be used for other projects in the future instead.  

Hallett asked what would make the width compliant in the future.  

Papp stated that the airport could apply for a modification to standard specifications.  

Brown asked if the lease is approved, is the Council committing the City to pay $20k.  Papp 
stated that the Hangar lease will have a second reading for final approval.   



Meeting Minutes April 04, 2017 
 

3 

Brown-Kovacic asked him how long it’ll take to build.  Papp stated the last hangar took 
under three months to construct. 

Rogers stated that the first decision is whether the Council wants to support the decision to 
build the taxi way.  

Granzella asked if there are new jobs coming with the operation.  

Papp did not believe it would be creating any new jobs.  

Rogers motioned to approve Ordinance 2017-09, an ordinance of the City Council, City 
of Salida, approving a Ground Lease with O.A. Pesnell. Brown-Kovacic seconded the 
motion.  

Brown stated that he is in support. He stated that the Council needed to look at budget 
impacts.  Patterson will bring the information back to Council regarding the budget and 
where the funds would be in the budget.   

Patterson stated that is $50k in the budget for the Airport. Papp stated that the 50k is for 
operations.  

With all in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED.  

6. Mutual Aid Agreement (Doug Bess) 
Resolution 2017-20  approving mutual aid agreement between the City and Western Fremont and Custer 
County Fire Agencies 
 
Council Member Bowers arrived.  
 
Bess gave an introduction and provided background information.  
 

Rogers motioned to approve Resolution 2017-20, a resolution of the City Council, City of Salida, 
approving mutual aid agreement between the City and Western Fremont and Custer County Fire 
Agencies. Bowers seconded the motion. With all in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED.   

 
7. Settlement in Tafoya Case (Ben Kahn) 

Resolution 2017-21 approving a settlement agreement between the City of Salida and Steven Tafoya 
 
LiVecchi gave and introduction and provided background information.  
 
LiVecchi stated that the City owed Tafoya $515 and Tafoya agreed to waive the claims.  
 

Brown motioned to approve Resolution 2017-21, a resolution of the City Council, City of Salida, 
approving a settlement agreement between the City of Salida and Steven Tafoya. Granzella seconded 
the motion.  With all in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED.  
 
8. Additional Budget Appropriation (Guy Patterson) 

Resolution 2017-22 appropriating additional sums of money in the General Fund for the 2017 Budget 
 
Patterson gave an introduction and provided background information. Patterson stated that the entire $30k 
was expended and this would be an amendment to that item.  Patterson stated that both requests could be 
funded, one or none could be funded.  
 
Brown-Kovacic stated that the committee was trying to be creative and thought the Rails to Trails could 
come out of the CTF.  Patterson stated that because the City does not yet have ownership, it cannot be used. 
Patterson continued to state that GARNA is subsidizing the sewer and funding the request would help the 
community garden.   



Meeting Minutes April 04, 2017 
 

4 

 
Granzella clarified that the building has the sewer and the garden is only watering plants, there is no real 
discharge.  
 
Hallett stated that she doesn’t know of anyone else that sewer fees have been forgiven for.  
 

Brown-Kovacic motioned to approve Resolution 2017-22, a resolution of the City Council appropriating 
additional sums of money in the General Fund for the 2017 Budget in the amount of $1,550. Rogers 
seconded the motion. 

 
Hallett asked how much was donated for other trail projects.  Patterson read from the previously-approved 
requests.  
 

Granzella asked for a friendly amendment to the motion to verify that there is not a major water leak.  
 
Brown-Kovacic accepted the amendment.  

 
Bowers motioned to continue the resolution until the next meeting.  Brown seconded the motion. With 
all in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED.  

 
 

9. Administrator/Deputy City Clerk                                              

• City Administrator Report –Guy Patterson 
Patterson reported that the dog park clean-up will be on April 22, 2017. 
The Chaffee County quarterly intergovernmental meeting will be in Buena Vista. 
Patterson stated that he met with David Lady, Lonnie Oversole and Jennifer Dilalla and that 
Oversole has a tremendous amount of knowledge.  
Deputy City Clerk Report – Christian Samora 
Samora reported that there is a request included in the Council Packet is a request from Liz 
McQueen to place crochet on planters on the F Street bridge from the end of May until FIBArk.  
The Council did not have any objection.  

10. Elected Official Reports                                                                                                 

• City Clerk – Betty Schwitzer  

• City Treasurer – Theresa Cortese 

• City Council- Michael Bowers, Hal Brown , Cheryl Brown-Kovacic, Rusty Granzella, Melodee 
Hallett and Eileen Rogers.  
Brown-Kovacic stated that she has received a number of complaints regarding the LED street 
lights.  Patterson stated that they are investigating lower wattage.   
Rogers stated that she read an article about the issue and provided Patterson with a copy of the 
article.  
Bowers stated that the City Council had previously discussed the LED to lower cost. Bowers stated 
that the lights offer better light and make the area safer.  

• Monika Griesenbeck stated that her personal feeling that it gives the streets the charm of a Wal-
Mart parking lot.  She felt it was really intrusive and it’s not really illuminating that much. She asked 
if shades could be placed over the light fixtures to help shield the light. 
Brown-Kovacic referenced night skies.  
The Council was in agreement to look into making adjustments to the street lights as needed. 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 

Rogers read the proposed addition to the Attorney’s Scope of Work.  Rogers also provided a copy to the 
Deputy City Clerk.   

Brown asked if there could be a scheduled report regarding the light issue.   

Brown asked for a new agenda item to discuss how long meetings can go because it used to be that the 



Meeting Minutes April 04, 2017 
 

5 

Council would have to make a motion and approve going past 8pm.   

VIII. OLD BUSINESS 

Hallett referenced the 4-way stop on 3rd and D street and felt the City Council should discuss the issue.  The 
issue will be on a future work session.  

Hallett felt there should be something to allow events like the Easter egg hunt to avoid it going to council for 
the decision.  

Bowers reported that the boulders have not been placed because of the weather. There will be a rock placed 
on the east side of F Street.  They anticipate doing it on Thursday or Friday and another rock will be placed on 
the south side of the river, west of the boat ramp. Bowers stated that they looked into sandblasting.  They are 
looking in the area of $1000 for each rock to have the sandblasting work completed.  The dedication will be 
the first weekend in June before FIBArk.  

Patterson stated that perhaps it could be offset by private donations as well.  

There was consensus to move forward with having the rocks engraved. 

LiVecchi reported that he spoke to Lori Roberts and she provided a name to a person that owns the car wash 
next to loaf and jug that may be interested in providing water services.  Patterson will be in contact.  

The next Housing Task Force agenda is looking at having an interim housing authority.  He stated that the 
codes will also be discussed.  PT Wood, Joe Deluca and Kristi Jefferson are a subcommittee looking into code 
changes.  There will also be a presentation by the Lau’s regarding mobile homes.   

LiVecchi stated that Samora has done an excellent job and stepped up for fill in during the transition.  He 
stated that he spoke to Patterson regarding PIO and recommended leaving the position at the current pay to 
offset additional responsibilities.  He stated that anyone can count on Samora to get a job done.  

Patterson stated that Samora has been invaluable and would like to put more on Samora’s plate and 
compensate accordingly.   

IX. ADJOURN –     

Brown motioned to adjourn.  Bowers seconded the motion.  With all in favor, THE MOTION 
CARRIED.    

 

      [SEAL]                               

________________ ___            ________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk     James LiVecchi, Mayor 



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 9 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 10 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 11 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 12 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 13 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 14 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 15 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 16 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 17 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 18 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 19 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 20 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 21 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 22 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 23 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 24 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 25 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 26 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 27 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 28 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 29 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 30 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 31 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 32 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 33 of 199



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION       Meeting Date: April 18, 2017  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. 2.

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Salida Recreation  

PRESENTED BY: 

 Theresa Casey 

  

BY:    

 

 

 

ITEM:   Cancellation of the remainder of the Amendment to the Sarah F. Whittington Architectural 
Services Agreement. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

In late 2015 the then City Council approved amendments to the DSI and Sarah Whittington 
agreements to add an outdoor soaking pool and spray feature to their current Locker Room 
agreements. A concerned citizen objected to the process of the amendments, as did several City 
Council members, and he filed suit. On December 1, 2015 the City Council passed a resolution 
voiding the DSI amendment to the agreement. The Whittington agreement was not cancelled. Staff 
was directed to move forward with Whittington to further develop the cost estimates. 

On March 14, 2016 during a City Council Worksession, Council questioned the City’s water 
discharge permit with CDPHE. Concerns included the possible costs of mandates that CDPHE 
might put on the City. Because of the concerns, and the possibility that the pool splash pad may be 
a few years down the road, Council decided to put off the engineering and construction of the 
outdoor features. Council gave direction that staff should return when the CDPHE issue was 
resolved. Staff should have returned with a proposal to cancel the Whittington amendment at that 
time, it was not done. 

Some design and engineering was completed and now serves as the basis for the project as it goes 
forward. Whittington was paid for work completed. 

Because Council determined the waiting until the CDPHE issue was resolved, staff put the project 
aside. Again the Whittington amendment should have been cancelled and was not. 

January 18, 2017 City Council Worksession with the Recreation Advisory Board. At this meeting 
after hearing the presentation and asking questions, Council gave staff direction to proceed with a 
RFQ for engineering so they could get a reliable cost estimate for the project.  

 

FISCAL NOTE: 

Whittington was paid for work completed, that work product is now being used as the basis for the 
work to be completed with Cloward. (Whittington was paid $19,185 of a $38,370 amendment, 
leaving $19,185 unexpended. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends cancellation of the remainder of the Sarah F. Whittington Architectural Services Agreement. 

Suggested Motions: 
 

Make a motion to cancel the remainder of the Amendment to the Sarah F. Whittington 
Architectural Services Agreement. 

 
 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 34 of 199



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION       Meeting Date: April 18, 2017  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. 3.

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development  

PRESENTED BY: 

 Beverly Kaiser 

  

BY:    

 

 
ITEM:    

Short Term Housing Regulations  

BACKGROUND: 

For the past two years, the City of Salida has been working on addressing issues associated with the use of 

residential structures as short-term rentals (rented to visitors for less than 30 days).  Initially the City required 

that those renting their home as a short-term rental simply apply for a “Short Term Rental Business License” 

and pay the appropriate lodging tax, sales tax, and any other relevant fees.  Increasing community concern about 

the negative effects of these vacation rentals on the character of residential neighborhoods and the loss of long-

term rental housing led to the City adopting a moratorium on the approval of any more short-term rental 

licenses in residential zones until the City could adequately address the problem through developing regulations 

for short-term rentals. 

Following numerous public meetings, a public forum, staff research, public hearings, and repeated Planning 

Commission and City Council review, the proposed Amendments to the Salida Land Use and Development 

Code Regarding Short Term Rentals are now ready for adoption at second reading of Ordinance No. 2017-07. 

The new regulations accomplish the following: 

• Define the terms under which a property owner must apply for a short-term business license. 

• Permit short-term rentals in commercial zones without a cap on the number, yet a short-term rental 

business license is required for these units as well as residential short-term rentals. 

• Clarify that a separate short-term business license is required for each short-term rental property and 

that the permit may be issued only to the owner of the property.  No more than one short-term business 

license is permitted per property owner. 

• Establish regulations for the content of a notice to be posted in each unit.  

• Establish a maximum number of permitted short-term rentals in the residential zone districts of 3 ½ 

percent of the total number of dwelling units eligible as short-term rentals (i.e. not to include apartment 

units and accessory dwelling units) in residential zones.  If a waiting list occurs as a result of the 

maximum being met, new qualifying units will be approved on a first come, first serve basis. 

• Establish a maximum number of calendar days a year (185) that short-term rentals may be rented in the 

residential zone districts. 

• Establish a locational restriction of one short-term rental unit per street segment (which includes the 

dwelling units on both sides of the street) in the residential zones. 

• Include stipulations regarding noise, parking, and number of occupants. 

During the City Council meeting at which the first reading of the short-term rental ordinance was presented 

(March 21, 2017), staff expressed concern about short-term room rentals.  Staff felt that placing them under the 

category of Bed and Breakfast Inns under “administrative review” (as they are now in the proposed ordinance) 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 35 of 199



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION       Meeting Date: April 18, 2017  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. 3.

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development  

PRESENTED BY: 

 Beverly Kaiser 

  

BY:    

 

 
could potentially become a loophole. This could be a way to circumvent the maximum 3 ½ % in residential 

zones, the maximum permitted number of days a year a STR may be rented, and the limit of “one per street 

segment.”  Staff felt that the STR room rentals should be included in the pool for all short-term rentals.  

However, at the March 27, 2017 Planning Commission meeting, the Planning Commission informally discussed 

the issue of short-term room rentals and the majority of the Commissioners strongly did not concur with staff.    

Therefore, staff has not changed the stipulation in the proposed regulations. Ordinance No. 07, Series 2017 still 

includes the clause that “Applicants wishing to rent an individual room (s) on a short-term basis in an owner-

occupied dwelling unit shall comply with Table 16-D of the Land Use and Development Code listing for bed 

and breakfast inns” (Section 16-4-190 (2) e.). 

 

 

 

FISCAL NOTE: 

 

 

 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

 
This is a second reading of the ordinance, so a Public Hearing needs to be opened to hear testimony from the 

public.  

A Council Member should make a “motion to approve Ordinance 2017-07, an ordinance of the City Council, 

City of Salida, creating a new section, amended definitions, and amendments to Table 16-D in the Land Use and 

Development Code of the Salida Municipal Code in order to establish operational regulations for short-term 

rental businesses and ordering the ordinance to be published by title only.” Followed by a second and a roll call 

vote.  

 
 

 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 36 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 37 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 38 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 39 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 40 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 41 of 199



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION       Meeting Date: April 18, 2017  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. 4.

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Beverly Kaiser 

  

BY:    

 

 
ITEM:    

Short-Term Rental Housing Regulations 

BACKGROUND: 

During the process of developing land use regulations pertaining to short-term rentals in the Land Use and 

Development Code, the Planning Commission and the staff noticed several minor changes that are needed in 

the Business License Section of the Municipal Code pertaining to short-term rental businesses.   

These recommended changes are: 

1. The definition of “short-term rental unit” in the business license section needs to be the same as that 

definition proposed for the land use code. 

2. As the Fire Department does not conduct an annual business inspection of short-term rentals, the 

section in the business license code needs to be amended to reflect what’s being done; a Short-term Unit 

Self Inspection Worksheet is completed and reviewed by staff. 

3. As also required in the land use code, the business license code should refer to a required clearly visible 

notice posted in the unit. 

FISCAL NOTE: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the City Council consider and discuss the staff recommendations pertaining to the revisions 

to the business license section pertaining to short-term rental businesses, suggest any changes, and authorize 

Ordinance No.2017-06 for public hearing on April 18, 2017. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
A Council Member should make a motion to “approve ordinance 2017-06, an ordinance of the City Council, City 
of Salida, Colorado to repeal and replace Article VI, Chapter 6 of the Salida Municipal Code pertaining to Short-
Term Business Licensing, setting a public hearing to be held on May 2, 2017 and ordering the ordinance to be 
published in full.”  Followed by a second and a roll call vote.  

 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 42 of 199



ORDINANCE NO. 06 

 (Series of 2017)  

 

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL AND REPLACE ARTICLE VI CHAPTER 6 - OF THE 

SALIDA MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO SHORT TERM BUSINESS LICENSES. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Salida finds it is in the best interest of the citizens of Salida to 

continue to have regulations for short-term rental businesses to help ensure the health and safety 

of occupants, the peaceful enjoyment by citizens of their neighborhoods, and compliance by short-

term rental businesses of state and local taxes; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Article VI, Chapter 6 of the Salida Municipal Code contains language with 

regard to the definition of short-term rental and the inspection by the Fire Department that needs 

correction and conformity with language in the Land Use and Development Code, and 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO as follows: 

 

 Section 1.  That Article VI, Chapter 6 of the Salida Municipal Code is repealed in its 

entirety and readopted to read as follows: 

 

 

 
ARTICLE VI 

Short-term Business License 

Sec. 6-6-10. - Definitions.  
For the purpose of this Article the following words and terms have the following meanings, unless the 

context clearly indicates otherwise. Definitions included in Chapters 1 and 16 of this Code shall apply to 
this Article unless they are otherwise expressly defined herein.  

Applicant means the owner of the property used as a short-term rental business or the owner's 
authorized agent or representative.  

Local contact person means the person designated by the owner or the owner's authorized agent or 
representative who shall be available twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week for the 
purpose of: (1) responding within sixty (60) minutes to property code violations and/or complaints regarding 
the condition, operation, or conduct of occupants of the short-term rental unit and (2) taking remedial action 
to resolve such violations and/or complaints.  

Short-term rental business means the occupation of leasing or renting one or more short-term rental 
units.  

Short-term rental unit means a privately owned residential dwelling unit, such as a single-family 
detached unit, duplex, condominium, or townhome that is rented for occupancy for the purpose of lodging 
for any period less than thirty (30) consecutive days, not to include accessory dwelling units, apartment 
buildings, Bed and Breakfast Inns, hotels, lodges, and hostels.  

Occupation lodging tax means the tax levied pursuant to Salida Municipal Code, Chapter 4, Article VI.  

Sec. 6-6-20 - Licensing.  
It shall be unlawful for any person or entity to engage in the short-term rental business without first 

applying for and procuring a license from the City Administrator. The initial license fee, renewal license fee 
and penalty for operating without a license shall established by resolution of City Council, as may be 
amended from time to time, and payable annually in advance.  

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 43 of 199



Upon approval of a business license pursuant to this Article, the City Administrator shall issue a 
business license number to each short-term rental business.  

Short-term rental businesses shall include their business license number in all public advertising, 
including but not limited to webhosting services such as Airbnb, Home Away, Trip Advisor, VRBO, etc.  

Sec. 6-6-30. - Application, issuance and renewals.  
(a) Any person desiring a license to engage in the short-term rental business shall apply to the City 

Administrator at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of the intended use and prior to any advertising 
on forms provided by the City Clerk, except that those businesses already remitting tax returns for the 
City's occupation lodging tax shall be deemed to be licensed and shall be subject to renewal provisions 
as outlined in this article.  

(b) The City Administrator may issue a short-term rental business license upon all the following conditions:  

(1) The applicant has submitted a complete application form and provided all required information 
regarding the short-term rental unit and the local contact person.  

(2) The applicant has paid the appropriate fee established by the City Council.  

(3) The property to be used for a short-term rental business has completed and complied with the 
City of Salida Short-term Rental Unit Inspection Worksheet. 

(c) The City Administrator may renew a short-term rental business license upon all the following 
conditions:  

(1) The applicant has submitted a complete renewal form.  

(2) The applicant has paid the appropriate fee established by the City Council.  

(3) The property to be used for a short-term rental business has completed and complied with the 
City of Salida Short-term Unit Inspection Worksheet. 

(Ord. No. 2016-11 , § 2, 5-3-2016)  

Sec. 6-6-40. - Local management required.  
Short-term rental businesses must have a local contact person who shall be responsible for ensuring 

compliance with provisions of the Salida Municipal Code including, but not limited to, reports for the 
occupation lodging tax, maintaining a current business license, maintenance of parkways, removal of snow 
and ice, and other property maintenance requirements. The local contact person must be available twenty-
four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week for the purpose of: (1) responding within sixty (60) minutes 
to property code violations and/or complaints regarding the condition, operation, or conduct of occupants 
of the short-term rental unit and (2) taking remedial action to resolve such violations and/or complaints.  

Each short-term rental business shall have a clearly visible notice posted within the unit in compliance 
with Section 16-4-190 q. (1) a. 5. of the Salida Land Use and Development Code. 

Sec. 6-6-50. - Revocation.  
Any license issued is subject to suspension or revocation by the City Administrator for failure to pay 

the Occupation Lodging Tax to pursuant to Salida Municipal Code, Chapter 4, Article VI or violation of any 
provisions of this Article.  

Sec. 6-6-60. - Penalties.  
In addition to any other remedies available at law or equity, engaging in the short-term rental business 

within the City of Salida without a license shall subject the licensee to a fine in an amount to be established 
by resolution of the City Council, as may be amended from time to time, to be collected in the manner 
provided for penalty assessments as provided in Chapter 1, Article VII of this Code.  

 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 44 of 199

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=770904&datasource=ordbank


 INTRODUCED ON FIRST READING on March 21, 2017, ADOPTED AND ORDERED 

PUBLISHED IN FULL in a newspaper of general circulation in the city of Salida by the City 

Council on ________ 2017 and set for second reading and public hearing on the 18th day of April, 

2017. 

 

 INTRODUCED ON SECOND READING, FINALLY ADOPTED AND ORDERED 

PUBLISHED IN FULL by the City Council on the 18th day of April, 2017. 

 

  CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

   

   

   

  James LiVecchi, Mayor 

[SEAL]   

   

ATTEST:   

   

   

   

City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk   

  

 

PUBLISHED IN FULL in the Mountain Mail after First Reading on _______, 2017 and by TITLE 

ONLY, after the final adoption on the ___________________ day of 

____________________________, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

  City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 
 

 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 45 of 199



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO  

ORDINANCE NO. 08 

(Series of 2017)  

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, 

REPEALING SECTION 10-5-40(a)(2) OF THE SALIDA MUNICIPAL CODE AND 

CREATING SECTION 10-5-150, ESTABLISHING REGULATIONS WITH REGARD TO 

AGGRESSIVE PANHANDLING WITHIN THE CORPORATE CITY LIMITS.  

 

WHEREAS, Section 10-5-40(a)(2) of the Salida Municipal Code with regard to loitering 

for purposes of begging has been determined by the City Council to constitute a threat to the First 

Amendment rights of certain citizens and others within the corporate limits of the City of Salida; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Salida nevertheless has the authority, pursuant to State law, to 

adopt regulations to prevent disorderly conduct and disturbances and to maintain order and to 

protect and enhance the health, safety and welfare of its citizens and others in public places; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Salida also has the authority to enact reasonable ordinances to 

control the use of streets, sidewalks, parks and other public property with the corporate city limits; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the citizens of and visitors to the City of Salida could experience concerns 

and fears regarding the adverse effects to their safety and convenience due to certain activities 

relating to panhandling, particularly when those activities are aggressive, threatening, coercive or 

obscene; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Salida wishes impose reasonable time, place and manner of 

restrictions on panhandling activities in order to protect the legitimate interests of the City, its 

citizens and its visitors. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY 

OF SALIDA, COLORADO:  

 

Section 1 – That Section 10-5-40 - Loitering of the Salida Municipal Code is repealed in its entirety 

and readopted to read as follows: 

 

Section 10-5-40 – Loitering. 

 

(a) It is unlawful for any person to: 

 

 (1) Loiter with the intent to violate any provision of this Chapter or any criminal provisions of 

state or federal law. 

 

 (2) Loiter for the purpose of unlawful gambling with cards, dice or other gambling 

paraphernalia. 

 

 (3) Loiter for the purpose of engaging or soliciting another person to engage in prostitution or 

sexual activity. 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 46 of 199



 

 (4) Loiter with intent to interfere with or disrupt the school program or with intent to interfere 

with or endanger schoolchildren in a school building, on school grounds or within one hundred 

(100) feet of school grounds when persons under the age of eighteen (18) are present in the 

building or on the grounds, for one not having any reason or relationship involving custody 

for, or responsibility for, a pupil or any other specific, legitimate reason for being there, and 

having been asked to leave by a school administrator, the administrator’s representative or a 

peace officer. 

 

 (5) Loiter with the purpose of unlawfully using or possessing a controlled substance. 

 

(b) It is an affirmative defense that the person’s acts were lawful and he or she was exercising his 

or her rights of lawful assembly as part of a peaceful and orderly petition for the redress of 

grievances or exercise of lawful First Amendment rights. 

 

Section 2 - The "Salida Municipal Code" is amended by the addition thereto of a new Section 10-

5-150, which is to read as follows: 

 

Section 10-5-150 – Panhandling. 

 

(a)  As used in this Section, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated: 

 

Aggressive panhandling:  Any form of panhandling that includes any of the following activities: 

 

 (1) Knowingly touching or causing physical contact with another person without that person’s 

consent during the course of panhandling. 

 

 (2) Using violent, threatening, intimidating, coercive or aggressive gestures or conduct toward 

a person during the course of panhandling or in response to a refusal by any person to give 

money, except for the lawful exercise of First Amendment rights other than those outlined in 

Salida Municipal Code Section 10-5-150(a)(3). 

 

 (3) Using fighting words or directing violent or obscene verbal or written language toward any 

person during the course of panhandling or in response to a refusal by any person to give 

money. 

 

 (4) Taking any action that obstructs or blocks a public sidewalk, doorway, entryway or other 

passage way used by pedestrians in a public place or that obstructs the passage or the travel of 

any person during the course of panhandling in a manner that requires them to take evasive 

action to avoid physical contact with any person. 

 

Panhandling:  Any solicitation or request made in person on any street, right-of-way, sidewalk, 

park or other public place in the city, in which a person requests a donation of money or any 

other item of value from another person. 

 

Coercive:  To compel another person by physical force or actual, or reasonably implied threat of 

physical force to take any action against his or her free will. 

 

Intimidating:  Conduct that puts the fear of bodily harm in another person. 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 47 of 199



 

Obscene: A blatantly offensive description or demonstration of a sexual act or solicitation to 

commit a sexual act, whether actual or simulated. 

 

Obstruct:  Any activity that acts to hinder or slow progress, that makes the accomplishment or a 

task slower or more difficult or that comes in the way of or impedes any person to any 

unreasonable extent, that requires them to take evasive action, or that requires them to avoid 

physical contact with any person, or otherwise to any unreasonable extent. 

 

Public place:  Any area or place to which the general public has access and a right to occupy for 

business, entertainment or any other lawful purpose, including but not limited to, any front 

entryway, doorway, vestibule or immediate access area to any store, shop, restaurant, tavern 

or other place of business and shall include public buildings, public grounds, parks, trails, 

plazas, streets, alleys, sidewalks, parking lots and medians owned or maintained in whole or 

in part by the city or other governmental entity. 

 

(b) It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in aggressive panhandling in any public place 

within the City. 

 

(c)  Nothing contained in this Section shall apply to or limit any panhandling that is conducted 

solely by passively standing or sitting with a sign or other indication that one is seeking 

donations, without approaching or directing a request to a specific person, or through any other 

exercise of lawful First Amendment rights. 

   

Section 3 – The City Council hereby finds and declares that this Ordinance shall be and become 

effective on May 1, 2017, after its final passage and publication.  

 

 INTRODUCED ON FIRST READING on April 4, 2017, ADOPTED AND ORDERED 

PUBLISHED IN FULL in a newspaper of general circulation in the city of Salida by the City 

Council on the ___________ day of ______________________, 2017 and set for second reading 

and public hearing on the 18th day of April, 2017. 

 INTRODUCED ON SECOND READING, FINALLY ADOPTED AND ORDERED 

PUBLISHED IN FULL by the City Council on the 18th day of April, 2017. 

CITY OF SALIDA 

 

 

ATTEST:        Mayor, James LiVecchi 

 

City Clerk/Deputy Clerk 

 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 48 of 199



PUBLISHED IN FULL in the Mountain Mail after First Reading on the ____ day of March, 

2017 and by TITLE ONLY, after the final adoption on the ____ day of April, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

  City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 49 of 199



Nathan Woodliff-Stanley, Executive Director 
Mark Silverstein, Legal Director 

  
August 31, 2016 
  
SENT VIA U.S. MAIL AND EMAIL: jim.livecchi@salidaelected.com   
  
Jim LiVecchi, Mayor 
City of Salida 
448 E. 1st St. Suite 112 
Salida, CO 81201 
  
Dear Mayor LiVecchi, 
  

Your municipality is one of over thirty in Colorado with a municipal code that makes it a crime to “loiter 
for the purpose of begging.”  Salida Code of Ordinances § 10-5-40(a)(2).  This ordinance not only unfairly 
targets poor and homeless persons whose pleas for assistance are protected by the First Amendment, but it is 
also legally indefensible.  We write to ask that Salida immediately initiate the steps necessary to repeal the 
ordinance and take it off the books.  While the process of repeal is unfolding, law enforcement should be 
instructed not to enforce this ordinance. 
  

In recent years, this nation and Colorado have seen a marked uptick in enforcement of laws that 
effectively criminalize homelessness and extreme poverty, including many laws that prohibit individuals from 

peacefully asking passersby for help.[1] Not only do these anti-begging ordinances violate the constitutional 

rights of impoverished people, but they are costly to enforce and serve to exacerbate problems associated with 
homelessness and poverty.  Harassing, ticketing and/or arresting poor persons for asking for help is inhumane, 
counterproductive and – in many cases – illegal.  That is why the American Civil Liberties Union of Colorado 
(“ACLU”) has devoted considerable resources in recent years to reviewing, and sometimes challenging such 

ordinances.[2]  

  
It is well-settled that peacefully soliciting charity in a public place is protected by the First 

Amendment.  See, e.g., United States v. Kokinda, 497 U.S. 720, 725 (1990) (“Solicitation is a recognized form 
of speech protected by the First Amendment.”); accord Village of Schaumburg v. Citizens for a Better Env’t, 
444 U.S. 620, 632 (1980).  This constitutional protection applies not just to organized charities, but also to the 
humblest solitary beggar asking for spare change to get through the day.  More than twenty years ago, the 
Second Circuit explained that begging or panhandling is communicative activity that the Constitution protects: 
  

Begging frequently is accompanied by speech indicating the need for food, 
shelter, clothing, medical care or transportation.  Even without particularized 
speech, however, the presence of an unkempt and disheveled person 
holding out his or her hand or a cup to receive a donation itself conveys a 
message of need for support and assistance.  We see little difference 
between those who solicit for organized charities and those who solicit for 
themselves in regard to the message conveyed.  The former are 
communicating the needs of others while the latter are communicating their 
personal needs.  Both solicit the charity of others.  The distinction is not a 
significant one for First Amendment purposes. 
  

Loper v. New York Town Police Department, 999 F.2d 699, 700 (2d Cir. 1993).[3]  In the years since 

the Loper decision, numerous courts have held that various regulations or outright prohibitions of solicitation 
violate the First Amendment.  See, e.g., Norton v. City of Springfield, 806 F.3d 411, 412-13 (7th Cir. 2015) 
(anti-panhandling statute is content-based  and subject to strict-scrutiny); Browne v. City of Grand Junction, 
136 F. Supp. 3d 1276, 1287 (D. Colo. 2015) (same); Thayer v. City of Worcester, 144 F. Supp. 3d 218, 233 (D. 
Mass. 2015) (same); Speet v. Schuette, 726 F.3d 867, 870 (6th Cir. 2013) (invalidating Michigan’s anti-begging 
statute, which “bans an entire category of activity that the First Amendment protects”);Clatterbuck v. City of 
Charlottesville, 708 F.3d 549 (4th Cir. 2013) (subjecting regulation of solicitation to strict scrutiny); ACLU of 
Idaho v. City of Boise, 998 F. Supp. 2d 908 (D. Idaho 2014) (issuing preliminary injunction); Kelly v. City of 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 50 of 199

mailto:jim.livecchi@salidaelected.com


Parkersburg, 978 F. Supp. 2d 624 (S.D. W Va. 2013) (issuing preliminary injunction); Guy v. County of Hawaii, 
2014 U.S. Dist. Lexis 132226 (D. Hawaii Sept. 19, 2014) (issuing temporary restraining order). 
  
            During the litigation of the ACLU’s challenge to Grand Junction’s panhandling ordinance, the federal 
district court in Colorado underscored the significance of panhandling’s communicative function: 
  

This court believes that panhandling carries a message.  Often, a request 
for money conveys conditions of poverty, homelessness, and 
unemployment, as well as a lack of access to medical care, reentry services 
for persons convicted of crimes, and mental health support.  The City’s 
attempt to regulate this message is an attempt to restrain the expression of 
conditions of poverty to other citizens. 

  
Browne v. City of Grand Junction, 2015 U.S. Dist. Lexis 73834, **12-13 (D. Colo. June 8, 2015).  
  

The Salida ordinance prohibiting loitering for the purpose of begging is far broader than many of the 
anti-panhandling regulations that courts have struck down in recent years.  It prohibits passively, silently, and 
nonintrusively sitting with a sign that asks for charity, and it applies everywhere in the municipality.  The 
ordinance could not survive a legal challenge.  Indeed, the language of Salida’s loitering ordinance is familiar to 
our office.  In 1996, the ACLU of Colorado filed a class action lawsuit to challenge an antiquated Colorado 
statute that, like Salida’s ordinance, prohibited “loitering . . . for the purpose of begging.”  After the plaintiffs 
obtained a preliminary injunction, the defendants agreed to ask the legislature to repeal the statute, and it was 
repealed in the next legislative session.  

  
Through the ACLU’s investigation, we know that several jurisdictions have actively enforced this 

outdated ordinance – whether by means of citations, warnings, or move-on orders.  Indeed, of the ten 
municipalities from which we received records, eight had engaged in some form of illegal enforcement of the 
ordinance within the last few years.  We understand, however, that some municipalities may have allowed this 
unconstitutional ordinance to stay on the books, but have no intention of enforcing it.  Your municipality may be 
one such jurisdiction.  Even if that is the case, it is important to remove this archaic law from the municipal 
code.  Leaving the law on the books raises the very real possibility that, at some point in the future, an 
energetic law enforcement officer will review the entirety of the municipal code and begin enforcing the 

ordinance.[4]  

  
Based on the foregoing, we ask Salida to take the following immediate actions:  

1.     Stop enforcing Section 10-5-40(a)(2).  This requires instructing any law enforcement officers 
charged with enforcing the municipal code that Section 10-5-40(a)(2) is no longer to be enforced in any 
way, including by issuance of citations, warnings, or move-on orders.  

 2.     Immediately initiate the steps necessary to repeal Section 10-5-40(a)(2).   

 3.     If there are any pending prosecutions under Section 10-5-40(a)(2), dismiss them.     
  

Please provide a written response to this letter by September 14, 2016. 
  
Sincerely, 
  

                         

Mark Silverstein                                             Rebecca Wallace 

Legal Director                                                Staff Attorney & Policy Counsel 

ACLU of Colorado                                         ACLU of Colorado 

cc: Karl Hanlon, Salida City Attorney - kjh@mountainlawfirm.com 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 51 of 199

mailto:kjh@mountainlawfirm.com


   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION       Meeting Date: April 18, 2017  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. 6.

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Salida Airport  

PRESENTED BY: 

 Zech Papp 

  

BY:    

 

 
ITEM:    

Approval of Ground Lease at Harriett Alexander Field 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The request is to pass an ordinance approving a 20-year lease with O.A. Pesnell for a ground lease at Harriet 

Alexander Field.  The proposed lease is detailed in the exhibit attached to the ordinance. Long-term leases for 

City owned property must be approved by an ordinance of the City Council. 

 

The proposal was reviewed by the airport board on March 22, 2017 and is scheduled for review by the Chaffee 

County Board of Commissioners on April 4, 2017. 

 

FISCAL NOTE: 

 

 

 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
 
A Council person should make a motion to approve “Ordinance 2017-09 an ordinance of the City Council of 

the City of Salida, Colorado, approving a ground lease with O.A. Pesnell, and ordering the ordinance to be 

published by title only.”  

 

Followed by a second and then a roll call vote. 

 
 

 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 52 of 199



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

ORDINANCE NO. 09 

(Series of 2017) 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

APPROVING A GROUND LEASE WITH O.A. PESNELL 

 

 WHEREAS, together with Chaffee County (the “County”), the City of Salida (the “City”) is the 

owner of certain real property located in unincorporated Chaffee County known as the Harriet Alexander 

Field (the “Property”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, O.A. Pesnell (“Lessee”), desires to enter into a Ground Lease to lease from the 

County and City a portion of the Property as more particularly described in the Ground Lease (the 

“Leased Premises”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Salida City Council is willing to lease the Leased Premises to the Lessee subject 

to the terms and conditions set forth in the Ground Lease for the Property. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SALIDA COLORADO THAT: 

 

1. The aforementioned recitals are hereby fully incorporated herein. 

 

2. The City Council hereby approves the Ground Lease with O.A. Pesnell and authorizes 

the Mayor to execute the Agreement on behalf of the City. 

 

INTRODUCED ON FIRST READING, on April 4th, 2017, ADOPTED and ORDERED 

PUBLISHED IN FULL in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Salida by the City Council on 

the 4th day of April, 2017 and set for second reading and public hearing on the 18th day of April, 2017. 

 

INTRODUCED ON SECOND READING, FINALLY ADOPTED and ORDERED 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY, by the City Council on the 18th day of April, 2017. 

 

      CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

 

 

      ___________________________ 

      James L LiVecchi, Mayor 

 

[SEAL] 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 53 of 199



 PUBLISHED IN FULL in the Mountain Mail after First Reading on the 7th day of April, 

2017, and BY TITLE ONLY, after final adoption on the ____day of ________, 2017. 

 

[SEAL] 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Deputy City Clerk 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 54 of 199



Airport Advisory Board Recommendations 
Date:  March 23, 2017 
To:  Chaffee County Board of County Commissioners 
From: Airport Advisory Board 

Subject: Pesnell T-Hanger 
 

Note: The following recommendation is an excerpt of the draft Airport Advisory Board 

meeting minutes of March 22, 2017 and should be considered as a draft summary of their 

recommendation until the minutes are approved at their next regular meeting. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Airport Board Advisory Board members present: Jerry Cunningham, Dennis Dempsey, Rusty 

Granzella, Rob Dubin, and Charlie Collman. 

 

Jerry Cunningham moved to recommend to the Board of Commissioners and City of Salida 

Council approval of the Pesnell T-Hanger.  Dennis Dempsey seconded and the motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 55 of 199



Airport Advisory Board Recommendations 
Date:  March 23, 2017 
To:  Chaffee County Board of County Commissioners 
From: Airport Advisory Board 

Subject: New Taxi Lane 
 

Note: The following recommendation is an excerpt of the draft Airport Advisory Board 

meeting minutes of March 22, 2017 and should be considered as a draft summary of their 

recommendation until the minutes are approved at their next regular meeting. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Airport Board Advisory Board members present: Jerry Cunningham, Dennis Dempsey, Rusty 

Granzella, Rob Dubin, and Charlie Collman. 

 

Jerry Cunningham moved to recommend to the Board of Commissioners and City of Salida 

Council approval of the new taxi lane as presented by O.A. Pesnell. 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 56 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 57 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 58 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 59 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 60 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 61 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 62 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 63 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 64 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 65 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 66 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 67 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 68 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 69 of 199



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION       Meeting Date: April 18, 2017  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. 7.

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Salida Recreation  

PRESENTED BY: 

 Theresa Casey 

  

BY:    

 

 
ITEM:   

Centennial Park Tennis & Pickleball Court Project Grant Agreement  

 

BACKGROUND: 

The City of Salida applied for a Great Outdoors Colorado (GOCO) Grant, to construct new tennis/pickleball 
courts, in Centennial Park, in the fall of 2016. In March of 2017 the city was notified that it was awarded $240,000 
in GOCO funds for the tennis/pickleball project. 

 

FISCAL NOTE: 

The City of Salida budgeted $350,000 in the 2017 Capital Improvements Fund (CIF) for construction of the 
tennis/pickleball courts. The project budget includes $240,000 from GOCO, $15,000 from Chaffee County 
Government and approximately $10,000 from the tennis and pickleball clubs with the remaining $85,000 from 
the city CIF. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends Council approve Resolution2017-23. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

 
Move to approve Resolution 2017-23 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
SALIDA, COLORADO, AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO ENTER INTO AN 
AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY AND WITH GREAT OUTDOORS COLORADO, 
ACCEPTING THE TERMS OF A GRANT FOR THE CENTENNIAL PARK TENNIS/PICKLEBALL 
COURT PROJECT. 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 70 of 199



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 23 

(Series 2017) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF SALIDA, 

COLORADO, AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO ENTER INTO AN 

AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY AND WITH GREAT OUTDOORS 

COLORADO, ACCEPTING THE TERMS OF A GRANT FOR THE CENTENNIAL 

PARK TENNIS/PICKLEBALL COURT PROJECT. 

WHEREAS, the City of Salida (“Salida” or the “City”) Centennial Park is a public park; 

and  

WHEREAS, the tennis/pickleball courts are in unplayable condition and new courts 

should replace the old courts; and 

WHEREAS, the City has created a community driven Centennial Park Master Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the City has been offered a grant of $240,000 by Great Outdoors Colorado 

(GOCO) for Centennial Park tennis/picklebal courts; and 

WHEREAS, to secure the GOCO grant, the City has committed to matching funds for 

the project in the amount of $60,000 from the Capital Improvements Fund; and   

WHEREAS, matching funds were also secured from Chaffee County Government and 

the Salida tennis and pickleball clubs; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF SALIDA, COLORADO THAT: 

1. The City incorporates the foregoing recitals as findings by the City Council. 

2. The Grant Agreement with Great Outdoors Colorado attached hereto as Exhibit 

A is hereby approved.  

3. The City Council authorizes the City Administrator to execute the Grant 

Agreement.  

RESOLVED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 19th day of April, 2017. 

 

 CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

 

   

 Jim LiVecchi, Mayor 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 71 of 199



[SEAL]  

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 72 of 199



   

GRANT AGREEMENT 

 

  
PROJECT: 

 

Project Title:   Centennial Park Tennis/Pickleball Court Project 2017 

Contract Number: 17040 

Completion Date:   March 23, 2019 

 

 

PARTIES TO AGREEMENT: 

 

Board: The State Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund 

 303 East 17
th

 Avenue, Suite 1060 

 Denver, CO  80203 

 

Grantee: City of Salida  

 

 

RECITALS 
 

A. The State Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund (referred to herein as 

“GOCO” or the “Board”) is a political subdivision of the State of Colorado, created by Article 

XXVII of the Colorado Constitution, adopted at the November 1992 General Election, which 

article appropriates a portion of the net proceeds of the Colorado Lottery to the Board and directs 

the Board to invest those proceeds in the State’s parks, wildlife, open space and recreational 

resources. 

 

 B. In 1994, the Board created a statewide grant program, pursuant to which eligible 

entities could apply for grants for local government parks and outdoor recreation projects to 

which Grantee responded with a detailed application (the “Project Application”). 

 

C. Grantee submitted a Project Application to the Board which contemplates the 

execution of the project entitled and described above (the “Project”). The Project is briefly 

described in the Project Summary attached hereto as Exhibit A.  The parties acknowledge that 

they have on file a complete copy of the Project Application, which is incorporated herein.   

 

D. The Board approved Grantee’s Project Application on March 23, 2017, subject to 

the execution of a detailed grant agreement, and subject to the terms and conditions set forth 

herein.  The parties intend this agreement to be the detailed final grant agreement required by the 

Board (the “Agreement”). 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 61D3976D-E81D-4E0C-B302-24291BD61972
April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 

Page 73 of 199



  2 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the parties’ mutual covenants contained herein 

and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 

acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

1. Incorporation of Recitals.  The Recitals set forth above are hereby incorporated into 

the terms of this Agreement. 

 

2. Representations and Warranties of Grantee. 

 

a. Grantee is a Municipality, duly organized in accordance with the laws of Colorado and 

has full and lawful authority to enter into, and comply with the terms of, this Agreement. 

 

b. Grantee’s governing body has authorized entering into this Agreement as evidenced by 

the resolution attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

 

c. Grantee warrants that it has good and sufficient title to the property or properties on 

which the Project is to be located (the “Property”). GOCO may require Grantee to provide 

evidence of its ownership of the Property and encumbrances against the Property satisfactory to 

GOCO in GOCO’s discretion prior to funding..  

 

3. Grant and Project.  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, the 

Board hereby awards to Grantee a sum not to exceed $240,000.00 (the “Grant”).  The Grant 

shall be used by Grantee solely to complete the Project, in substantial conformity with the final 

plans, specifications, designs and uses approved by the Board.   

 

4. Project Scope.  Grantee shall not materially modify the Project or the Project budget 

(attached hereto as Exhibit C, the “Budget”) without the prior written approval of the Executive 

Director of GOCO (“Executive Director”) or the Executive Director’s designee, such approval 

to be in GOCO’s sole discretion.  Any material modification to the Project undertaken without 

GOCO’s prior written consent may be deemed a breach of this Agreement by GOCO, entitling 

GOCO to all remedies available under this Agreement. If Grantee determines with reasonable 

probability that the Project will not or cannot be completed as reflected in the Project 

Application, Grantee will promptly so advise the Board, and cooperate in good faith to seek a 

resolution before any further funds are advanced. 

 

5. Grantee Efforts.  Grantee shall complete the Project in a timely fashion, in a good and 

workmanlike manner, and consistent with this Agreement and GOCO’s approvals related to the 

Project. 

 

6. Completion Date.  Grantee shall complete the Project and submit its Final Report no 

later than March 23, 2019 (the “Completion Date”) which is 24 months after the Board’s 

approval of the Project. Grantee may request an extension of the Completion Date in 

compliance with GOCO’s Overdue Grants Policy, a summary of which is attached as Exhibit D 

(“Overdue Grants Policy”).  If Grantee determines with reasonable probability that the Project 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 61D3976D-E81D-4E0C-B302-24291BD61972
April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 

Page 74 of 199



  3 

 

will not or cannot be completed by the Completion Date or any extended completion date, 

Grantee will promptly so advise the Board, and cooperate in good faith to seek a resolution 

before any further funds are advanced. 

 

7. Matching Funds. Grantee shall obtain the matching cash and in-kind contributions for 

the Project as reflected in the Budget and as required by GOCO policy, and shall provide such 

evidence of the same as GOCO may require in its reasonable discretion. 

 

8. Disbursement of Funds.   
 

a. Progress Payment: Grantee may opt to receive a portion of the Grant funds after starting 

but prior to completing work on the Project (a “Progress Payment”).  Grantee shall provide 

GOCO with a progress report detailing expenditures and progress made to date (“Progress 

Report”).  The Progress Report must be submitted using GOCO’s Progress Report form 

(available at www.goco.org or by contacting GOCO).  GOCO may, in its discretion, request 

additional documentation to support making a Progress Payment.  A Progress Payment shall not 

exceed GOCO’s percentage of expected overall costs (as determined by the GOCO-approved 

budget) applied to the value of documented eligible expenses or 50% of the Grant, whichever is 

less. A Progress Payment shall be considered a loan until the Project is complete and Final 

Payment (as defined below) has been made. 

 

b. Final Payment: Once the Project is complete, Grantee shall submit a final report to 

GOCO detailing the accomplishments of and expenditures related to the Project (the “Final 

Report”).  The Project is “complete” when all facilities, trails or other improvements included in 

the Project have been built and are ready for their intended use.  The Final Report must be 

submitted using GOCO’s Final Report form (available at www.goco.org or by contacting 

GOCO).  GOCO may, in its discretion, request additional documentation before its approval of 

the contents of the Final Report.  Upon GOCO’s review and approval of the Final Report, GOCO 

shall pay the outstanding balance on the Grant (the “Final Payment”), subject to any reductions 

contemplated by any provision of this Agreement. 

 

9. Conditions for Disbursement of Funds.  Except as provided in Paragraph 10 below, 

the Grant is subject to the following requirements and conditions. 

 

a. The Grant and all matching funds shall be used only for the cost of fixed assets, including 

construction of new facilities, and enlargement or renovation of existing facilities.  The Grant 

and all matching funds may not be used to pay for maintenance costs, administrative costs (such 

as salaries associated with administering the Grant, office supplies, telephone, or travel 

expenses), non-fixed assets (such as athletic or maintenance equipment), or any other costs 

deemed to be ineligible by the Board, at the Board’s sole discretion. 

 

b. Disbursement of Grant funds shall be made on the basis of costs actually incurred by 

Grantee and supported by written documentation (receipts, bills, etc.).  GOCO may, in its 

discretion, depending on the nature of the Project, require documentation of mechanics lien 

waivers or waivers of claims to public project performance bonds as a precondition to any 

disbursement under this Agreement. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 61D3976D-E81D-4E0C-B302-24291BD61972
April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 

Page 75 of 199

http://www.goco.org/
http://www.goco.org/


  4 

 

 

c. Except as otherwise agreed to in advance by GOCO in accordance with the terms of this 

Agreement, no material modifications may be made to the Project.  Material modifications to the 

Project to which GOCO has not agreed may result in a reduction in the Grant.  “Material 

modifications” may include, but are not necessarily limited to, a reduction in the total cost of the 

Project, a reduction in the size or number of recreational development components to be 

constructed, changes to the nature of the recreational development components to be constructed, 

or any other variance from the Project as presented in the Project Application.  It is the sole 

responsibility of Grantee to inform GOCO of any such modifications to the Project.  GOCO 

strongly encourages Grantee to contact GOCO in writing when it becomes aware of or wishes to 

make any such modifications, however seemingly minor, to the Project. 

 

10. Waiver.  The Executive Director or the Executive Director’s designee may in such 

person’s discretion, waive or agree to modify one or more of the obligations in sections 8, 9, 

and 16 of the Agreement, or may permit performance of one or more of such obligations 

subsequent to disbursement.  

 

11. Payment of Grant Subject to Sufficient Net Lottery Proceeds.  Payment of the Grant 

is subject to GOCO’s determination in its sole discretion that it has received and has available 

sufficient net lottery proceeds to fund the Grant.  In determining the sufficiency of net lottery 

proceeds, GOCO may consider all facts and circumstances as it deems necessary or desirable in 

its discretion, including, but not limited to, adequate reserves, funding requirements and/or 

commitments for other past, current and future grants, and past, current and future GOCO 

operating expenses and budgetary needs. 

 

12. Project Operation and Maintenance.  
 

a.         Subject to annual appropriations, Grantee shall operate, manage, and maintain the Project 

in a reasonable state of repair for the purposes specified and for the useful life of the Project in 

the Project Application, in accordance with product warranties and/or the generally accepted 

standards in the parks/recreation community, and provide and maintain access to the Project and 

to the Property, regardless of the Property’s ownership.  The Grantee has estimated a useful life 

of 25 years in the project application.   

b.         Failure to comply with the provisions of Paragraph 12.a. may be deemed a breach by 

Grantee under Paragraph 21, below. 

c.         GOCO shall not be liable for any cost of maintenance, management or operation of the 

Project. 

d.         Within 60 days of a reasonable request by the Board, Grantee will provide the Board with 

adequate records reflecting the operating and maintenance costs of the Project and provide the 

Board with such other information concerning the use of the Project by the public and the impact 

of the Project. 

e.         The Grantee’s administrative staff shall present to the Grantee during the Grantee’s 

annual budget process a request for an appropriation sufficient to meet the financial obligations 

of the Grantee presented by this Agreement.  The Grantee will use its best efforts to fully 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 61D3976D-E81D-4E0C-B302-24291BD61972
April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 

Page 76 of 199



  5 

 

consider such appropriation and the Parties understand that Board is relying upon fair and full 

consideration of annual appropriation in its decision to extend its resources and the grant 

hereunder, and enter into this Agreement.  In the event that the Grantee fails to appropriate 

sufficient funds to meet the obligations of this Agreement, the Grantee shall provide notice to the 

Board of the specific reason(s) for any decision not to appropriate funding.  Grantee’s 

administrative staff shall notify the Board of any recommendation not to fund or to partially fund 

the annual appropriation necessary to fulfill Grantee’s obligations hereunder.   

 

13. Public Access.  Grantee agrees, for itself and its successors in interest, to allow 

reasonable public access to the Project for the term specified in Section 12.  Grantee may 

temporarily close such public access for construction, maintenance, emergency situations, or 

other reasonable purposes. 

 

14. Compliance with Regulatory Requirements and Federal and State Mandates.  

Grantee hereby assumes responsibility for compliance with all regulatory requirements in all 

applicable areas, including but not limited to nondiscrimination, worker safety, local labor 

preferences, preferred vendor programs, equal employment opportunity, use of competitive 

bidding, permits, approvals, and other similar requirements.  To the extent permitted by law, 

Grantee will indemnify and hold the Board harmless from any liability for any failure to comply 

with any such applicable requirements. 

 

15. Nondiscrimination.  During the performance of this Agreement, Grantee and its 

contractors, subcontractors and agents shall not unlawfully discriminate against any employee 

or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, physical 

handicap, medical condition, marital status, age or sex, or any other basis prohibited by local, 

state or federal law.  Grantee and its contractors shall ensure that the evaluation and treatment of 

their employees and applicants for employment are free of such discrimination.  Further, during 

the performance of this Agreement, Grantee and anyone acting on behalf of Grantee shall not 

engage in any unlawful discrimination in permitting access and use of the Project. 

 

16. Publicity and Project Information.  
 

a. Grantee shall erect and maintain a sign at a prominent location on the Project site 

acknowledging the assistance of Great Outdoors Colorado and the Colorado Lottery.  GOCO 

will provide such signs at no cost to Grantee.  Alternatively, GOCO will provide reproducible 

samples of its logo to Grantee for custom signs. 

 

 i. GOCO shall approve in advance the design of any permanent sign materially 

varying from the signs provided by GOCO.  To obtain such approval, Grantee shall submit to 

GOCO plans describing the number, design, placement, and wording of signs and placards. Plans 

shall be submitted to the Board for review and approval prior to completion of the Project. 

 

 ii. The Board may withhold Final Payment pending evidence of placement of 

permanent signage. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 61D3976D-E81D-4E0C-B302-24291BD61972
April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 

Page 77 of 199



  6 

 

b. Grantee shall acknowledge Board funding in all publicity issued by it concerning the 

Project. 

 

c. Grantee shall cooperate with the Board or the Board’s designee in advance in preparing 

public information pieces related to the Project. 

 

d. Grantee shall give the Board the right and opportunity to use information gained from the 

Project. 

 

e. Grantee shall give the Board a minimum 30 days’ notice of Project grand openings, 

dedications, or other events. 

 

f. Grantee shall give timely notice of the Project, its inauguration, significance, and 

completion to the local members of the Colorado General Assembly, members of the board of 

county commissioners of the county or counties in which the Project is located, as well as to 

other appropriate public officials. 

 

g. Grantee shall provide quality digital photographs or printed photographs, if unable to 

provide digital photographs (collectively, “Photographs”) of the completed Project with the Final 

Report.  For the avoidance of doubt, all Photographs taken by Grantee of the Project constitutes a 

“work made for hire” pursuant to the U.S. copyright law (17 U.S.C. Section 201(b)) Grantee 

agrees that all copyrights and other property rights, in the Photographs developed by Grantee in 

conjunction with the Project are further owned by GOCO and Grantee hereby forever and 

irrevocably assigns to GOCO, without further consideration, all right, title and interest in such 

copyrights and other proprietary rights.  Grantee agrees that GOCO, its successors and assigns, 

shall have the exclusive right to file copyright applications in the United States and throughout 

the world to the Photographs, or any portion thereof, in the name of GOCO.  Grantee hereby 

agrees that GOCO, its successors and assigns may act as attorney-in-fact to execute any 

documents that GOCO deems necessary to record this grant with the United States Copyright 

Office or elsewhere.  Grantee agrees to execute any and all documents reasonably requested by 

GOCO to enforce its rights under this provision. 

 

h. At no time shall Grantee represent in any manner to the public or to any party that it is 

affiliated with GOCO or acting on behalf of GOCO. 

 

17. Liability. 

 

a. Grantee shall be responsible for, and to the extent permitted by law (including any 

constitutional or statutory limitations on the ability of a governmental entity to provide 

indemnification), indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Board, its officers, agents and 

employees from any and all liabilities, claims, demands, damages or costs (including reasonable 

legal fees) resulting from, growing out of, or in any way connected with or incident to Grantee’s 

performance of this Agreement.  Grantee hereby waives any and all rights to any type of express 

or implied indemnity or right of contribution from the State of Colorado, the Board, its members, 

officers, agents or employees, for any liability resulting from, growing out of, or in any way 

connected with or incident to this Agreement.  Grantee acknowledges that Grantee is the owner 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 61D3976D-E81D-4E0C-B302-24291BD61972
April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 

Page 78 of 199



  7 

 

of the Project and the Property upon which it is located, or has control of the Project and the 

Property, and that GOCO neither possesses nor controls the Project, the Property, nor the 

operations of the Project. 

 

b. Anything else in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, no term or condition of 

this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as a waiver, either express or implied, of any of 

the immunities, rights, benefits or protection provided to the Board under the Colorado 

Governmental Immunity Act (“CGIA”) as amended or as may be amended in the future 

(including, without limitation, any amendments to such statute, or under any similar statute 

which is subsequently enacted).  This provision may apply to Grantee if Grantee qualifies for 

protection under the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. §24-10-101 et seq.  The 

Board and Grantee understand and agree that liability for claims for injuries to persons or 

property arising out of the negligence of the Board, its members, officials, agents and employees 

may be controlled and/or limited by the provisions of the CGIA.  The parties agree that no 

provision of this Agreement shall be construed in such a manner as to reduce the extent to which 

the CGIA limits the liability of the Board, its members, officers, agents and employees.  

 

18. Audits and Accounting.  Grantee shall maintain standard financial accounts, 

documents, and records relating to the use, management, and operation of the Project.  The 

accounts, documents, and records related to the Project shall be retained by Grantee for not less 

than five (5) years following the date of disbursement of funds under this Agreement.  The 

Board, or its designated agent, shall have the right, upon reasonable notice to Grantee, to audit 

the books and records of Grantee which pertain to the Project and to the use and disposition of 

the Grant.  While Grantee is not required to use GAAP (Generally Accepted Accounting 

Principles), Grantee shall use reasonable and appropriate accounting systems in maintaining the 

required records hereunder. 

 

19. Inspection.  Throughout the term of this Agreement, GOCO shall have the right to 

inspect the Project to ascertain compliance with this Agreement. 

 

20. Withdrawal of Board Funding; Termination of Agreement. Anything else in this 

Agreement or otherwise to the contrary notwithstanding, the Board may withdraw, in whole or 

in part, the Grant and/or terminate this Agreement, and/or seek a refund of payments already 

made if the Board determines in its discretion that: 

 

a.  facts have arisen or situations have occurred that fundamentally alter the expectations of 

the parties or make the purposes for the Grant as contemplated infeasible or impractical; 

 

b. any material modifications in the scope or nature of the Project have occurred from that 

which was presented in the Project Application and such material modifications have not 

received the prior written approval of GOCO; 

 

c. any statement or representation made by Grantee in the Project Application, this 

Agreement, the Progress Report, the Final Report, or otherwise  is untrue, inaccurate or 

incomplete in any material respect; 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 61D3976D-E81D-4E0C-B302-24291BD61972
April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 

Page 79 of 199



  8 

 

d. the results of GOCO’s review of the Progress Report, or the Final Report are not 

acceptable to GOCO; 

 

e. the Project will not or cannot be completed by the Completion Date or any extensions 

granted thereto or delays in the implementation of the Project have occurred which, in the 

Board’s judgment, make the Project impracticable; 

 

f. the Project will not or cannot be completed within the Budget or any approved 

modifications, or the total Project cost and/or Grantee’s matching funding are reduced;  

 

g. title to or encumbrances against the Property are or become such that Grantee is unable to 

complete the Project, or the Project and/or the Property are or become unavailable for public use. 

 

21. Breach. 

 

a. In the event that Grantee breaches any of the terms, covenants, representations, or 

conditions of this Agreement, the Board may elect to enforce any and all remedies available at 

law or in equity, including without limitation, any of the following: 

 

 i. Prior to payment of Grant:   

 

A. Withdraw the Grant and terminate this Agreement; and, 

 

B. Deny Grantee eligibility for participation in future Board grants, loans or 

projects. 

 

 ii. After payment (partial or full) of Grant: 

 

A. Deny Grantee eligibility for participation in future Board grants, loans or 

projects; 

 

B. Seek specific performance of Grantee’s obligations under this Agreement;  

 

C. Receive reimbursement in full of disbursement made under the Grant. 

 

b. The foregoing remedies are cumulative and may be exercised independently or in 

combination and are not exclusive to one another or to any other remedies available at law or in 

equity.  In the event GOCO must pursue any remedy hereunder and is the substantially 

prevailing party, GOCO shall be awarded its costs and reasonable legal fees, including costs of 

collection.  

 

22. Good Faith.  There is an obligation of good faith on the part of both parties, including 

the obligation to make timely communication of information which may reasonably be believed 

to be material to the other party. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 61D3976D-E81D-4E0C-B302-24291BD61972
April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 

Page 80 of 199



  9 

 

23. Assignment.  Grantee may not assign its rights under this Agreement without the 

consent of the Board, which consent shall be in the discretion of the Board.  Any assignment 

shall require that, at a minimum, the assignee is eligible to receive grants from the Board and 

assumes Grantee’s ongoing obligations under this Agreement.   

 

24. Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 

Colorado and venue for any dispute hereunder shall lie exclusively in the State Courts of the 

City and County of Denver.   

 

25. No Joint Venture.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create a joint 

venture, partnership, employer/employee or other relationship between the parties hereto other 

than independent contracting parties.  Except as permitted under the remedies provisions 

hereunder, neither party shall have the express or implied right to act for, on behalf of, or in the 

name of the other party. 
 

26. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof, is found to 

be invalid, the remainder of the provisions of this Agreement, or the application of such 

provision, other than those as to which it is found to be invalid, shall remain in full force and 

effect.    

 

27. Time is of the Essence.    Time is of the essence in this Agreement. 
 

28. Survival.   The terms and provisions of this Agreement and the parties’ covenants 

hereunder shall survive the funding of the Grant and the completion of the Project.   
 

29. Fax and Counterparts.   This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, 

each of which shall be an original, but all of which when taken together shall constitute one 

Agreement.  In addition, the parties agree to recognize signatures of this Agreement transmitted 

by telecopy or e-mail as if they were original signatures. 
 

30. Third Party Beneficiary.   The Board and Grantee hereby acknowledge and agree that 

this Agreement is intended only to cover the relative rights and obligations between the Board 

and Grantee, and that no third party beneficiaries are intended. 
 

31. Construction.   Each party hereto has reviewed and revised (or requested revisions of) 

this Agreement, and therefore, any usual rules of construction requiring that ambiguities are to 

be resolved against a particular party shall not be applicable in the construction and 

interpretation of this Agreement. 
 

32. Waiver.  The failure of either party to enforce a term hereof shall not be deemed a 

waiver of such term or right of enforcement as to that breach or any subsequent breach of the 

same, similar or different nature.  No waiver shall be enforceable hereunder unless signed by the 

party against whom the waiver is sought to be enforced. 
 

33. Entire Agreement.   Except as expressly provided herein, this Agreement constitutes 

the entire agreement of the parties.  No oral understanding or agreement not incorporated in this 

Agreement shall be binding upon the parties.  No changes to this Agreement shall be valid 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 61D3976D-E81D-4E0C-B302-24291BD61972
April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 

Page 81 of 199



  10 

 

unless made as an amendment to this contract, approved by the Board, and signed by the 

parties. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties by signature below of their authorized representatives 

execute this Agreement effective as of \d3\. 

 

STATE BOARD OF THE GREAT GRANTEE:   

OUTDOORS COLORADO TRUST FUND  City of Salida 

 

By:         By: 

 

\s3\       \s1\ 

 

Chris Castilian      Title: \t1\ 

Executive Director    

GOCO Program Staff:            

Route Grant Agreement to                   

Executive Director for signature: 

 *NOTE* Signee should be same individual 

authorized to sign grant agreement in 

attached resolution (EXHIBIT B) 

 

 

\s2\ 

  

 

 

               

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 61D3976D-E81D-4E0C-B302-24291BD61972

City Administrator

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 82 of 199



 

EXHIBIT A 

Project Summary  
 

  

Rank: 21 

 

Overall Score: 85.42 

 

GOCO Staff Score: 82.5 

 

Reviewer Average: 88.33 

 
 

Applicant: City of Salida 

Project Title: Centennial Park Tennis/Pickleball Court Project 2017 

County: Chaffee 

Log #: 17040 
 
 

Funding Summary:  

 

 

 

 

Project Description:  
 

The City of Salida is requesting GOCO funds to design and install two post tension concrete tennis 

courts with lines for eight pickleball courts at Centennial Park. Additional amenities include all 

necessary sport related equipment, lights, fencing, windscreens, practice backboard, restrooms, storage 

and parking. The courts will be in an existing park and will serve the entire community by offering a 

unique opportunity where conflicts exist. 
 
 

Staff and Peer Reviewer Comments: 
 

The demand for the proposed project is clear, pickleball is growing at a rapid rate in Salida, and this 

project represents a logical solution to accommodate this demand.  
 

Local groups have raised $10,000 for this project demonstrating their commitment to the project.  

 

The public process that prioritized this project is robust and demonstrates that these courts are a high 

priority to community members. 

  

The partnerships with Chaffee County, the Peak to Peak Pickleball Club, and Salida Tennis Club show 

that this project is significant to the community and region.  

Applicant Funding $74,555 

Partner(s) Funding $27,255 

GOCO Grant Amount $240,000 

Total Project Cost $341,810 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 61D3976D-E81D-4E0C-B302-24291BD61972
April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 

Page 83 of 199



 

 

EXHIBIT B 

RESOLUTION (REQUIRED) 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 61D3976D-E81D-4E0C-B302-24291BD61972
April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 

Page 84 of 199



 

EXHIBIT C 

BUDGET

DocuSign Envelope ID: 61D3976D-E81D-4E0C-B302-24291BD61972
April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 

Page 85 of 199



 

EXHIBIT D 

OVERDUE GRANTS POLICY 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 61D3976D-E81D-4E0C-B302-24291BD61972
April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 

Page 86 of 199



 

 

 

 

GREAT OUTDOORS COLORADO 
POLICIES & PROCEDURES 

MANUAL 

Policy: 
Overdue 
Grants 

Approval Date: 
October 7, 

2016 

 
GOCO understands that there are unforeseen circumstances that may interfere with a grantee’s 

ability to complete a project by the project completion date set forth in the grant agreement. 

This procedure outlines the options available to grantees to extend a grant deadline. 

A) Staff Extensions: Staff can grant an extension for at least 90 days and up to the date 

of the next scheduled GOCO Board meeting beyond that 90 days. A grantee may 

only request one staff extension per project. 

a. The grantee must submit a request for a staff extension prior to the original 

project completion date via email or postal mail to the appropriate GOCO 

program staff.  

b. Requests must include the following: a) grantee name; b) project title; c) 

contract number from the grant agreement; d) original project completion date; 

e) percent of project completed to date or due diligence items completed to 

date for land acquisitions; f) reason for delay; g) estimated date of project 

completion or closing; and h) estimated date of final report submission to GOCO, 

if applicable.  

c. Staff will notify the grantee via email of the decision to grant or deny the request 

for a staff extension.  

B) Board Extensions: If the grantee needs more time than a staff extension would 

provide, the grantee must request a board extension. A grantee can request a 

second board extension if needed, although this is not a favorable action. 

a. The grantee must submit a request for a board extension prior to the original or 

staff-extended project completion date via email or postal mail. Requests must 

be sent to the appropriate GOCO program staff. 

b. Requests must include the following: a) grantee name; b) project title; c) 

contract number from the grant agreement; d) original project completion date 

and, if applicable, staff-extended project completion date; e) percent of project 

completed to date or due diligence items completed to date for land 

acquisitions; f) reason for delay; g) estimated date of project completion or 

closing; and h) estimated date of final report submission to GOCO, if applicable. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 61D3976D-E81D-4E0C-B302-24291BD61972
April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 

Page 87 of 199



 

 

c. The board will consider the request for board extension at its next scheduled 

meeting. Staff will notify the grantee via email of the board’s decision to grant or 

deny the request for a board extension.  

d. Requests for a second board extension must follow all of the procedures listed 

above.   

C) To request a staff or board extension, use the Project Extension Request form. 

 

D) GOCO expects the grantee to request the appropriate amount of time needed to 

complete the project. Failure to complete a project by the original due date, or by 

any extended due dates authorized by staff or the board, may result in the de-

authorization of the grant and a suspension from applying in future grant cycles.  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 61D3976D-E81D-4E0C-B302-24291BD61972
April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 

Page 88 of 199



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT E 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL (or other) AGREEMENT 

(If applicable) 

 

 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 61D3976D-E81D-4E0C-B302-24291BD61972
April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 

Page 89 of 199



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION       Meeting Date:April 18, 2017  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. 8.

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Administration  

PRESENTED BY: 

 Guy Patterson 

  

BY:    

 

 
ITEM:    

Additional Budget Appropriation for Community Funding 

BACKGROUND: 

This is a continuation of an issue first considered by the Council at the April 4, 2017 meeting.  Since that time, GARNA 
has contacted administration and asked that the requested funds for the Salida Community Garden be removed from the 
resolution.  The resolution, and this accompanying request for City Council Action, has been amended to reflect their 
request. 

At the March 21, 2017 Salida City Council meeting, Councilwoman Brown-Kovacic brought up the issue of two 

projects promoted by Greater Arkansas River Nature Association (GARNA) that were presented as a community 

funding request but denied for various reasons.  The only request now under consideration is to fund the Stage and 

Rail project ($1,000). Councilwoman Brown-Kovacic can speak more in-depth as to the reasons these projects were 

not funded at that time.  As mentioned above, since that time, GARNA has  

 

Also at the March 21 meeting, Councilwoman Brown-Kovacic recommended the Stage and Rail project be funded out 

of CTF funds.  Unfortunately, upon further research it was determined that CTF funds could not be used for this 

purpose.  According to the Colorado Department of Local Affairs website, CTF funding “…can be used for the 

acquisition, development, and maintenance of new conservation sites or for capital improvements or maintenance for 

recreational purposes on any public site.  A public site is defined by the department as a publicly owned site, or a site 

in which a public entity/local government holds an interest in land or water…”   
 

FISCAL NOTE: 

A total of $30,000 was set aside by Council in the budget to fund the community funding requests.  This amount was 

fully distributed at a prior Council meeting.  In order to fund this GARNA request, administration has presented a 

resolution appropriating additional $1,000 (line 10-56-5570, Community Support Grants) for the general fund.  If the 

Council chooses to not fund the request no motion can be made or the motion can be defeated.   
 
STAFF RECCOMENDATION: 
 

Suggested Motions: 
 

• (I move) to approve Resolution 2017-22 Additional Budget Appropriation for Community funding.  

Appropriation of additional sums of money in the General Fund for the 2017 budget for the amount of $1,000 

to fund the Greater Arkansas River Nature Association requests in the amount of $1,000 for the Stage and Rail 

project.  The funds to finance this supplemental appropriation will be available in the form of unassigned funds 

within the City general fund. 

• No Motion 
 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 90 of 199



CITY OF SALIDA 

RESOLUTION NO. 22 

(Series 2017) 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING ADDITIONAL SUMS OF MONEY IN THE GENERAL 

FUND FOR THE 2017 BUDGET 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Salida adopted the annual budget in accordance with the Local 

Government Budget Law on December 6, 2016; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Greater Arkansas River Nature Association (GARNA) requested funds from the 

community funding program for $1,000 for the Stage and Rail project but for various reasons were denied; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council chooses to provide funding for the aforementioned project at this 

time as to be indicated in Section 2 of this resolution; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City Council to comply with the “Local Government Law”. 

(C.R.S. 29-1-101 et.seq.).; and 

 

WHEREAS, funds to finance this supplemental appropriation will be available in the form of 

unassigned funds within the City general fund.  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, 

COLORADO AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  That the total appropriation for the 2017 budget in the General Fund expenditures be 

increased from $8,482,226 to $8,483,226. 

 

Section 2. That the following within the General Fund are to be increased as follows: 

 

Line Item #  Description Budgeted Adjusted 

10-56-5570 Community Support 

Grants 

$30,000 $31,000 

    

 

RESOLVED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of April, 2017. 

 

 

 

      ________________________________ 

      James LiVecchi, Mayor 

       

[SEAL] 

 

 

Attest:  

 

 

       

City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 91 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 92 of 199



CITY OF SALIDA 

RESOLUTION NO. 24 

(Series 2017) 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING ADDITIONAL SUMS OF MONEY IN THE GENERAL 

FUND FOR THE 2017 BUDGET 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Salida adopted the annual budget in accordance with the Local 

Government Budget Law on December 6, 2016; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has received a request from the Airport Manager of Harriet Alexander Field 

for $20,000 to participate in the construction of an additional taxiway, and 

 

WHEREAS, Citizen O.A. Pesnell has contributed $30,000 and Chaffee County has committed to 

contribute $20,000, and   

 

WHEREAS, the City Council chooses to provide funding for the aforementioned project at this 

time as to be indicated in Section 2 of this resolution; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City Council to comply with the “Local Government Law”. 

(C.R.S. 29-1-101 et.seq.).; and 

 

WHEREAS, funds to finance this supplemental appropriation will be available in the form of 

unassigned funds within the City general fund.  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, 

COLORADO AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  That the total appropriation for the 2017 budget in the General Fund expenditures be 

increased from $8,482,226 to $8,503,226. 

 

Section 2. That the following within the General Fund are to be increased as follows: 

 

Line Item #  Description Budgeted Adjusted 

10-56-6002-3 Land Improvements $0 $20,000 

    

 

RESOLVED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of April, 2017. 

 

 

 

      ________________________________ 

      James LiVecchi, Mayor 

       

[SEAL] 

 

 

Attest:  

 

 

       

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 93 of 199



City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 94 of 199



  

9785 Maroon Circle \ Suite 400 \ Centennial, CO 80112 

O 303‐721‐9292 \ F 303‐721‐0563 \ burnsmcd.com 

April 4, 2017 
 
Mr. Zech Papp 
Airport Manager 
Salida Airport ‐ Harriet Alexander Airfield 
104 Crestone Avenue 
P.O. Box 699 
Salida, CO 81201 
 
Re:  Fee to Provide Professional Services ‐ Revised 

Airfield Taxilane Extension 
 
Dear Mr. Papp: 
 
General 
Burns & McDonnell is pleased to present our fee proposal for Engineering Services for the Airfield 
Taxilane Extension project at Salida Airport ‐ Harriet Alexander Field.  Based on review of the 
information you have provided in our correspondence, we are providing our understanding of the scope 
of work and associated fees as demonstrated in the following paragraphs. 
 
Project Definition 
A new T‐Hangar is proposed at the south east of the airport, directly south of the fuel pad and taxilane 
area.  The T‐Hangar will be located within the existing hangar area already developed.  A new taxilane 
extension and apron will be required to access the new T‐Hangar building.  As noted, this taxilane will 
not follow the standard submittal process to meet the FAA criteria.  The pavement design, object free 
area, safety area, and markings will however follow the current FAA Advisory Circulars as applicable.     
 
The project scope of work for the immediate contract is as follows: 
 
Basic Services 

A. Work items will include the following: 
1. Construction Safety and Phasing Plan – The CSPP will include in general the following items: 

a. Safety requirements 
b. Safety and phasing drawing 

2. Construction Specifications: 
a. General, special and technical specifications in compliance with FAA guidelines and Sponsor 

requirements. 
3. Construction Drawings: 

a. Plans to graphically depict the design in detail including: title sheet, legend/general notes 
sheet;  data; overall project layout; safety/traffic/operations plan; pavement layout, marking 
plan and seeding plan; and other construction plans and details that be necessary to 
properly bid and construct the project. 

4. Bidding and Bid Evaluation – The IFC set created will be used as the Bid Documents, no Bid 
Evaluation will be completed in this scope. 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 95 of 199



 
April 4, 2017 
Page 2 

 
Special Services *OPTIONAL* 
 

A. The engineer will assist with project administration and will prepare necessary documents 
including grant application, certifications, construction contracts, bond forms, construction 
notices, periodic contractor pay requests, engineering invoices, Request for Reimbursement 
forms, change orders, final construction report, and other paperwork as may be necessary to 
successfully complete the project.  
 

B. Construction inspection for this project is anticipated to take 3 full‐time calendar days during 
the construction phase. Additionally, the project will require a pre‐construction conference and 
final inspection. Construction inspection for this project is anticipated to require one (1) field 
engineer on an as‐needed basis to not exceed 3 calendar days. The inspector will make three 
supervisory visits to the construction site (preconstruction conference & final inspection) from 
our Denver office.  
 

C. As a part of the project closeout, completion of punch list and warranty items will be 
coordinated and record drawings will be prepared and distributed.   

 
Schedule 
 

A. The anticipated duration for the design activities for this project is anticipated to be 
approximately three (3) weeks. 

B. The anticipated overall duration of the project, including construction phase & project closeout 
services, is anticipated to be four (4) months. 
 

Assumptions and Clarifications 
A. Chaffee County/Owner will provide topographic survey for the project site. 
B. Drawings and specifications will meet FAA Advisory Circular criteria, but FAA submittals and 

ultimate approval will not be required for this project scope. 
C. A modification to standard will be required from the FAA if this taxilane is to ever be maintained 

with federal monies.  
D. Chaffee County/Owner will provide construction services and material testing services, unless 

Option is granted for BMcD to perform these services. 
 

Contractual Terms & Conditions 
We propose to execute this work under our existing Professional Services Agreement with Chaffee 
County/City of Salida.  The engineering agreement will be split into two items: Lump Sum Basic Services 
(Design, Specifications, and Bidding/Negotiation) and Optional ‐ Special Services (Contracting, 
Construction, and Project Closeout).  
 
 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 96 of 199



 
April 4, 2017 
Page 3 

 
 
Fee Proposal 
Burns & McDonnell’s estimated costs for these services are as follows: 
 
Basic Services: 

 Detailed Design ‐ $6,800.00 
TOTAL BASIC SERVICES     $6,800.00 

 
*Optional* Special Services: 

 Construction Phase Services ‐ $8,000.00  
TOTAL SPECIAL SERVICES       $8,000.00 

 
This includes labor, travel, and miscellaneous expenses to complete the project.  For a detailed summary 
of hours and costs, please see the Engineering Services Cost Proposals summaries attached. 
 
Thank you for giving us the opportunity to provide our proposal for this exciting project at Salida Airport 
‐ Harriet Alexander Field. Please don’t hesitate to contact me if you have any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Nick Tessitore, P.E. 
Project Manager  
303‐474‐2213 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 97 of 199



DERIVATION OF CONSULTANT PROJECT COSTS

DESIGN PHASE 

TAXILANE EXTENSION

SALIDA, CO

TAXILANE EXTENSION

BASIC & SPECIAL SERVICES

April 4, 2017

1 DIRECT SALARY COSTS:

               TITLE                            HOURS         RATE/HOUR

Office Field Contract

Project Manager 2.0 $56.16 $112.33 $0.00 $0.00

Assoc. Civil Engineer 0.0 $59.18 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Sr. Civil Engineer 29.0 $56.16 $1,628.74 $0.00 $0.00

Staff Civil Engineer 0.0 $50.73 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Assist. Civil Engineer 0.0 $42.58 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Sr. Electrical Engineer 0.0 $50.73 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Staff Electrical Engineer 0.0 $46.20 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Sr. Technician 0.0 $42.58 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Staff Technician 0.0 $33.21 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Field Engineer (Regular) 0.0 $46.20 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Field Engineer (Secondar 0.0 $42.58 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Clerical 0.0 $17.82 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

31.00

          Total Direct Salary Costs $1,741.06 $0.00 $0.00

2 LABOR AND GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD:

          Percentage of Direct Salary Costs   @ 201.07% Office $3,500.76

          Percentage of Direct Salary Costs   @ 144.76% Field $0.00

          Percentage of Direct Salary Costs   @ 75.85%Contract $0.00

3 SUBTOTAL:

          Items 1 and 2 $5,241.82 $0.00 $0.00

4 PROFIT:

10.00%            of Item 3 Subtotal $524.18 $0.00 $0.00

$5,766.00 $0.00 $0.00

5 OUT-OF-POCKET EXPENSES:

a. Transportation (Office 

Staff) 454.00 Miles   @ $0.575 

/ Mile  

= $261.05 

b. Transportation (Field 

Staff) 0.00 Miles @ $0.58 / Mile = $0.00 

c. Expense (meals) 

office (per day) 1.00 days @ $46.00 / day= $46.00 

d. Expense (lodging) 

office (per day) 0.00 days @ $83.00 / day= $0.00 

e. Expense field (meals) 

: per day 0.00 days   @ $46.00 / day  = $0.00 

f. Expense field (lodging) 

: per day 0.00 days   @ $83.00 / day  = $0.00 

g. Comp. hrs: (N/A) 0.00 Hours @ $0.00 / Hour = $0.00

h. Comp. hrs: (N/A) 0.00 Hours @ $0.00 / Hour = $0.00

i. Materials and Supplies = $727.00 $0.00 $0.00

          Total Out-of-Pocket Expenses $1,034.05 $0.00 $0.00

6 SUBCONTRACT COSTS:

          a.  Surveyor: = $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

          b.  Material Testing: = $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

          c.  Field Support: = $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

          d.  Other: = $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

7 MAXIMUM TOTAL FEE:

                   

          Items 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 $6,800.05 $0.00 $0.00

TOTAL:

Element 2

DESIGN PHASE 

                    COST ($)                    

Subtotal

DESIGN PHASE $6,800.05 

Subtotal

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 98 of 199



DERIVATION OF CONSULTANT PROJECT COSTS

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

TAXILANE EXTENSION

SALIDA, CO

TAXILANE EXTENSION

BASIC & SPECIAL SERVICES

April 4, 2017

1 DIRECT SALARY COSTS:

               TITLE                            HOURS         RATE/HOUR

Office Field Contract

Project Manager 2.0 $56.16 $112.33 $0.00 $0.00

Assoc. Civil Engineer 0.0 $59.18 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Sr. Civil Engineer 1.0 $56.16 $56.16 $0.00 $0.00

Staff Civil Engineer 0.0 $50.73 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Assist. Civil Engineer 6.0 $42.58 $255.45 $0.00 $0.00

Sr. Electrical Engineer 0.0 $50.73 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Staff Electrical Engineer 0.0 $46.20 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Sr. Technician 0.0 $42.58 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Staff Technician 0.0 $33.21 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Field Engineer (Regular) 40.0 $46.20 $0.00 $1,847.95 $0.00

Field Engineer (Secondar 0.0 $42.58 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Clerical 0.0 $17.82 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

49.00

          Total Direct Salary Costs $423.94 $1,847.95 $0.00

2 LABOR AND GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD:

          Percentage of Direct Salary Costs   @ 201.07% Office $852.42

          Percentage of Direct Salary Costs   @ 144.76% Field $2,675.10

          Percentage of Direct Salary Costs   @ 75.85%Contract $0.00

3 SUBTOTAL:

          Items 1 and 2 $1,276.36 $4,523.05 $0.00

4 PROFIT:

10.00%            of Item 3 Subtotal $127.64 $452.31 $0.00

$1,404.00 $4,975.36 $0.00

5 OUT-OF-POCKET EXPENSES:

a. Transportation (Office 

Staff) 0.00 Miles   @ $0.575 / Mile  = $0.00 

b. Transportation (Field 

Staff) 702.00 Miles @ $0.58 / Mile = $403.65 

c. Expense (meals) 

office (per day) 1.00 days @ $46.00 / day= $46.00 

d. Expense (lodging) 

office (per day) 0.00 days @ $83.00 / day= $0.00 

e. Expense field (meals) 

: per day 3.00 days   @ $46.00 / day  = $138.00 

f. Expense field (lodging) 

: per day 3.00 days   @ $83.00 / day  = $249.00 

g. Comp. hrs: (N/A) 0.00 Hours @ $0.00 / Hour = $0.00

h. Comp. hrs: (N/A) 0.00 Hours @ $0.00 / Hour = $0.00

i. Materials and Supplies = $0.00 $784.16 $0.00

          Total Out-of-Pocket Expenses $46.00 $1,574.81 $0.00

6 SUBCONTRACT COSTS:

          a.  Surveyor: = $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

          b.  Material Testing: = $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

          c.  Field Support: = $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

          d.  Other: = $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

7 MAXIMUM TOTAL FEE:

                   

          Items 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 $1,450.00 $6,550.17 $0.00

TOTAL:

Element 4

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

                    COST ($)                    

Subtotal

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES $8,000.17 

Subtotal

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 99 of 199



7

0

.

0

'

7

0

.

0

'

3

9

.

5

'

3

9

.

5

'

7

9

.

0

'

4

2

.

1

'

3

9

.

5

'

4

7

.

2

'

6

5

.

5

'

3

2

.

8

'

3

2

.

7

'

3

4

.

5

'

4

0

.

0

'

5

4

.

0

'

1

9

9

.

0

'

date

designed

project

contract

SK -

C
O

P
Y

R
I
G

H
T

 
©

 

12/15/2016

N. TESSITORE

SALIDA AIRPORT

TAXILANE SKETCH

OPTION 1

87315

EXHIBIT

2
0

1
6

B
U

R
N

S
 
&

 
M

c
D

O
N

N
E

L
L

 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

,
 
I
N

C
.

PROPOSED TAXILANE

PROPOSED TAXILANE OBJECT FREE AREA (OFA)

PROPOSED T-HANGAR BOUNDARY

T

A

X

I

W

A

Y

 

O

F

A

T

A

X

I

W

A

Y

 

O

F

A

T

A

X

I

L

A

N

E

N

0

SCALE IN FEET

50' 100'

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 100 of 199



ENGINEER'S ESTIMATED COST OF CONSTRUCTION

HARRIET ALEXANDER FIELD

SALIDA, CO

PROJECT NO.

Burns & McDonnell No. 

April 2017

TOTAL 

STATE COST

TOTAL 

SPONSOR COST

UNIT COST TOTAL UNITS TOTAL TOTAL

Base Bid

1 P-100 Mobilization LS 1 $3,147.75 $3,147.75 1.00 $2,832.98 $157.39 $157.39

2 P-101 Surface Preparation SY 1,000 $5.00 $5,000.00 1,000.00 $4,500.00 $250.00 $250.00

3 P-152 Excavation/Embankment CY 325 $8.00 $2,600.00 325.00 $2,340.00 $130.00 $130.00

4 P-154 Subbase Course SY 1,000 $5.00 $5,000.00 1,000.00 $4,500.00 $250.00 $250.00

5 P-209 6" Crushed Aggregate Base Course SY 1,000 $10.00 $10,000.00 1,000.00 $9,000.00 $500.00 $500.00

6 P-401 4" Hot Mix Asphalt TON 250 $125.00 $31,250.00 250.00 $28,125.00 $1,562.50 $1,562.50

7 P-603 Bituminous Tack Coat GAL 200 $6.00 $1,200.00 200.00 $1,080.00 $60.00 $60.00

8 P-620 6" Taxiway Pavement Marking (yellow - reflectorized) SF 185 $3.00 $555.00 185.00 $499.50 $27.75 $27.75

9 T-901 Seeding/Mulching AC 0.10 $3,500.00 $350.00 0.10 $315.00 $17.50 $17.50

10 L-125 Taxiway Reflectorized Markers EA 14 $500.00 $7,000.00 14.00 $6,300.00 $350.00 $350.00

Total $66,102.75 $59,492.48 $3,305.14 $3,305.14

SCHEDULE I: TAXILANE EXTENSION

TOTAL PROJECT COST
TOTAL

AIP ELIGIBLE COST
Estimated 

Quantity
UnitsDescription of WorkFAA Item No.

Item 

No.

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 101 of 199

ntessitore
Text Box
Total (without reflectors) = 

ntessitore
Text Box
$59,102.75



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION       Meeting Date:  April 18, 2017  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. 10.

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development Department 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Beverly Kaiser 

  

BY:    

 

 
ITEM:   Ordinance 2017-10 Snyder Annexation 1st Reading, An ordinance of the City Council for the City of 
Salida, Colorado, approving the annexation of 8.14 acres of land to the City of Salida. 

BACKGROUND: The request is to pass on first reading an ordinance annexing the Snyder parcel.  

APPLICANTS: 
Jodie and Barry Snyder, 232 Helena Circle, Littleton, CO 80124  
 
LOCATION: 
The subject property is located at 1139 and 1141 Highway 50 adjacent to and south of the Salida Vineyard 
Christian Fellowship property. The complete description of the property is included with the ordinance. 
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW: 
Below is a brief summary of the process for annexations, proposal for the site, and the Planning Commission’s 

recommendation for the Annexation.  

To annex a property, the City must follow the steps and procedures outlined in the Colorado Revised Statutes. 
The final steps for annexation are passing an ordinance annexing the parcel into the City and then passing an 
ordinance zoning the property. The City Council reviewed and approved Resolution 2017-16 on March 21, 
2017, which found the Snyder petition for annexation in substantial compliance with state statutes and 
scheduled a public hearing for May 2, 2017. 
 
The Planning Commission reviewed the annexation application on March 27, 2017. The staff report is attached 
to this memo.  
 

FISCAL NOTE: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends passing Ordinance No. 2017-10 to annex the Snyder 

property on first reading with the following conditions: 

1. That the applicant connects to the City water main with the required number of taps located adjacent to 
Highway 50 along the northern boundary of the property for the purpose of domestic water service. The 
applicant will limit the use of the existing well to permitted non-domestic purposes. 

2. That the applicant dedicate an easement for a ten (10) foot wide non-motorized public trail at a location 
approved by the City south of the South Arkansas River in conformance with Salida Regional 
Transportation Plan adopted by the City on Nov. 3, 2009.  Such easement shall include sufficient width 
for trail maintenance.  The timing, responsibility, and means of future trail construction will be defined 
in the annexation agreement to be reviewed and approved by the City Council. 

3. That the applicant enter into an annexation agreement to implement the preceding conditions of 
approval. 

That the annexation plat include a plat note stating “a future ten (10) foot wide easement shall be established for 

a non-motorized public trail at a location to be approved by the City of Salida with sufficient width for  trail 

maintenance at a date determined by the City.” 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 102 of 199



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION       Meeting Date:  April 18, 2017  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. 10.

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development Department 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Beverly Kaiser 

  

BY:    

 

 

Suggested Motions: A Council person should make a motion “to approve Ordinance No. 10, 2017, An 

ordinance of the City Council for the City of Salida, Colorado approving the annexation of a 8.14 acre parcel of 

land to the City of Salida known as the Snyder Annexation, setting the public hearing date for May 2, 2017, and 

ordering the ordinance to be published in full.” 

Followed by a second and then roll call and vote. 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 103 of 199



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

ORDINANCE NO. 10 

SERIES OF 2017 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO ANNEXING TO THE 

CITY OF SALIDA A CERTAIN TRACT OF LAND IN UNINCORPORATED CHAFFEE 

COUNTY KNOWN AS THE SNYDER ANNEXATION. 

 

WHEREAS, on January 14, 2017, Barry and Jodie Snyder filed a General Development 

Application (the “Petition”) to commence proceedings to annex to the City of Salida (the “City”) 

a certain unincorporated tract of land comprised of 8.14 acres located at 1139 and 1141 U.S. 

Highway 50 in the County of Chaffee, State of Colorado, and being more particularly described 

on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. §31-12-108, the City Council by Resolution No. 16, 

Series of 2017 specified that the City Council would hold a hearing on the proposed annexation 

at its regular meeting on May 2, 2017, commencing at the hour of 6 p.m. in the City Council 

Chambers, 448 East First Street, Salida, Colorado; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. §31-12-108 to -110, the City Council on May 2, 2017 

held a duly-noticed public hearing to consider the proposed annexation; and 

 

 WHEREAS, notice of such hearing was published on ________, ________, _______, 

and ________, 2017 in The Mountain Mail newspaper; and  

 

WHEREAS, C.R.S. §31-12-105(1)(e) provides that prior to the completion of any 

annexation within a three-mile area, the municipality shall have in place a plan for that area, 

which generally describes the proposed location, character, and extent of streets, subways, 

bridges, waterways, waterfronts, parkways, playgrounds, squares, parks, aviation fields, other 

public ways, grounds, open spaces, public utilities and terminals for water, light, sanitation, 

transportation and power to be provided by the municipality and the proposed land uses for the 

area; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City hereby sets forth its Findings of Fact, Determinations, and 

Conclusions with regard to annexation to the City of the Snyder Annexation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City currently has in place a Comprehensive Plan and other long-range 

planning documents which constitute the City's annexation plan. 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF SALIDA, COLORADO, THAT: 

 

1. The City incorporates the foregoing recitals as findings and determinations by the 

City Council. 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 104 of 199



 

2. The annexation to the City of the Snyder Annexation described on Exhibit A is 

hereby approved, and such real property is hereby annexed to and made a part of the City of 

Salida, with the following conditions of approval: 
 

1. That the applicant connects to the City water main with the required number of taps 

located adjacent to Highway 50 along the northern boundary of the property for the 

purpose of domestic water service. The applicant will limit the use of the existing well to 

permitted non-domestic purposes. 

2. That the applicant dedicate an easement for a ten (10) foot wide non-motorized public 

trail at a location approved by the City south of the South Arkansas River in conformance 

with Salida Regional Transportation Plan adopted by the City on Nov. 3, 2009.  Such 

easement shall include sufficient width for trail maintenance.  The timing, responsibility, 

and means of future trail construction will be defined in the annexation agreement to be 

reviewed and approved by the City Council. 

3. That the applicant enter into an annexation agreement to implement the preceding 

conditions of approval. 

4. That the annexation plat include a plat note stating “a future ten (10) foot wide easement 

shall be established for a non-motorized public trail at a location to be approved by the 

City of Salida with sufficient width for  trail maintenance at a date determined by the 

City.” 

3. Within ten (10) days after final publication of this Ordinance, the City Clerk of 

the City of Salida, Colorado, on behalf of the City shall: 

 

A. File one (1) copy of the Annexation Map and the original of this Annexation 

Ordinance in the office of the City Clerk of the City of Salida, Colorado; 

 

B. File for recording three (3) certified copies of this Annexation Ordinance and 

three (3) copies of the Annexation Map, containing a legal description of the 

annexation parcel, with the County Clerk and Recorder of Chaffee County, 

Colorado, with directions to the Chaffee County Clerk and Recorder to file 

one certified copy of this Annexation Ordinance and one copy of the 

Annexation Map with the Division of Local Government of the Department of 

Local Affairs of the State of Colorado and one certified copy of this 

Annexation Ordinance and one copy of the Annexation Map with the 

Colorado Department of Revenue; and 

 

C. File one certified copy of this Annexation Ordinance and one copy of the 

Annexation Map in the office of the County Assessor of Chaffee County, 

Colorado. 

 

INTRODUCED ON FIRST READING, on April 18, 2017, ADOPTED and ORDERED 

PUBLISHED IN FULL in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Salida by the City 

Council on the ___________ , 2017 and set for second reading and public hearing on the 2nd day 

of May, 2017. 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 105 of 199



INTRODUCED ON SECOND READING, FINALLY ADOPTED and ORDERED 

PUBLISHED IN FULL, by the City Council on the 2nd day of May, 2017. 

 

 

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

 

 

  

James LiVecchi, Mayor 

 [SEAL] 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

  

City Clerk/Deputy Clerk 

 

PUBLISHED IN FULL in the Mountain Mail after First Reading on the _____ day of 

__________, 2017, and BY TITLE ONLY, after final adoption on the ____day of __________, 

2017. 

 

 

  

City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 106 of 199



Jodie and Barry Snyder 
232 Helena Circle, Littleton, CO | 303-842-2379 | jodie.a.daley@gmail.com 

1/17/2017 

City of Salida 
448 East First Street, Suite 112 
Salida, CO 81201 

1139 and 1141 Hwy 50 – Annexation Package 

Hi, Bev: 

We appreciate your continued assistance with our annexation application. Following our discussions in 
2016, we are submitting this DRAFT package for your review. It includes a single copy of:  

• General Development Application and supporting attachments
• Annexation Petition
• Annexation Plat
• Narrative
• Application Fee
• A list of adjoining property owners for public notice

We will provide 10 copies of these documents once they are finalized, pending City review. Please let us 
know if you have any questions. Is there any other information we need to include with our final package? 

We plan to submit the Petition for Exclusion from the South Arkansas Fire Protection District when 
annexation is complete. We also plan to provide the digital copy of the plat once it is finalized, pending 
City review.  

Thanks for your time. 

Sincerely, 

Jodie A. Snyder    and  Barry L. Snyder 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 107 of 199



General Development Application Form 03/09/15 

A. Applicant Information 

Name of Applicant:     

Mailing Address:         

Telephone Number:   FAX: 

Email Address:      

Power of Attorney/ Authorized Representative:   
(Provide a letter authorizing agent to represent you, include representative’s name, street and mailing address, 
telephone number, and FAX) 

B. Site Data 

Name of Development:    

Street Address:      

Legal Description: Lot________ Block _____ Subdivision____________ (attach description) 

Disclosure of Ownership: List all owners’ names, mortgages, liens, easements, judgments, contracts and agreements that 
run with the land. (May be in the form of a current certificate from a title insurance company, deed, ownership and 
encumbrance report, attorney’s opinion, or other documentation acceptable to the City Attorney)  

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION 
         448 East First Street, Suite 112 

Salida, CO 81201 
               Phone: 719-530-2626 Fax: 719-539-5271 

Email: planning@cityofsalida.com 

1. TYPE OF APPLICATION (Check-off as appropriate)
 Annexation 
 Pre-Annexation Agreement 
 Variance  
 Appeal Application (Interpretation) 
 Certificate of Approval 
 Creative Sign Permit 
 Historic Landmark/District 
 License to Encroach 
 Text Amendment to Land Use Code 
 Watershed Protection Permit 
 Conditional Use 

 Administrative Review: 
(Type) 

 Limited Impact Review: 
(Type) 

 Major Impact Review: 
(Type) 

 Other: 

2. GENERAL DATA  (To be completed by the applicant)

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

I certify that I have read the application form and that the information and exhibits herewith submitted are true and 
correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Signature of applicant/agent Date 

Signature of property owner   Date  1/17/2017  

Jodie and Barry Snyder

232 Helena Circle, Littleton, CO 80124

303-842-2379

jodie.a.daley@gmail.com

Greg Powell

Not applicable

1139 and 1141 E Hwy 50

✔

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 108 of 199

Jodie.Snyder
Line



Jodie and Barry Snyder 
232 Helena Circle, Littleton, CO | 303-842-2379 | jodie.a.daley@gmail.com 

1/17/2017 

City of Salida 
448 East First Street, Suite 112 
Salida, CO 81201 

1139 and 1141 Hwy 50 – Annexation Authorized Representative 

Dear City Staff: 

As a supplement to our General Development Application and in support of our request for annexation, 
we want to note that Greg Powell is an authorized representative.  

We authorize that Greg may represent us during this annexation process. Here is Greg’s contact 
information:  

Powell & Murphy, P.C.  
417 West 1st Street  
Salida, CO 81201 
Phone: 719-539-8604 
gregpowell@qwestoffice.net 

Thanks for your time. 

Sincerely, 

Jodie A. Snyder    and  Barry L. Snyder 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 109 of 199

mailto:gregpowell@qwestoffice.net


Jodie and Barry Snyder 
232 Helena Circle, Littleton, CO | 303-842-2379 | jodie.a.daley@gmail.com 

1/17/2017 

City of Salida 
448 East First Street, Suite 112 
Salida, CO 81201 

1139 and 1141 Hwy 50 – Disclosure of Ownership 

Dear City Staff: 

As a supplement to our General Development Application and in support of our request for annexation, 
this letter includes a disclosure of ownership.  

Barry L Snyder and Jodie A Snyder own this property. This property does not involve any mortgages, 
loans, liens, easements, judgments, contracts, or agreements that run with the land.  

Please let us know if you have any questions. Thanks for your time. 

Sincerely, 

Jodie A. Snyder    and  Barry L. Snyder 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 110 of 199



Annexation Application Page 3 of 8 5.25.12 

ANNEXATION PETITION 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, GREETINGS: 

The undersigned hereby petition(s) the City of Salida to annex to the City of Salida the territory 
shown on the map(s) attached hereto and described on the attachment hereto: 

This Petition is signed by the landowners qualified to sign.  It is intended that this Petition be a 
one hundred percent (100%) petition for annexation as described in C. R. S. 1973, Section 31-12-
107(l)(g), (as amended). 

In support of this petition, the undersigned state(s) and allege(s) as follows, to wit: 

1. That it is desirable and necessary that the above-described territory be annexed to the City of Salida.

2. That petitioners are landowners of one hundred percent (100%) of the territory, excluding streets
and alleys, herein proposed for annexation to the City of Salida.

3. That no less than one-sixth of the aggregate external boundaries of the above-described territory
hereby petitioned to the City of Salida is contiguous to the City limits of the City of Salida.

4. Accompanying this petition are two mylars and twenty copies of the annexation map.

5. That a community of interest exists between the above-described territory and the City of Salida,
and that the same is urban, or will be urbanized in the near future, and further that the said territory
is integrated or is capable of being integrated in the City of Salida.

6. That the above-described territory does not include any area which is the same or substantially the
same area in which an election for an annexation to the City of Salida, was held within the twelve
months preceding the filing of this petition.

7. That the above-described territory does not include any area included in another annexation
proceeding involving city other than the City of Salida.

8. That the above-described territory is not presently a part of any incorporated city, city and county,
or town.

9. That the above area described will (not) result in the detachment of the area from any school district
and the attachment of the same to another school district.

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 111 of 199



Annexation Application Page 4 of 8 5.25.12 

ANNEXATION PETITION 

"INSERT A" 

(Description of territory proposed for annexation) 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 112 of 199

jodie.snyder
Stamp



Annexation Application Page 5 of 8 5.25.12 

ANNEXATION PETITION 

This Section must be filled out if there are multiple properties/property owners petitioning annexation. 

Signature of Petitioners Requesting 
Annexation to the City of Salida, 

Colorado 

Date of 
Signature 
of Each 

Petitioner 

Mailing Address of each Petitioner Description of Property Included the Area 
Proposed for Annexation Owned by Each 

person Signing this Petition. (Attach separate 
sheet, if necessary) 

1/17/2017 232 Helena Circle, Littleton, CO 80124 Entire Property described in Insert A

1/17/2017 232 Helena Circle, Littleton, CO 80124 Entire Property described in Insert A

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 113 of 199



Annexation Application Page 6 of 8 5.25.12 

ANNEXATION PETITION 

CIRCULATOR'S AFFIDAVIT 

STATE OF COLORADO       ) 
   ) ss. 

COUNTY OF CHAFFEE       ) 

______________________________________________________________________ 
being first duly sworn, upon oath deposes and says that she/he was the circulator of the above and 
foregoing petition and that the signatures on said petition are the signatures of the persons whose 
names they purport to be. 

__________________________ 

Circulator 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this ________ day of _____________, A. D. 20___. 

Witness my hand and official seal.  My commission expires:  _____________________. 

___________________________________ 
Notary Public 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 114 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 115 of 199



Jodie and Barry Snyder 
232 Helena Circle, Littleton, CO | 303-842-2379 | jodie.a.daley@gmail.com 

1/17/2017 

City of Salida 
448 East First Street, Suite 112 
Salida, CO 81201 

1139 and 1141 Hwy 50 – Annexation Narrative 

Dear City Staff: 

As a supplement to our General Development Application here is a narrative with background on our 
property and our future intents and plans.  

The parcel in question is over eight acres total and is bisected by the South Arkansas River. 
Approximately five acres are located north of the river. The remaining three acres are located south of the 
river. The parcel is an enclave, surrounded by incorporated Salida on all four sides and City owned 
property on three of four sides.  

OUR FUTURE PLANS 
Here is an overview of our plans for the property and some additional background. We are not planning 
to subdivide this parcel and intend to keep the two residences and barn that currently exist. When we 
move on the property in the next few years, we plan to add onto the smaller residence and restore the 
barn to serve as our home. We will build a detached garage/workshop for our use and also maintain the 
other existing house as a full time rental. We plan to use a small part of the property as an urban, green-
house based aquaponics farm to produce a local, sustainable food source for Salida (including produce, 
fish, and eggs). We also plan to complete wetland and native habitat restoration and conservation in 
riparian and riverine areas of the property. 

PRE-ANNEXATION  
In January 2011, we completed a pre-annexation agreement with the City in order to connect to City 
sewer. We recently learned that our well is contaminated and now are requesting connection to City 
water, which the pre-annexation agreement indicates is a trigger for annexation. We have drafted an 
annexation agreement for the City’s review (e-mailed to Bev Kaiser on 1/18/16). This agreement 
addresses the trail and our concerns to protect the sensitive riparian ecosystem present on this property. 
That ecosystem is critical for fish and wildlife, water quality, and floodplain management. Additionally, 
the pre-annexation agreement included discussion about identifying a location for access to the three 
acres of property south of the river. That portion of the property is landlocked, with no direct access to CR 
104. Since that time, Madison House constructed an unpaved roadway near the southern edge of the 
property. Should that roadway be further improved in the future, we will coordinate with the City at that 
future time to discuss obtaining access to the southern three acres.    

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 116 of 199



ZONING 
We understand this property is a non-traditional property compared with many other City parcels. We 
would like the property to be zoned for residential mixed use, so that we are not precluded from 
completing our future plans. We also want confirmation from the City that we will be allowed to continue 
maintaining two separate residences on the property when a subdivision is not planned.  

ANNEXATION REVIEW STANDARDS 

1. Consider Costs and Benefits

This parcel is an enclave surrounded by City and was described in the pre-annexation agreement 
as being eligible for unilateral annexation. Benefits to the City of annexing this property include 
reducing acreage of unincorporated property within City boundaries and having control of land 
uses. 

2. Agreements

Two components of this property may be considered for the greater good. 

  - Dedication of a trail easement is planned. 

  - Restoration and conservation of natural habitat (both wetland and riparian zone) is planned. 

3. Providing Public Facilities and Services

This property is not planned for subdivision or development supporting additional residences 
beyond the current condition. The requirement for providing public facilities is not applicable. No 
extension of City utility lines would be necessary. 

4. Provide for Orderly Development of the City

This property is not planned for subdivision or development supporting additional residences 
beyond the current condition. The requirement for providing orderly development is not 
applicable.  

5. Implement Comprehensive Plan

This annexation supports the comprehensive plan by removing an enclave of county property 
from within City limits.  

6. Housing for the Community

This property is not planned for subdivision or development supporting additional residences 
beyond the current condition. The requirement for providing housing for the community is not 
applicable. 

Please let us know if you have any questions. Thanks for your time. 

Sincerely, 

Jodie A. Snyder    and  Barry L. Snyder 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 117 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 118 of 199



      PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

  
 

MEETING DATE: Monday, March 27, 2017   
  
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Snyder Annexation   
    
AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing    
  
 
REQUEST:  
The request is to annex to the City of Salida (the “City”) a certain unincorporated tract of land 
comprised of 8.14 acres located at 1139 and 1141 Highway 50 in the County of Chaffee, State of 
Colorado. 
                                                   
APPLICANT:  The applicants are Jodie and Barry Snyder of 232 Helena Circle, Littleton, CO. 
 
LOCATION:  The subject property is a certain unincorporated tract of land comprised of 8.14 
acres located at 1139 and 1141 Highway 50.  It has two addresses because it currently has two sewer 
taps.  The property is adjacent to the City of Salida on all sides; in other words it is an enclave of 
county property in the City.  The Vandaveer PD property surrounds the property along the southern 
west, south, and eastern boundaries.  The River Bend Addition subdivision is adjacent to the 
property on the northwest boundary.  Along the northern boundary 1.67 acres of property zoned 
commercial falls between the proposed annexation and Highway 50. A 37.97’ wide by 190.78’ long 
extension connects the property to Highway 50. The South Arkansas River bisects the property 
approximately in the middle portion.  The property is impacted by the Salida Regional 
Transportation Plan Trails Plan (map 9.3) which includes a trail along the South Arkansas River.   
 
Existing Land Use:  Currently the property contains two houses, a historic brick barn and cellar, 
two sheds, and a well house, all on the northern portion.  The property is already connected to the 
City sewer system via a pre-annexation agreement. South of the houses, the property drops off to 
the river, where it is then vacant open space. 
 
Surrounding Land Use:  North: Highway 50, Salida Vineyard Christian Fellowship, and Subway, 
East: predominantly vacant land, South:  open space and vacant land in Vandaveer PD, Northwest: 
commercial (mostly storage units), and Southwest: vacant land including the South Arkansas River, a 
portion of which is in the Vandaveer PD. 
 
Proposed Land Use:  The applicants state that the property is to remain in residential use with a 
small farming component.  They also state they would like the trail easement to be located south of 
the South Arkansas River where is can connect to the future open space and trail system planned for 
the Vandaveer PD. 
 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 119 of 199



Existing and Surrounding Zoning:  Currently the property is zoned COM (commercial) north of 
the river and RES (residential) south of the river in Chaffee County.  The existing zoning on the 
adjacent property within the City limits to the north and west (north of the river) is C-1 Commercial.  
The Vandaveer PD surrounds the property on the southern west, south, and eastern sides.  Within 
the Vandaveer PD, the zone districts include POS (Parks/Open Space) and VN (Vandaveer 
Neighborhood) to the south. 
 
Proposed Zoning:  The applicants are requesting residential mixed-use (RMU) zone to 
accommodate their desire to retain the residences (without subdivision) and use part of the property 
as an urban greenhouse-based aquaponics farm. 
 
PROCESS: 
An application for annexation is a multi-step process.  The application was accepted by the City 
Council, by adoption of Resolution No. 17, Series 2017 on March 21, 2017, and authorized to 
proceed with the annexation process.  A City Council public hearing is scheduled on April 18, 2017.   
 
The annexation application is addressed by the Planning Commission through a public hearing 
process.  The Commission shall review the annexation map and all required supportive information 
and shall submit a written recommendation to the City Council.  In its review of the application, the 
Commission shall focus on the standards for annexation contained in Chapter 16, Article IX, 
Annexation, of the Municipal Code.  Council has final decision-making authority in such 
applications.   
 
OBSERVATIONS: 

1. The application for annexation was submitted on January 17, 2017.  
 

2. The proposed annexation has greater than the required 1/6th contiguity (as required by State 
Statute CRS 31-12-108) with the municipal boundary of the City of Salida.  The entire perimeter 
of the property is contiguous to the City limits. 

 

3. The annexation property is under ownership of two people, Jodie and Barry Snyder, and the 
owners have signed the application for the annexation.  

 

4. The annexation property is currently zoned commercial (COM) and residential (RES) in Chaffee 
County.  The applicants are requesting RMU (residential mixed use) zoning. 

 

5. If annexed, the narrow extension of the property that connects to Highway 50 falls within the 
Highway 50 Corridor Overlay Zone (Section 16-5-60 of the Salida Land Use and Development 
Code). Adherence to the stipulations in this overlay will be required. 

 

6. The annexation plat illustrates a water line within the Highway 50 right of way just north of the 
private property and a sewer main crossing the northern extension of the property to the north.  
The property is already connected to the City sewer system. 

 

7. The property is a natural extension of the City’s municipal boundary and meets the legal 
requirements for annexation.  

 

8. The property is adjacent to Hwy 50 from which it can obtain its access. 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 120 of 199



 

9. The annexation of the property is consistent with the vision and goals set forth in the 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan.  The Comprehensive Plan (adopted April 16, 2013) states that 
“annexation allows the city an opportunity to expand its border, address deficiencies in available 
space for industrial, commercial or residential lands and may create financial opportunities for 
the city.”  The annexation of this property captures an enclave surrounded on sides by the City 
of Salida. 

 

10. The property falls within the area of one of the trails in the Trails Plan adopted as a part of the 
Salida Regional Transportation Plan on Nov. 3, 2009.  Dedication of an easement for a non-
motorized trail along the South Arkansas River is required as part of the annexation. 

 
REVIEW AGENCY COMMENTS 
Project review requests were sent to referral agencies on March 3, 2017 with a request for response 
by March 16, 2017. 
 
Finance Department – The Salida Finance Department responded that the two existing residences 
will require two water taps (as they already have two sewer taps with two addresses). 
 
Fire Department – The Salida Fire Department responded “no concerns.” 
 
Police Department –Terry Clark of the Salida Police Department responded that “I have no 
concerns at this time.” 
 
Public Works – David Lady of the Public Works Department responded “no concerns since not 
subdividing.  Suggest discussion with regarding future trail connection for Vandaveer south of river 
and location.” 
 
City Attorney- No comments have been received. 
 
Chaffee County – No comments have been received.   
 
RECOMMENDED FINDINGS: 

1. That the application meets the requirements of Article IX for annexations.  
 

2. That the applicant enter into an annexation agreement which will detail any issues or 
additional requirements negotiated and approved by the City Council, including, but not 
limited to conditions recommended by the Planning Commission.  

 
3. That adequate public facilities are available to serve the property. 

 
4. That the annexation provides for orderly development of the City by annexation of an area 

that is adjacent to the municipal boundary and serviced by the City for sewer, water and 
police and fire protection. 

 
5. That the annexation further implements the Comprehensive Plan and supports the vision 

and goals set forth therein. 
 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 121 of 199



6. That the annexation implements a portion of the Salida Regional Transportation Plan:  Trails 
Plan (map 9.3) creating opportunity for implementation of a portion of the South Arkansas 
River Trail. 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Based upon the observations, review standards, and findings outlined above, staff recommends the 
following: 
 
That the Commission recommend APPROVAL of the application to annex Snyder Annexation, a 
parcel of land comprised of 8.14 acres located at 1139 and 1141 Highway 50 described on the 
annexation plat, with the following conditions: 

1. That the applicant connects to the City water main with the required number of taps located 
adjacent to Highway 50 along the northern boundary of the property for the purpose of 
domestic water service. The applicant will limit the use of the existing well to permitted non-
domestic purposes. 

2. That the applicant dedicate an easement for a ten (10) foot wide non-motorized public trail 
at a location approved by the City south of the South Arkansas River in conformance with 
Salida Regional Transportation Plan adopted by the City on Nov. 3, 2009.  Such easement 
shall include sufficient width for trail maintenance.  The timing, responsibility, and means of 
future trail construction will be defined in the annexation agreement to be reviewed and 
approved by the City Council. 

3. That the applicant enter into an annexation agreement to implement the preceding 
conditions of approval. 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
 
That the recommended findings be made and the recommended action be taken. 
 
Attachments: Application and Petition 
  Annexation Plat 
 
BECAUSE THIS APPLICATION IS FOR AN ANNEXATION THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION IS MAKING A RECOMMENDATION TO THE SALIDA CITY COUNCIL 
WHO WILL MAKE THE FINAL DECISION ON THIS APPLICATION. 
 
 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 122 of 199



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION       Meeting Date:  April 18, 2017  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. 11.

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development Department 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Beverly Kaiser 

  

BY:    

 

 
ITEM:   Ordinance 2017-11 Snyder Annexation Agreement 1st Reading, An ordinance of the City Council for 
the City of Salida, Colorado, approving an annexation agreement between the City of Salida and Jodie and Barry 
Snyder. 

BACKGROUND: The request is to approve an Ordinance on first reading for the annexation agreement 

between the City of Salida and Jodie and Barry Snyder. 

 APPLICANTS: 

Jodie and Barry Snyder, 232 Helena Circle, Littleton, CO 80124  
 
LOCATION: 
The subject property is located at 1139 and 1141 Highway 50 adjacent to and south of the Salida Vineyard 
Christian Fellowship property. The complete description of the property is included with the ordinance. 
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW: 
To address the effects of an annexation a municipality and land owner may enter into an annexation agreement. 

The agreement is not required by law and is a matter of negotiation. The annexation agreement is a contract in 

which the municipality and landowner agree on certain mutually acceptable terms and conditions. Annexation 

agreements are permitted expressly by statute.  

Potential items to include in the annexation agreement were discussed at the Conceptual Review meeting held 

by the Planning Commission and the City Council held on February 22, 2017.  These items included the 

appropriate location of a public trail and inclusion in the Highway 50 Corridor Overlay.  The annexation 

agreement has been prepared and reviewed by staff and reviewed by the applicant.   

FISCAL NOTE: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends passing Ordinance No. 2017-11 approving the 

annexation agreement for the Snyder Annexation. 

Suggested Motions: A Council person should make a motion “to approve Ordinance No. 11, 2017, an 

ordinance of the City Council for the City of Salida, Colorado, approving the annexation agreement between the 

City of Salida and Jodie and Barry Snyder for the Snyder Annexation.  

Followed by a second and then roll call and vote. 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 123 of 199



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

ORDINANCE NO. 11 

 (Series of 2017) 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

APPROVING THE SNYDER ANNEXATION AGREEMENT. 
 

 

 WHEREAS, in February 2017, Barry and Jodie Snyder (“Owners”) filed an Annexation 

Petition with the Salida City Clerk requesting that the Salida City Council commence 

proceedings to annex to the City a certain unincorporated tract of land located in the County of 

Chaffee, State of Colorado, known as the Snyder Annexation and more particularly described on 

Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (the “Property”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City adopted Ordinance No. __, Series of 2017, on May 02, 2017, 

annexing the Property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Salida entered into the Snyder Annexation Agreement (the 

“Agreement”) on April 18, 2017 with Barry and Jodie Snyder; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City and the Owner desire to enter into an Annexation Agreement, 

attached as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference, pursuant to C.R.S. §31-12-101 et 

seq. to set forth the terms and conditions of the Property’s annexation into the City. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SALIDA, COLORADO THAT:  

 

1. The aforementioned recitals are hereby fully incorporated herein.  

 

2. The City Council hereby approves the Snyder Annexation Agreement. 

 

3. A copy of this Ordinance shall be recorded in the public records of Chaffee 

County to reflect such Amendment.   

 

INTRODUCED ON FIRST READING, ADOPTED and ORDERED PUBLISHED IN 

FULL in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Salida by the City Council on the 18th 

day of April, 2017 and set for second reading and public hearing on the 2nd  day of May, 2017. 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 124 of 199



City of Salida, Colorado 

Ordinance No.__, Series of 2017 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

INTRODUCED ON SECOND READING, FINALLY ADOPTED and ORDERED 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY, by the City Council on the 2nd day of May, 2017. 

 

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

 

 

___________________________ 

Mayor 

 

 

[SEAL] 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 

 

PUBLISHED IN FULL in the Mountain Mail after First Reading on the ____ day of 

_______, 2017, and BY TITLE ONLY, after final adoption on the _____day of __________, 

2017. 

 

 

___________________________ 

Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 125 of 199



 

00149216-2   

 

-1- 

  SNYDER ANNEXATION AGREEMENT 

 (1139 and 1141 EAST HIGHWAY 50) 
 

 THIS ANNEXATION AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into this 

___ day of ________________, 2017, by and between the CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, a 

Colorado statutory city (“City”), and JODIE A. SNYDER AND BARRY L. SNYDER (together, 

“Annexor”) (each a “Party” and together the “Parties”). 

 

Section 1 - Recitals 

 

1.1 The Annexor is the fee title owner of 100% of certain lands known as the “Snyder 

Annexation” and more particularly described on attached Exhibit A, which is 

incorporated herein by this reference (the “Property”). 

 

1.2 The Property is contiguous to the current municipal boundaries of the City and contains 

approximately [[#]] acres, more or less, in unincorporated Chaffee County, Colorado. 

 

1.3 The Annexor desires to have the Property annexed to the City, and the City desires to 

annex the Property on the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

 

1.4 Under Colorado law, the City may not annex the Property without the consent of the 

Annexor. 

 

1.5 On January 3, 2011, the City and the Annexor entered into a Pre-Annexation Agreement. 

 

1.6 On __________, 2017, the Annexor filed with the City Clerk a petition for annexation of 

the Property (“Annexation Petition”). 

 

1.7 The City has determined that the Annexation Petition complies with the Colorado 

Municipal Annexation Act of 1965, as amended, Colorado Revised Statutes sections 31-

12-101 through -123 (the “Annexation Act”), and Article IX of the City’s Land Use and 

Development Code. 

 

1.8 The City has accepted the Annexation Petition, has given all notices and conducted all 

hearings required by the Annexation Act, has determined that the Property is eligible for 

annexation to the City, and has made all necessary findings in support of the annexation 

of the Property. 

 

1.9 On [[DATE]], City Council adopted Ordinance No. [[#]], annexing the Property to the 

City, and Ordinance No. [[#]], zoning the Property as Residential Mixed Use (RMU) 

Zone District with inclusion of a portion of the Property in the Highway 50 Corridor 

Overlay. That portion of the Property included in the Highway 50 Corridor Overlay 

(“Highway 50 Corridor Overlay Portion”) is the driveway and adjacent parkway that 

fronts Highway 50 and provides access to the remaining portions of the parcel detached 

from Highway 50.  

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 126 of 199



 

00149216-2  2 

 

1.10 The City wishes to control its growth in a planned and orderly fashion, maintaining and 

improving its quality of life and its ability to provide and enhance environmental 

amenities, services, and local opportunity for its citizens.  

 

1.11 The City and the Annexor desire to enter into this Agreement to set forth their 

agreements concerning the terms and conditions of the annexation of the Property to the 

City and the zoning of the Property.  

 

1.12 The City and the Annexor acknowledge that the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth 

are reasonable; within the authority of each to perform; necessary to protect, promote, 

and enhance the health, safety, and general welfare of the residents and property owners 

of the City; and mutually advantageous. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants 

contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 

is hereby acknowledged, the City and the Annexor agree as follows: 

 

Section 2 – Definitions 

 

 As used in this Agreement, the following terms have the following meanings: 

 

2.1 “Agreement” means this Annexation Agreement.  The Recitals in Section 1 above are 

fully incorporated into this Agreement and made a part hereof by this reference. 

 

2.2 “Annexation Act” means sections 31-12-101 through -123, Colorado Revised Statutes. 

 

2.3 “Annexation Petition” means the Petition for Annexation of the Property filed of record 

with the City Clerk on [[DATE]]. 

 

2.4 “Annexor” means Jodie A. Snyder and Barry L. Snyder, and their successor(s) and 

agent(s). 

 

2.5 “City” means the City of Salida, a Colorado statutory City. 

 

2.6 “City Code” means the City of Salida Municipal Code. 

 

2.7 “City Council” means the City Council of the City of Salida, Colorado. 

 

2.8 “Dark sky-compliant” means lighting in compliance with Section 16-8-100 of the City 

Code and intended to reduce the unnecessary use of artificial light at night. 

 

2.9 “Effective Date” means the date on which City Council adopted a resolution approving 

the execution of this Agreement.  On the Effective Date, this Agreement will become 

binding upon and enforceable by the City and the Annexor. 

 

2.10 “Final Annexation Approval” means that all of the following have occurred: 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 127 of 199



 

00149216-2   

 

-3- 

 

2.10.1 City Council has adopted a resolution approving the execution of this agreement; 

 

2.10.2 The effective date of Ordinance No. [[#]], annexing the Property to the City, has 

occurred; and 

 

2.10.3 The effective date of Ordinance No. [[#]], zoning the Property as RMU Zone 

District with inclusion of a portion of the Property in the Highway 50 Corridor 

Overlay, has occurred. 

 

2.11 “Property” means the land that is described as the Snyder Annexation in the Annexation 

Petition and that is legally described in attached Exhibit A. 

 

2.12 “Reimbursable Costs and Fees” means all fees and costs incurred by the City in 

connection with the City’s processing and review of the proposed annexation, including 

without limitation processing and review of the Annexation Petition and zoning 

applications; and the City’s drafting, review, and execution of this Agreement. 

 

Section 3 – Purpose of Agreement and Binding Effect 

 

3.1 The purpose of this Agreement is to establish a contractual relationship between the City 

and the Annexor with respect to the annexation of the Property, and to establish the terms 

and conditions upon which the Property will be annexed, zoned, and developed.  The 

terms, conditions, and obligations described herein, including without limitation 

restrictions upon the zoning and development of the Property, are contractual obligations 

of the Parties, and the Annexor waives any objection to the enforcement of the terms of 

this Agreement as contractual obligations.  

 

3.2 This Agreement benefits and is binding upon the City, the Annexor, and the Annexor’s 

successor(s).  Unless otherwise specified herein, the Annexor’s obligations under this 

Agreement constitute a covenant running with the Property.  As described in Section 9.13 

below, the Annexor shall record this Agreement with the Clerk and Recorder of Chaffee 

County, Colorado. 

 

Section 4 – Annexation of Property 

 

4.1 The Annexor agrees to the Annexation of the Property, and the City agrees that it will 

annex the Property, only in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 

Section 5 – Terms and Conditions for Annexation of Property 

 

5.1 All terms and conditions imposed by this Agreement are in addition to and not in place of 

any and all requirements of the City Code, the Annexation Act, and all other applicable 

laws and regulations. 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 128 of 199



 

00149216-2  4 

 

5.2 Annexation of the Property to the City will not be effective until both of the following 

conditions have been met: 

 

5.2.1 The Annexor and the City have mutually executed and delivered this Agreement; 

and 

 

5.2.2 Final Annexation Approval has occurred. 

 

5.3 Zoning of Property.   

 

5.3.1 On March 27, 2017, the Salida Planning Commission recommended zoning of the 

Property as RMU Zone District with a portion of the Property in the Highway 50 

Corridor Overlay.   

 

5.3.2 The parties agree and acknowledge that Owner does not currently have a 

development proposal for the Property.  Because the Planning Commission did 

not review a development or subdivision proposal for the Property in conjunction 

with its review of the Annexation, any development or subdivision proposal for 

the Property, including within the RMU Zone District, must be reviewed and 

approved by the City before commencement of any development or subdivision.  

 

5.3.2 At its [[DATE]], 2017 meeting, the City Council approved zoning of the Property 

as RMU Zone District with a portion of the Property in the Highway 50 Corridor 

Overlay.  

 

5.3.3 Nothing in this Agreement limits, restricts, or abrogates in any way, and this 

Agreement is not to be construed to limit, restrict, or abrogate in any way, the 

power or authority of the City to rezone the Property or any portion thereof at any 

time after annexation, either on the City’s own motion or in response to a zoning 

petition. 

 

5.4 Utilities and Municipal Services. The City shall provide the Property the usual and 

customary municipal services provided by the City within its municipal limits generally, 

in accordance with the City Code and City policies. Limitations upon the availability of 

City utility service may exist from time to time. The Property is and will remain subject 

to all policies, ordinances, rules, regulations, platting restrictions, and permitting 

procedures currently in effect or enacted in the future to allocate or regulate the use of the 

City’s utility resources generally throughout the City. 

 

5.4.1 Water and Wastewater Service. The City shall provide water and wastewater 

treatment services to the Property upon the same basis as such services are 

provided to other properties within the City, subject to the rules and regulations 

given in Section 13 of the City Code, as it exists now and as it may be amended.  

Water and wastewater treatment service are available on a “first come, first 

served” basis, and the availability of such services is determined at the time 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 129 of 199



 

00149216-2   

 

-5- 

application therefor is made. The City’s obligation to provide water and 

wastewater treatment service to the Property is contingent upon the City’s 

certification that all water and wastewater facilities and all water- and wastewater-

related improvements on the Property conform to approved plans and 

specifications and all applicable City standards for those facilities and 

improvements.   Connection to the City’s treated water and wastewater treatment 

facilities will be at the then-prevailing fees and rates for such connection and 

service.  The City reserves the right to refuse to provide wastewater treatment 

service for any effluent that includes prohibited wastes as described in Section 13-

2-120 of the City Code, or that is beyond the City’s capability of treating in either 

quantity or quality. 

 

5.4.2 Fire Protection Services. The City shall provide fire protection services to the 

Property upon the same basis as such services are provided to other properties 

within the City. 

 

5.4.3 Police Services. The City shall provide police services to the Property upon the 

same basis as such services are provided to other property within the City. 

 

5.4.4 Electric, Natural Gas, Telephone, Cable TV, and Other Utility Services. The City 

does not provide electric, natural gas, telephone, or cable TV facilities or services. 

Such services are available within the City from private entities. The extension of 

such services to the Property is not the obligation or responsibility of the City. 

 

5.4.5 Streets and Roads.  

 

5.4.5.1 Within its municipal boundaries, the City shall maintain any duly 

dedicated and accepted public streets and roads that serve the Property, 

both on- and off-site, upon the same basis as such services are provided to 

other properties within the City. 

 

5.4.5.2 In accordance with the Section 16-5-60 of the City Code and the 

specifications described therein for streetscape and lighting within the 

Highway 50 Corridor Overlay, the Annexor shall install landscaping, 

sidewalks, pedestrian lighting, and stamped concrete parkways along the 

entire length of the Highway 50 Corridor Overlay Portion of the Property. 

The Annexor shall complete such improvements before proposing any 

development plan for the Property.  

 

5.4.5.3 In the event that subdivision is proposed for the Property in the future, the 

Annexor shall submit plans and specifications for access improvements 

with the development application and Subdivision Plat for review and 

approval by the City.  Such improvements must be referenced in and 

secured by a subdivision improvements agreement for the Property.   

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 130 of 199



 

00149216-2  6 

 

5.4.5.4 Annexor additionally shall comply with any and all Colorado Department 

of Transportation (“CDOT”) access requirements.  Annexor acknowledges 

that CDOT may require the consolidation of access points to the Property 

in the event that the Property is redeveloped or subdivided in the future. 

 

5.5 Fees.  The Annexor shall pay to the City the fees described below at the time set forth 

below: 

 

5.5.1 Annexor’s Reimbursement of Processing Fees.  The Annexor shall reimburse the 

City for all fees and actual costs incurred by the City in connection with the City’s 

processing and review of the proposed annexation, including without limitation 

processing and review of the Annexation Petition, zoning applications, and 

development proposals, and the City’s drafting, review, and execution of this 

Agreement (“Reimbursable Costs and Fees”).  The Reimbursable Costs and Fees 

include but are not limited to the City’s costs incurred for engineering, surveying, 

and legal services, including the services of outside City consultants and/or 

counsel; recording fees; printing and publication costs; and any and all other 

reasonable costs incurred by the City.  Interest will be imposed at rate of 1.5% per 

month on all balances not paid to the City within thirty (30) days of the effective 

date of the City’s invoicing of the Annexor for the Reimbursable Costs and Fees, 

with that effective date determined in accordance with Section 9.8 below.  In 

addition to any and all remedies available to the City and in the event the City is 

forced to pursue collection of any amounts due and unpaid under this provision or 

under this Agreement, the City shall be entitled to collect attorney’s fees and costs 

incurred in said collection efforts in addition to the amount due and unpaid. 

 

5.5.2 Payment of Currently Existing Fees as a Condition of Annexation.  The Annexor 

shall pay to the City any fees required to be paid under this Agreement or the 

currently existing City Code, regardless of whether the relevant provisions of the 

City Code are later amended, repealed, or declared to be invalid. Payment of such 

fees pursuant to this Agreement is agreed to by and between the Parties as a 

condition of the annexation, and as a pre-condition to any development review.  

The Annexor further agrees not to contest any ordinance imposing such fees as 

they pertain to the Property.  

 

5.6 Dedications and Easements.  At no cost to the City, the Annexor shall dedicate or convey 

to the City all rights-of-way, easements, and public land reasonably required by the City.  

The City may require dedication of rights-of-way, easements, or public land at any time 

construction thereof or thereon is deemed necessary in the public interest, even if the 

Property is not being platted or developed at the time the City deems dedication of the 

rights-of-way, easements, or public land necessary. 

 

5.6.1 The Annexor shall dedicate public access and an easement for a ten-foot wide 

public pedestrian/bicycle trail located south of the south bank of the South 

Arkansas River, along with sufficient width on each side of the trail to allow for 

maintenance, including without limitation equipment access (“Trail Easement”).  

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 131 of 199



 

00149216-2   

 

-7- 

The final alignment of the Trail Easement will not be determined until a plan is 

adopted for overall alignment of the trail to the east and west of the Property.  The 

City shall use its best efforts to negotiate with the Annexor to determine a Trail 

Easement alignment and design agreeable to the Annexor considering the impact 

on the Annexor’s use of the Property.  The final alignment of the Trail Easement 

must minimize impacts to the riparian zone and avoid impacts to high-quality 

wetlands and mature trees. The Annexor is prohibited from constructing 

improvements on or within the Trail Easement.  Costs incurred by the City in 

finalizing the Trail Easement location and construction, including any necessary 

agency approvals and studies, will be borne by the City and do not constitute 

Reimbursable Costs and Fees hereunder. Specifically, the City will pay for 

floodplain, wetland, and/or threatened and endangered species studies pertaining 

to the Trail Easement, as required by applicable federal law and regulations. 

Further, the City will pay for mitigation (e.g., wetland mitigation) for the Trail 

Easement as required by applicable federal law or regulations. The Trail 

Easement will be granted pursuant to the Recreational Use Act of Article 41 of 

Title 33, C.R.S.  In consideration of the Annexor's dedication of the Trail 

Easement, the Annexor shall, as applicable, receive the corresponding credit for 

open space dedication as set forth in Chapter 16 of the City Code based upon the 

dedication requirement applied to the acreage of the Trail Easement. 

 

5.6.2 The Annexor shall dedicate public utility easements for all City water and sewer 

mains constructed and installed on the Property. 

 

5.6.3 The Annexor shall dedicate public utility easements for all interior streets.   

 

5.7 All lighting on the Property must be “dark sky”-compliant. 

 

5.8 In meeting its obligations with respect to public improvements under this Section 5 and 

under the City Code, the Annexor shall deliver to the City a reasonable performance 

guarantee in the form of cash, a letter of credit, a cash bond, a performance bond, or 

another security instrument acceptable to and approved in writing by the City Attorney. 

 

5.9 Drainage.  Prior to any future development of the Property, the Annexor shall obtain the 

City’s approval of a master drainage plan that complies with all applicable laws, 

regulations, and ordinances.  The Annexor’s activities, operations, and development on 

the Property must comply with the master drainage plan and with all applicable laws, 

ordinances, and regulations pertaining to drainage. 

 

5.10 Conveyance and Acceptance Requirements. Conveyance and acceptance requirements 

and reimbursement opportunities for all public improvements installed by Annexor in 

connection with the development or use of the Property are as described in the City Code. 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 132 of 199



 

00149216-2  8 

 

Section 6 – Zoning 

 

6.1 The Annexor requests and consents to zoning of RMU Zone District with a portion of the 

Property in the Highway 50 Corridor Overlay.  Upon Final Annexation Approval, the 

Property will be subject to and must adhere to all applicable zoning regulations of the 

City, as those regulations may be amended.   

 

Section 7 – Breach by Annexor and City’s Remedies 

 

7.1 In the event of a breach of any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement by the 

Annexor, the City may take any action necessary or appropriate to enforce its rights, 

including without limitation any or all of the following: 

 

7.1.1 The refusal to issue any building permit or Certificate of Occupancy to the 

Annexor; provided, however, that this remedy will be unavailable to the City until 

after the affidavit described in Section 7.1.2 below has been recorded; and 

provided further that this remedy will not be available against a bona fide third 

party. 

 

7.1.2 The recording with the Chaffee County Clerk and Recorder of a first affidavit 

approved in writing by the City Attorney and signed by the City Administrator or 

the City Administrator’s designee, declaring that the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement have been breached by the Annexor. At the next regularly scheduled 

City Council meeting following recording of such first affidavit, the City Council 

shall either approve the filing of said first affidavit or direct the City 

Administrator to file a second affidavit declaring that the default has been cured 

and nullifying the first affidavit. Upon the recording of a first affidavit, no parcels 

or portions thereof on the Property may be sold until the default has been cured.  An 

affidavit signed by the City Administrator or the City Administrator’s designee 

and approved by the City Council declaring that the default has been cured will 

remove this restriction and be sufficient evidence when recorded that the default 

has been cured. 

 

7.1.3 A demand that any performance guarantee given for completion of any public 

improvement be paid or honored. 

 

7.1.4 The refusal to allow further development review for the Property. 

 

7.1.5 Any other remedy available in equity or at law. 

 

7.2 Unless immediate action is necessary to protect the health, safety, or welfare of the City’s 

residents, the City shall give the Annexor ten (10) days’ written notice of the City’s intent 

to take any action under this Section 7, during which 10-day period the Annexor may 

cure the breach described in said notice and prevent further remedial action by the City. 

In the event the breach is not cured within the 10-day period, the City will consider 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 133 of 199



 

00149216-2   

 

-9- 

whether the Annexor has undertaken reasonable steps to timely complete the cure if 

additional time is required.  

 

7.3 The District Court of the County of Chaffee, State of Colorado, will have exclusive 

jurisdiction to resolve any dispute over this Agreement. 

 

7.4 Any waiver by the City of one or more terms of this Agreement will not constitute, and is 

not to be construed as constituting, a waiver of other terms.  A waiver of any provision of 

this Agreement in any one instance will constitute, and is not to be construed as 

constituting, a waiver of such provision in other instances. 

 

Section 8 – Indemnification and Release 

 

8.1 Release of Liability.  The Annexor acknowledges that the City cannot be legally bound 

by the representations of any of its officers or agents or their designees except in 

accordance with the City Code, City ordinances, and the laws of the State of Colorado.  

The Annexor further acknowledges that it acts at its own risk with respect to relying or 

acting upon any representation or undertaking by the City or its officers or agents or their 

designees, which representation or undertaking subsequently is held unlawful by a court of 

competent jurisdiction.  Accordingly, the Annexor expressly waives and releases any 

current or future claims related to or arising from any such representation or undertaking 

by the City or its officers or agents or their designees. 

 

8.2 Indemnification. 

 

8.2.1 The Annexor shall indemnify and hold harmless the City, and the City's officers, 

agents, employees, and their designees, from and against any and all claims, 

damages, losses, and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys' fees and 

costs, arising from or in connection with the following:  (a) the City’s approval of 

the proposed annexation, (b) the City’s approval of the proposed zoning, (c) any 

approval given during development review of the Property; (d) except to the 

extent of any actual negligence on the part of the City, and the City's officers, 

agents, employees, and their designees, any road or sidewalk enlargement, 

extension, realignment, improvement, or maintenance, or approval thereof; or (e) 

any other item contained in this Agreement. 

 

8.2.2 The Annexor shall reimburse the City for all fees, expenses, and costs, including 

attorneys’ fees and costs, incurred in any action brought against the City as a 

result of the City's approval of the proposed annexation and proposed zoning; and 

shall reimburse the City for all fees, expenses, and costs, including attorneys' fees 

and costs, associated with any referendum election, review of petition for 

referendum, protest, or any other proceedings to challenge the City’s approval of 

the proposed annexation or zoning. Nothing in this Agreement obligates or 

compels the City to proceed with any action or referendum position, other than as 

the City Council, in its sole discretion, directs. 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 134 of 199



 

00149216-2  10 

 

Section 9 – General Provisions 

 

9.1 Waiver of Defects. In executing this Agreement, the Annexor waives all objections it 

may have to any defects in the form or execution of this Agreement concerning the power 

of the City to impose conditions on the Annexor as set forth herein.  The Annexor further 

waives all objections it may have to the procedure, substance, and form of the ordinances 

or resolutions adopting this Agreement. 

 

9.2 Final Agreement. This Agreement supersedes and controls all prior written and oral 

agreements and representations of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, 

and is the total integrated agreement between the Parties. 

 

9.3 Modifications.  This Agreement may be modified only by a subsequent written 

agreement executed by both Parties.  

 

9.4 Voluntary Agreement. The Annexor agrees to comply with all of the terms and conditions 

of this Annexation Agreement on a voluntary and contractual basis, as a condition of 

annexation of the Property to the City.  

 

9.5 Election. The Annexor represents and submits that to the extent an election would be 

required by the Annexation Act to approve the annexation or impose terms and conditions 

upon the Property to be annexed, the Annexor owns one hundred percent (100%) of the 

Property to be annexed, and would vote to approve the annexation and all terms and 

conditions as set forth herein. Thus, any election necessarily would result in a majority of 

the electors' approval to the annexation and the terms and conditions. 

 

9.6 Annexor’s Representations. All representations of the Annexor, either oral or as set forth 

in the Annexation Petition and zoning application, and all documents previously or 

subsequently submitted with reference thereto, are to be considered incorporated into this 

Annexation Agreement as if set forth in full herein.  

 

9.7 Survival. The City’s and the Annexor’s representations, covenants, warranties, and 

obligations set forth herein, except as they may be fully performed before or on the 

Effective Date, will survive the Effective Date and are enforceable at law or in equity. 

 

9.8 Notice. All notices required under this Agreement must be in writing and must be hand- 

delivered or sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, 

to the addresses of the Parties as set forth below. All notices so given will be considered 

effective immediately upon hand-delivery, and seventy-two (72) hours after deposit in the 

United States Mail with the proper address as set forth below. Either Party by notice so 

given may change the address to which future notices are to be sent. 

 

 

Notice to the City: City of Salida 

Attn:  City Administrator and City Attorney 

448 East First Street  

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 135 of 199



 

00149216-2   

 

-11- 

Salida, CO 81201 

 

  Notice to the Annexor:            Mr. Barry L. Snyder 

      Ms. Jodie A. Snyder 

      232 Helena Circle 

      Littleton, CO 80124 

 

9.9 Terms and Conditions as Consideration for Annexation.  The Annexor acknowledges that 

the City’s decision to annex the Property is at the City’s sole discretion.  In consideration 

for the City’s agreement to annex, the Annexor agrees to be bound by all of the terms and 

conditions of such annexation contained herein, and further acknowledges that such terms 

and conditions are requisite to the City’s decision to annex the Property. The Annexor 

further agrees and acknowledges that its decision to proceed with annexation is a 

voluntary act of the Annexor, and that the Annexor has the sole and absolute discretion to 

withdraw its petition for annexation in lieu of such voluntary act. 

 

9.10 Applicable Laws, Ordinances, and Regulations.  Subject to the terms and conditions of 

Section 6.1 above, the Annexor understands and agrees that the Property, upon 

annexation, and all subsequent development of the Property, will be subject to and bound 

by the applicable provisions of laws, ordinances, resolutions, regulations, and policies of 

the City or the State as they exist at the time of annexation and as they may from time to 

time be amended or adopted.  Nothing in this Agreement constitutes or is to be construed 

as constituting a repeal of existing ordinances or regulations, or as a waiver or abnegation 

of the City’s legislative, governmental, or police powers to protect the health, safety, and 

general welfare of the City and its inhabitants. 

 

9.11 Termination.  In the event that the annexation of the Property is for any reason not 

completed, this Agreement will terminate and become null and void and of no force and 

effect.  In such an event, the Annexor shall pay all Reimbursable Costs and Expenses 

incurred by the City to the time of termination.  Otherwise, unless and until the Property 

is disconnected from the City in accordance with Colorado law, including without 

limitation sections 31-12-601 through -605, the term of this Agreement is perpetual. 

 

9.12 Severability.  The terms of this Agreement are severable.  If a court of competent 

jurisdiction finds any provision hereof to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining 

terms and conditions of the Agreement will remain in full force and effect.  

 

9.13 Recording.  The Annexor shall record this Agreement with the Clerk and Recorder of 

Chaffee County, Colorado. 

 

9.14 No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, confers or 

is intended to confer any rights or remedies whatsoever upon any person or entity other 

than the City, the Annexor, and the Annexor’s successor(s). 

 

WHEREFORE, the parties hereto have executed duplicate originals of this Agreement 

on the day and year first written above. 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 136 of 199



 

00149216-2  12 

 

 

 

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

 

By   Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

  
City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF COLORADO ) 

) 

s

s. 

COUNTY OF ) 

 

Acknowledged, subscribed, and sworn to before me this  day of  2017 

by 

  , as Mayor, and  by  , as Clerk, 

on behalf of the City of Salida, Colorado. 

 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

My Commission expires:  . 

 

  
Notary Public 

 

 

 

 

ANNEXOR: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Jodie A. Snyder 

 

 

___________________________ 

Barry L. Snyder 

 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 137 of 199



 

00149216-2   

 

-13- 

STATE OF COLORADO ) 

    ) ss. 

COUNTY OF   ) 

 

 Acknowledged, subscribed, and sworn to before me this _____ day of _________ 2017 

by Jodie A. Snyder and Barry L. Snyder. 

 

 WITNESS my hand and official seal.  My Commission expires:  ___________________. 

 

      

 _____________________________________ 

  Notary Public 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 138 of 199



EXHIBIT A 

 

The subject property is legally described as:   
 
A tract of land located within the Southeast Quarter of the Southeast (SE ¼ SE ¼ ) of Section 5, 
Township 49 North, Range 9 East of the New Mexico Principal Meridian, Chaffee County, 
Colorado described as follows, 
Beginning at the northwest corner (marked by a 5/8 inch rebar with an aluminum cap stamped 
‘6758’) of that parcel of land described in Deed of Record filed under Reception No 281105 of the 
Chaffee County Records, from whence a brass capped concrete right-of-way maker for Station 
2292+50 of U.S. Highway 50 bears South 89°21’00” East 131.8 feet, thence proceeding around the 
tract herein described South 00°06’00” East 190.87 feet to the southwest corner of the above 
described parcel; 
thence South  89°21’00” East 212.51 feet to a corner of a parcel of land described in deed of record 
and filed under Reception No. 278468 of the Chaffee County Records; 
thence South 00°13’30” East 55.88 feet to another corner of the above described parcel; 
thence North 80°08’48” East 140.27 feet to the southeast corner of the above said parcel; 
thence South 00°10’28” East parallel with the East line of said Section 5 for a distance of 498.09 
feet; 
thence South 89°49’32” West at right angle to the above said section line 134.86 feet; 
thence South 00°07’52” East 577.50 feet to an existing on inch diameter cedar post (said corner post 
is located North 88°54’50” West 151.28 feet from the southeast corner of the said Section 5- a 
government brass capped pipe monument); 
thence North 89°28’34” West along a fence line 251.87 feet to the railroad tie fence corner post; 
thence North 00°49’43” West 327.08 feet along a fence to a fence angle point; 
thence North  00°06’00” West along a fence line, also being the Easterly boundary of River Bend 
Addition to the City of Salida (Plat filed on 16 September 1975, under Reception No. 165926-
Chaffee County Records) for a distance of 847.20 feet to the northeast corner of said River Bend 
Addition to the City of Salida;  
thence South 69°21’ East along the southerly right-of-way boundary of U.S. Highway No. 50 a 
distance of 38.00 feet to the point of beginning. 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 139 of 199



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION       Meeting Date:  April 18, 2017  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. 12

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development Department 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Beverly Kaiser 

  

BY:    

 

 
ITEM:   Ordinance 2017-12 Snyder Annexation Zoning 1st Reading, An ordinance of the City Council for the 
City of Salida, Colorado, zoning certain real property known as the as the Snyder Annexation parcel Residential 
Mixed Use (RMU) with inclusion in the Highway 50 Corridor Overlay. 

BACKGROUND: The request is to pass on first reading an ordinance zoning the Snyder Property RMU, 

Residential Mixed Use, and including it in the Highway 50 Corridor Overlay. 

APPLICANTS: 
Jodie and Barry Snyder, 232 Helena Circle, Littleton, CO 80124  
 
LOCATION: 
The subject property is located at 1139 and 1141 Highway 50, Salida, CO adjacent to and south of the Salida 
Vineyard Church.  Only a narrow strip of the property to be annexed connects to Highway 50; the bulk of the 
property is south of the church and surrounded by other properties in the City of Salida. 
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW: 
Zoning of the property is the second final step in the annexation process for the Snyder Annexation property.  
The applicant’s request to be zoned Residential Mixed Use (RMU) and included in the Hwy 50 corridor overlay 
is consistent with the recommendation of the Planning Commission.  A copy of the Planning Commission staff 
report is attached to this memo.  
 
The purpose of the Salida Residential Mixed Use zone is “to provide for opportunities for an integration of 
residential and commercial uses that are developed and operated in harmony.”  Multiple principal structures, 
accessory dwelling units, residential uses with three or more units, single family dwelling units, and one or more 
dwelling units on the same site as a commercial or industrial use all require either limited review or 
administrative review.  The applicant felt that the RMU zone is more appropriate for the site characteristics than 
the C-1 zone, which is designed for high traffic highway commercial access and use. 
 

FISCAL NOTE: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff would suggest passing Ordinance No. 2017-12 zoning the Snyder 

Annexation Residential Mixed Use (RMU) with inclusion on the Highway 50 Corridor Overlay zone. 

Suggested Motions: A Council person should make a motion “to approve Ordinance No. 2017-12, An 

ordinance of the City Council for the City of Salida, Colorado, zoning certain real property known as the Snyder 

Annexation parcel Residential Mixed Use (RMU) zone district with inclusion in the Highway 50 Corridor Overlay 

zone, and setting the public hearing date for May 2, 2017 and ordering the ordinance to be published in full.” 

Followed by a second and then roll call and vote. 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 140 of 199



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

ORDINANCE NO. 12 

 SERIES OF 2017  

  

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, ZONING CERTAIN 

REAL PROPERTY KNOWN AS THE SNYDER ANNEXATION UNDER THE RMU, 

RESIDENTIAL MIXED USE, ZONE DISTRICT WITH INCLUSION IN THE 

HIGHWAY 50 CORRIDOR OVERLAY. 

 

WHEREAS, in January 2017, Barry and Jodie Snyder (“Petitioners”), filed a General 

Development Application to commence proceedings to annex to the City of Salida (the “City”) a 

certain unincorporated tract of land comprised of 8.14 acres located at 1139 and 1141 Highway 

50 in the County of Chaffee, State of Colorado (the “Property”), and being more particularly 

described on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference; and 

 

WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. ___, Series of 2017 the City of Salida annexed the Snyder  

Annexation to the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, Petitioner has filed an application to zone the Property under the RMU, 

Residential Mixed Use zone district, with inclusion in the Highway 50 Corridor Overlay, and on 

March 27, 2017 the City of Salida Planning Commission considered the zoning application for 

the Property and recommended that the City Council zone the property RMU, Residential Mixed 

Use, with inclusion in the Highway 50 Corridor Overlay; and 

 

WHEREAS, as required by the Salida Municipal Code, the public hearing on the zoning 

application for the Snyder Annexation was held on May 2, 2017 at a regularly scheduled meeting 

of the Salida City Council. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF SALIDA, COLORADO, THAT: 

 

 1. The aforementioned recitals are hereby fully incorporated herein.   

 

2. The Property described on Exhibit A is hereby zoned RMU, Residential Mixed 

Use with inclusion in the Highway 50 Corridor Overlay. 

 

3. Promptly following adoption of this Ordinance, the City Administrator shall cause 

the terms of this Ordinance to be incorporated into the Official Zoning Map of the City pursuant 

to Section 16-4-210 of the SMC, together with the Ordinance number and date, date of 

amendment, and initials of the draftsman making the change.  The signed original copy of the 

Zoning Map shall be filed with the City Clerk.  The Clerk shall also record a certified copy of 

this Ordinance with the Chaffee County Clerk and Recorder.  The City staff is further directed to 

comply with all provisions of the Salida Land Use Regulations, SMC §16-1-10, et seq., to 

implement the provisions of this Ordinance. 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 141 of 199



 

 

INTRODUCED ON FIRST READING, on April 18, 2017, ADOPTED and ORDERED 

PUBLISHED IN FULL in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Salida by the City 

Council on the ____ day of __________, 2017 and set for second reading and public hearing on 

the 2nd day of May, 2017. 

 

 

INTRODUCED ON SECOND READING, FINALLY ADOPTED and ORDERED 

PUBLISHED IN FULL, by the City Council on the 2nd day of May, 2017. 

 

 

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

 

 

  

James LiVecchi, Mayor 

 [SEAL] 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

  

City Clerk/Deputy Clerk 

 

PUBLISHED IN FULL in the Mountain Mail after First Reading on the ____ day of 

__________, 2017, and BY TITLE ONLY, after final adoption on the ____day of __________, 

2017. 

 

 

  

City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 142 of 199



Jodie and Barry Snyder 
232 Helena Circle, Littleton, CO | 303-842-2379 | jodie.a.daley@gmail.com 

1/29/2017 

City of Salida 
448 East First Street, Suite 112 
Salida, CO 81201 

1139 and 1141 Hwy 50 – Map Amendment Package 

Hi, Bev: 

We appreciate your continued assistance with our annexation application. At your request, we are 
submitting this Map Amendment Package for City review and processing. It includes 10 copies of:  

• General Development Application and supporting attachments
• Map Amendment Package (10 total copies of the survey map are included with the annexation

package and have not been duplicated for this package)
• A list of adjoining property owners for public notice
• Application fees
• Special Fee and Cost Reimbursement Agreement

On 1/29/17, we e-mailed you a complete PDF of this package, including a digital copy of the plat. Please 
let us know if you have any questions.  

Thanks for your time. 

Sincerely, 

Jodie A. Snyder    and  Barry L. Snyder 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 143 of 199



General Development Application Form 03/09/15 

A. Applicant Information 

Name of Applicant:     

Mailing Address:         

Telephone Number:   FAX: 

Email Address:      

Power of Attorney/ Authorized Representative:   
(Provide a letter authorizing agent to represent you, include representative’s name, street and mailing address, 
telephone number, and FAX) 

B. Site Data 

Name of Development:    

Street Address:      

Legal Description: Lot________ Block _____ Subdivision____________ (attach description) 

Disclosure of Ownership: List all owners’ names, mortgages, liens, easements, judgments, contracts and agreements that 
run with the land. (May be in the form of a current certificate from a title insurance company, deed, ownership and 
encumbrance report, attorney’s opinion, or other documentation acceptable to the City Attorney)  

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION 
         448 East First Street, Suite 112 

Salida, CO 81201 
               Phone: 719-530-2626 Fax: 719-539-5271 

Email: planning@cityofsalida.com 

1. TYPE OF APPLICATION (Check-off as appropriate)
 Annexation 
 Pre-Annexation Agreement 
 Variance  
 Appeal Application (Interpretation) 
 Certificate of Approval 
 Creative Sign Permit 
 Historic Landmark/District 
 License to Encroach 
 Text Amendment to Land Use Code 
 Watershed Protection Permit 
 Conditional Use 

 Administrative Review: 
(Type) 

 Limited Impact Review: 
(Type) 

 Major Impact Review: 
(Type) 

 Other: 

2. GENERAL DATA  (To be completed by the applicant)

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

I certify that I have read the application form and that the information and exhibits herewith submitted are true and 
correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Signature of applicant/agent Date   

Signature of property owner   Date   

Jodie and Barry Snyder

232 Helena Circle, Littleton, CO 80124

303-842-2379

jodie.a.daley@gmail.com

Greg Powell

Not applicable

1139 and 1141 E Hwy 50

1/14/2017

✔

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 144 of 199

Jodie.Snyder
Line



Jodie and Barry Snyder 
232 Helena Circle, Littleton, CO | 303-842-2379 | jodie.a.daley@gmail.com 

1/14/2017 

City of Salida 
448 East First Street, Suite 112  
Salida, CO 81201 

1139 and 1141 Hwy 50 – Annexation Authorized Representative 

Dear City Staff: 

As a supplement to our General Development Application and in support of our request for annexation, 
we want to note that Greg Powell is an authorized representative.  

We authorize that Greg may represent us during this annexation process. Here is Greg’s contact 
information:  

Powell & Murphy, P.C.  
417 West 1st Street  
Salida, CO 81201 
Phone: 719-539-8604 
gregpowell@qwestoffice.net 

 
 
Thanks for your time. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Jodie A. Snyder    and  Barry L. Snyder 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 145 of 199

mailto:gregpowell@qwestoffice.net


1139 and 1141 Hwy 50 
Legal Description 

A tract of land located within the Southeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼ SE ¼) of Section 5, 
Township 49 North, Range 9 East of the New Mexico Principal Meridian, Chaffee County, Colorado 
described as follows:  
 
Beginning at the northwest corner (marked by a 5/8 inch rebar with aluminum cap stamped ‘6753’) of that 
parcel of land described in Deed of Record filed under Reception No. 281105 of the Chaffee County 
records, from whence a brass capped concrete right-of-way marker for Station 2292+50 of U.S. Highway 
50 bears South 89º21’00” East 131.8 feet, thence proceeding around the tract herein described South 
00º06’00” East 190.87 feet to the southwest corner of the above described parcel;  
thence South 89º21’00” East 212.51 feet to a corner of a parcel of land described in deed of record and 
filed under Reception No. 278468 of the Chaffee County records;  
thence South 00º13’30” East 55.88 feet to another corner of the above described parcel;  
thence North 80º08’48” East 140.27 feet to the southeast corner of the above described parcel;  
thence South 00º10’28” East parallel with the East line of said Section 5 for a distance of 498.09 feet;  
thence South 89º49’32” West at a right angle to the above and section line 134.88 feet;  
thence South 00º07’52” East 577.50 feet to an existing ten inch diameter cedar post (said cedar corner post 
is located North 88º54’30” West 151.28 feet from the southeast corner of said Section 5 – a government 
brass capped pipe monument);  
thence North 89º28’34” West along a fence line 251.87 feet to the railroad tie fence corner post;  
thence North 00º49’43” West 327.08 feet along a fence to a fence angle point;  
thence North 00º31’18” East along said existing fence to the centerline of the South Arkansas River;  
thence North 00º06’00” West along a fence line, also being the Easterly boundary of River Bend Addition 
to the City of Salida (Plat filed on 16 September 1975, under Reception No. 165926 Chaffee County 
Records) for a distance of 874.20 feet to the northeast corner of said River Bend Addition to the City of 
Salida;  
thence South 89º21' East along the southerly right-of-way boundary of U.S. Highway 50 a distance of 
38.00 feet to the point of beginning. 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 146 of 199



Jodie and Barry Snyder 
232 Helena Circle, Littleton, CO | 303-842-2379 | jodie.a.daley@gmail.com 

1/14/2017 

City of Salida 
448 East First Street, Suite 112  
Salida, CO 81201 

1139 and 1141 Hwy 50 – Disclosure of Ownership 

Dear City Staff: 

As a supplement to our General Development Application and in support of our request for annexation, 
this letter includes a disclosure of ownership.  

Barry L Snyder and Jodie A Snyder own this property. This property does not involve any mortgages, 
loans, liens, easements, judgments, contracts, or agreements that run with the land.  
 
Please let us know if you have any questions. Thanks for your time.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
Jodie A. Snyder    and  Barry L. Snyder 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 147 of 199



1139 and 1141 Hwy 50 
Map Amendment Package 

A. Zone Districts: The present zone district designations of the property include both residential 
and commercial. Adjacent zoning of properties is commercial (C-1) and planned development. 

 

 

 
 

B. Survey Map: A copy is enclosed, and a digital copy has been provided to the City. 
C. Existing Uses: The current land uses on the property include a mixture of residential, 

commercial, and undeveloped. The current land uses on adjacent properties include a mixture of 
residential, commercial, and undeveloped. 

 
 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 148 of 199



D. Statement of Intended Development:  
• Our intended use or development of the subject property: 

We are not planning to subdivide this parcel and intend to keep the two residences and 
barn that currently exist. When we move on the property in the next three years, we plan 
to add onto the smaller residence and restore the barn to serve as our home. We will build 
a detached garage/workshop for our use and also maintain the other existing house as a 
full time rental. We plan to use a small part of the property as an urban, green-house based 
aquaponics farm to produce a local, sustainable food source for Salida (including produce, 
fish, and eggs). We also plan to complete wetland and native habitat restoration and 
conservation in riparian and riverine areas of the property. 

• Community need for the change in zoning and explain the effect the change of zoning would 
have on surrounding uses: 
This property is currently unincorporated and is undergoing annexation. Zoning this 
property as Residential Mixed Use is not anticipated to have an adverse effect on 
surrounding uses.  

 
 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 149 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 150 of 199



 PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

  
 

MEETING DATE: March 27, 2017   
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Snyder Annexation - Zoning Review  
  
AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing    
  
 
REQUEST:  
The request is to recommend zoning designation for the 8.14 acres located at 1139 and 1141 Hwy 
50 Salida, Colorado known as Snyder Annexation.  The request is to designate the newly annexed 
property as Residential Mixed Use (RMU) Zone District with inclusion in the Highway 50 Corridor 
Overlay.  
 
APPLICANT:  Jodie and Barry Snyder, 232 Helena Circle, Littleton, CO 80124. 

 
LOCATION: 
The subject property is a certain unincorporated tract of land comprised of 8.14 acres on Hwy 50, 
surrounded by the City of Salida on all sides in the County of Chaffee, State of Colorado as shown 
on the attached annexation plat.   
            
BACKGROUND REVIEW: 
 
All territory annexed to the City subsequent to July 3, 2002 shall be zoned according to district 
classifications of Article IV and detailed in Section 16-4-20. Such classification shall be determined 
by the City Council, upon recommendation of the Planning Commission.  
 
Zoning of the property is the second step in the annexation process. The applicant is requesting a 
Residential Mixed Use (RMU) Zone District designation with inclusion in the Highway 50 Corridor 
Overlay for that portion of the property that extends from the bulk of the property to Highway 50.   
The proposed RMU zone is to accommodate the continued use of the property as residential with 
the addition of a small-scale agricultural aspect.  The existing zoning on the property in Chaffee 
County is COM, commercial, and RES residential south of the river.  Adjacent properties to the 
west and north within the City are zoned C-1, Commercial.  Property surrounding the southern half 
of the proposed annexation is zoned POS (Parks/Open Space) and VN (Vandaveer Neighborhood) 
within the Vandaveer PD. 
 
The purpose of the Salida Residential Mixed Use zone is “to provide for opportunities for an 
integration of residential and commercial uses that are developed and operated in harmony.”  

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 151 of 199



Multiple principal structures, accessory dwelling units, residential uses with three or more units, 
single family dwelling units, and one or more dwelling units on the same site as a commercial or 
industrial use all require either limited review or administrative review.  Duplexes and accessory 
buildings are permitted.  Single mobile homes, medical marijuana cultivation more than six plants, 
mobile home parks, and recreational vehicles are not permitted.  The applicant felt that the RMU 
zone is more appropriate for the site characteristics than the C-1 zone, which is designed for 
highway commercial access and use. 
 
 
OBSERVATIONS:  
This section is intended to highlight observations or concerns raised by staff to assist the 
Commission in doing the same. Additional concerns or questions may arise after a presentation by 
the applicant. 
 

1. Annexation of the subject property is underway, with a public hearing scheduled before the 
City Council on May 2, 2017. Zoning the property is required at the time of annexation, or 
may occur within 90 days following annexation approval by the City Council.   

2. The property consists of approximately 8.14 acres of land located on Highway 50.  

3. The proposed zoning district (RMU) provides a logical use of an enclave of mixed residentially 
used property surrounded by property zoned commercial and planned development already in 
the city limits.  The northern extension of the annexation must be included in the Highway 50 
Corridor Overlay. 

4. The property has access from Highway 50. 

5. The property is currently served by city sewer.  The applicant is required to connect to the City 
water system.  

6.  The zone district provides a compatible land use with surrounding properties. The proposed 
district is consistent with the goals of the Salida Comprehensive Plan. 

 

REVIEW STANDARDS FOR MAP AMENDMENTS Section 16-4-210 (c) 

1. Consistent with Comprehensive Plan. The proposed amendment shall be consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan. 

• The property is a natural extension of the City’s municipal boundary. The annexation 
and RMU zone for the property is consistent with the vision and goals set forth in 
the Comprehensive Plan and is compatible with adjacent land and appropriate for 
the area.  

2. Consistency with Purpose of Zone District. The proposed amendment shall be 
consistent with the purpose of the zone district to which the property is to be designated.  

• The applicant is requesting one zone district, Residential Mixed Use (RMU) with 
inclusion in the Highway 50 Corridor Overlay. Designation of the subject property is 
consistent with the surrounding area and will provide appropriate land use. 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 152 of 199



3. Compatibility with Surrounding Zone Districts and Uses. The development 
permitted by the proposed amendment shall be compatible with surrounding zone districts, 
land uses and neighborhood character.   

• The zoning classification is consistent with the zoning of other properties in the area. 
The proposal is adjacent to Commercial (C-1) and Planned Development (PD) 
zoning in the City.  

4. Changed Conditions or Errors. The applicant shall demonstrate that conditions 
affecting the subject or the surrounding neighborhood have changed, or that due to 
incorrect assumptions or conclusions about the property, one (1) or more errors in the 
boundaries shown on the Official Zoning Map have occurred.  

• This application is a result of the need for zoning due to annexation, not due to a 
map error or change in use in the neighborhood.  

 
PROJECT REVIEW HISTORY:  

The Snyder Annexation proposal went before the City Council and Planning Commission 
for joint “concept” review on February 22, 2017.  Comments were generally favorable.  The 
fact that the proposed annexation is affected by the Salida Regional Transportation Plan 
Trails Plan was discussed. 
 
On March 21, 2017 the application went before the City Council for consideration of a 
resolution before the Council finding substantial compliance on the part of the annexation 
proposal and setting the date for public hearing with regard to an annexation petition.  The 
resolution passed and the hearing date was set for May 2, 2017. 
 
 

RECOMMENDED FINDINGS:  
1. That the application is in compliance with the review standards for map amendments. The 

proposed Residential Mixed Use Zone District designation for the property furthers the 
goals and policies of the Salida Comprehensive Plan and are compatible with the zoning and 
use of nearby and neighboring properties. Inclusion of the northern extension of the 
property is consistent with the goals of the Highway 50 Corridor Overlay. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Based upon the observations, review standards, and findings outlined above, staff recommends the 
following: 
 
That the Commission recommend APPROVAL of the application to designate the newly annexed 
property at1139 and 1141 E. Hwy 50 as Residential Mixed Use (RMU) Zone District with the 
northern extension included in the Highway 50 Corridor Overlay.  
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
That the recommended findings be made and the recommended action be taken. 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 153 of 199



 
BECAUSE THIS APPLICATION IS FOR A ZONING OF AN ANNEXATION.   THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION IS MAKING A RECOMMENDATION TO THE SALIDA 
CITY COUNCIL WHICH WILL MAKE THE FINAL DECISION ON THIS 
APPLICATION. 
 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 154 of 199



 
MEETING DATE:  Monday, March 27, 2017 
MEETING TIME:  6:00 PM 
MEETING LOCATION: City Council Chambers, 448 E. First Street, Suite 190, Salida, CO 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
Present: Berg, Bomer, Wood, Mandelkorn, Denning, Thomas, Franklin, Jefferson, Kaiser 
Absent:  Cocovinis, Follet, Kasper,          
 
AGENDA SECTION:  

I. CALL TO ORDER BY Wood: - 6:00 PM 

II. ROLL CALL:  

III. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES – February 27, 2017 – Berg made a motion to 
approve the minutes as written.  Motion was seconded by Bomer.  All voters were 
unanimous and the motion carried.  
 

IV. UNSCHEDULED CITIZENS – None  
 

V. AMENDMENTS TO AGENDA - None  
 

VI. UPDATES:  Wood made mention of the two possible candidates that were interviewed 
for the Community Development Director position and both were excellent candidates.  
Jefferson introduced April Franklin as a new employee to the department as the 
planning technician. 
  

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS –  
 

1. Snyder- Annexation - The request is to annex to the City of Salida a certain 
unincorporated tract of land comprised of 8.14 acres located at 1139 and 1141 Highway 
50 in the County of Chaffee, State of Colorado. 

A. Open Public hearing: - 6:05 PM 

B. Staff Review of Application.  Kaiser gave an overview of the application and 
stated that staff supports the annexation of the property owned by Barry and Jodie 
Snyder.  The property is currently surrounded by city properties and is connected 
to city sewer, only needing to connect to city water.  The entire perimeter of the 
property is contiguous to the City limits.  She recommends that the trail easement 
be accepted and located on the South side of the river, eventually linking up to 
other trails in the Vandaveer area.  Staff recommends approval of the annexation 
with 3 conditions. 

 
C.  Applicant’s Presentation:    Jodie Snyder 232 Helena Circle, Littleton, CO 

introduced herself as the owner of the property at 1139 and 1141 Hwy 50.  The 
Snyder’s will be maintaining the two residences and continue to use them as 
rentals.  Eventually they would like to reconstruct the brick barn and make it into 
their home, while keeping the integrity of the wetlands and utilizing some of the 
property for an urban greenhouse/aquaponics farm with veggies and fish.    
 

D.  Public Input- None 
 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 155 of 199



E.  Closed Public Hearing - 6:14 PM  
 
F.   Commission Discussion –Wood opened up the Commission discussion, asked 

about preferred location for trail, and why the South side.  He asked about the 
location of the bridge that was built during the concert.  He is concerned about 
how to get a bridge to mend both North and South side trail together.  Bomer 
asked about the Southside of the property and if the Vanderveer property butts 
up against the Snyder property.   Berg explained where she thinks the ideal 
location for the trail could be located on the property; however there still would 
be a need for a bridge in the future.  

 
G. Commission Action - A motion was made by Bomer to make the recommended 

findings and take the recommended action be taken, and make a 
recommendation of approval to City council. 

 
 Thomas seconded the motion.  All in favor, motion was carried.   
 

2. Snyder- Zoning - The request is to recommend zoning designation for the 8.14 
acres located at 1139 and 1141 Hwy 50 Salida, Colorado known as Snyder 
Annexation.  The request is to designate the newly annexed property as Residential 
Mixed Use (RMU) Zone District with inclusion in the Highway 50 Corridor Overlay. 

    
A.  Open Public Hearing - 6:22 PM   

  
B.  Staff Review of Application:   Kaiser gave an overview of the Snyder Zoning 

Application.  She explained why the applicant is asking for the property to be 
zoned RMU.  Staff feels that this particular zone reflects ideally on what the 
homeowner’s would like attain within the future with their property.  The RMU 
zone will accommodate the continued use of the property as residential with the 
addition of a small scale agricultural area.  Inclusion of the northern extension of 
the property is consistent with the goals of the Highway 50 Corridor Overlay.  
Staff recommends approval of zoning with conditions. 

 
C.  Applicant’s Presentation:   None 
 
 D. Public Input –  None  
     

 
 E.  Closed Public Hearing – 6:27 PM 
 
F.   Commission Discussion – Wood opened discussion and believes the RMU 

zone is appropriate because the property does not have Highway 50 frontage and 
Thomas agreed.   

 
  G.  Commission Action – A motion was made by Bomer to make the 

recommended findings and take the recommended action be taken, and make a 
recommendation of approval to City council. 

 
 Berg seconded the motion.   All were in favor and the motion carried. 
 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 156 of 199



3. HRRMC- Annexation - The request is to annex to the City of Salida (the “City”) a 
certain unincorporated tract of land comprised of 21.97 acres located at 1000 Rush 
Drive, County of Chaffee, and State of Colorado, adjacent to the Heart of the 
Rockies Medical Center. 
 

A.  Open Public Hearing - 6:28 PM   
  

B.  Staff Review of Application:    Kaiser stated that Heart of the Rockies Regional 
Medical Center had withdrawn the PD modification application.  This evening 
we will be speaking to the annexation and zoning of the 21.97 acres located 
adjacent to the HRRMC located at 1000 Rush Drive Salida, CO only.  Kaiser 
explained that this is a natural extension to the city, the property is adjacent to 
existing water and sewer and it is already served by both the police and fire 
departments.  The hospital would like to have access to the property thru CR 
154, which will be relocated on the northern boundary of the annexation.  They 
currently have a permit with C-DOT and is under review.  Chaffee County will 
be maintaining County Road 154.  Trails will also be put into the annexation 
agreement.  Staff recommends approval of the 21.97 acres north and west and 
adjacent to the HRRMC 1-A with 1 condition.     

 
C.  Applicant’s Presentation:   - None 
 
 D. Public Input – Paige Judd 834 Crestone Salida, CO- Wanted to discuss the 

height variance, which has been withdrawn at this time.  Kirby Perschbacher 
8970 CR 126 Salida, CO- Requested the commission extend this hearing until next 
month, in the interest of the community, he does not think the public has been 
properly notified.   

     
 E.  Closed Public Hearing – 7:07 PM 
 
F.   Commission Discussion – Wood agreed that there was some confusion about 

the posting for the hearing but there was proper noticing for the project.  He 
would like to see the annexation to move forward.  Wood stated that a second 
condition of approval should be added that the maximum building height of 
structures on Lot 1-A not exceed 35’.  Thomas asked what the height limit is 
within the current PD and it was confirmed by Jefferson that the height limit is 
54’.  Bomer was concerned about not having enough information with the 
current plans and wants to make sure that they can complete future projects 
within those restrictions.  Mike Wilber stated that the HRRMC owned buildings 
can be built up to the 54 feet according to the Land Use Code for their existing 
PD.  Other private buildings/clinics on the campus are kept at the 35 feet. Wood 
feels that a recommendation of a height restriction of 35’ for the newly annexed 
lot should be added as a condition of approval.   

 
  G.  Commission Action – A motion was made by Thomas to make a 

recommendation of approval to City Council for the annexation with the 
recommended conditions and adding a second condition, that the maximum 
building height of structures on Lot 1-A not exceed 35’. 

 
 Berg seconded the motion. All were in favor and the motion carried.  

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 157 of 199



 
 

4. HRRMC- Zoning - The request is to recommend zoning designation for the 
21.97 acres located at 1000 Rush Drive, Salida, Colorado known as Lot 1-A an 
addition to the Heart of the Rockies Regional Medical Campus.  The request is to 
designate the proposed annexation as Commercial. 

 
 A.  Open Public Hearing 7:07 PM   

  
B.  Staff Review of Application:   Kaiser gave an overview of the application stating 

the address of the property 1000 Rush Drive Salida, CO known as Lot 1-A 21.97 
acres.  The request is for a Commercial (C-1) zoning for the property and is 
consistent with the vision and goals set forth in the Comprehensive Plan and is 
compatible with adjacent land.  Staff recommends approval with 1 condition. 

 
C.  Applicant’s Presentation:   None 
 
 D. Public Input –  Kirby Perschbacher 8970 CR 126 Salida, CO - is under the 

impression that the Hospital is trying to get one over on the Commission with 
not spelling out what their intentions are.  Joe Judd agrees with Perschbacher 
and thought the drawings were misleading.  Katie Grether, with spot, looks 
forward to working with the hospital and on the new trail.  Wilber confirmed 
that the public notice was posted properly for tonight.    

     
 E.  Closed Public Hearing – 7:19 PM 
 

F. Commission Discussion – Wood was confused with the noticing as well, and 
agreed that the original PD was not the commission’s best work.  Kaiser added 
that planning commission will be recommending approval of the application to 
designate Lot 1-A with a Commercial (C-1) zone district.    

 
  G.  Commission Action – A motion was made by Denning to make the 

recommended findings and take the recommended action, and make a 
recommendation of approval to City council.  

       Thomas seconded the motion. All were in favor and the motion carried.   
 

VIII. UNFINSHED BUSINESS-  

IX. NEW BUSINESS-  
 

X.  COMMISSIONER’S COMMENTS- Kaiser brought up that a bed and breakfast 
should they be treated as a short-term rental, when it is just a room being rented.  
Commission would like to later discuss whether this falls under a bed and breakfast 
restriction.  Wood asked staff to have this added as an agenda item at a later date.  
Wood stated that the housing task force is coming together and things that are being 
discussed are Code changes, density and lot coverage are other topics that will be 
coming to the Commission in the near future for discussion and input.  Wood also 
explained that City needs three Planning Commissioners on the regional planning 
commission.   

XI. ADJOURN: With no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting 
adjourned at 7:41 PM.  

   

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 158 of 199



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION       Meeting Date:  April 18, 2017  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. 13.

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development Department 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Beverly Kaiser 

  

BY:    

 

 
ITEM:   Ordinance 2017-13 H.R.R.M.C. Annexation 1st Reading, An ordinance of the City Council for the 
City of Salida, Colorado, approving the annexation of 21.97 acres of land to the City of Salida. 

BACKGROUND: The request is to pass on first reading an ordinance annexing the Heart of the Rockies 

Medical Center Lot 1-A parcel.   

APPLICANTS: 
Heart of the Rockies Regional Medical Center, 1000 Rush Drive, Salida, CO 81201. 
 
LOCATION: 
The subject property is located northwest of the existing Heart of the Rockies Regional Medical Center property 
at 1000 Rush Drive.  
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW: 
Below is a brief summary of the process for annexations, proposal for the site, and the Planning Commission’s 

recommendation for the Annexation.  

To annex a property, the City must follow the steps and procedures outlined in the Colorado Revised Statutes. 
The final steps for annexation are passing an ordinance annexing the parcel into the City and then passing an 
ordinance zoning the property. The City Council reviewed and approved Resolution 2017-15 on March 21, 
2017, which found the petition for annexation in substantial compliance with state statutes and scheduled a 
public hearing for May 2, 2017. 
 
The Planning Commission reviewed the annexation application on March 27, 2017. The staff report and the 
draft minutes from the March 27th Planning Commission are attached to this memo.  
 

FISCAL NOTE: 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends passing Ordinance No. 2017-___ to annex the Heart of 

the Rockies Medical Center property on first reading with the following conditions: 

1. That the applicant include language in the annexation agreement and a plat note on the annexation plat 
regarding the provision of 14’ wide easements for 10’ wide crusher fines public trails to be built and 
maintained by the HRRMC at  

a. the toe of the hill near the southern property line of Lot 1-A connecting the hospital perimeter 
trail to the Angler’s Trail at the base of the hill at a point just above Co. Rd. 154 and  

b. a trail connecting the hospital perimeter trail north to the existing trail that connects Franz Lake 
to Sand Lake.  

This language shall also define the timing of the construction of the two trails.   

2. That the maximum building height of structures on Lot 1-A not exceed 35’.  

Suggested Motion: A Council person should make a motion “to approve Ordinance No. 13, 2017, An 

ordinance of the City Council for the City of Salida, Colorado approving the annexation of a 21.97 acre parcel of 

land to the City of Salida known as the HRRMC Lot 1-A Annexation with the two conditions of approval, setting 

the public hearing date for May 2, 2017, and ordering the ordinance to be published in full.”  

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 159 of 199



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION       Meeting Date:  April 18, 2017  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. 13.

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development Department 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Beverly Kaiser 

  

BY:    

 

 

 

Followed by a second and then roll call and vote. 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 160 of 199



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

ORDINANCE NO. 13 

SERIES OF 2017 

  

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO ANNEXING TO THE 

CITY OF SALIDA A CERTAIN TRACT OF LAND IN UNINCORPORATED CHAFFEE 

COUNTY KNOWN AS THE HEART OF THE ROCKIES MEDICAL CENTER LOT 1-A 

ANNEXATION. 

 

WHEREAS, on January 31, 2017, the Heart of the Rockies Medical Center, filed a 

General Development Application (the “Petition”) to commence proceedings to annex to the City 

of Salida (the “City”) a certain unincorporated tract of land comprised of 21.97 acres located at 

1000 Rush Drive, Salida, in the County of Chaffee, State of Colorado, and being more 

particularly described on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. §31-12-108, the City Council by Resolution No. 15, 

Series of 2017 specified that the City Council would hold a hearing on the proposed annexation 

at its regular meeting on May 2, 2017, commencing at the hour of 6 p.m. in the City Council 

Chambers, 448 East First Street, Salida, Colorado; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. §31-12-108 to -110, the City Council on May 2, 2017 

held a duly-noticed public hearing to consider the proposed annexation; and 

 

 WHEREAS, notice of such hearing was published on ________, ________, _______, 

and ________, 2017 in The Mountain Mail newspaper; and  

 

WHEREAS, C.R.S. §31-12-105(1)(e) provides that prior to the completion of any 

annexation within a three-mile area, the municipality shall have in place a plan for that area, 

which generally describes the proposed location, character, and extent of streets, subways, 

bridges, waterways, waterfronts, parkways, playgrounds, squares, parks, aviation fields, other 

public ways, grounds, open spaces, public utilities and terminals for water, light, sanitation, 

transportation and power to be provided by the municipality and the proposed land uses for the 

area; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City hereby sets forth its Findings of Fact, Determinations, and 

Conclusions with regard to annexation to the City of the Heart of the Rockies Medical Center 

Lot 1-A Annexation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City currently has in place a Comprehensive Plan and other long-range 

planning documents which constitute the City's annexation plan. 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF SALIDA, COLORADO, THAT: 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 161 of 199



1. The City incorporates the foregoing recitals as findings and determinations by the 

City Council. 

 

2. The annexation to the City of the HRRMC Lot 1-A Annexation described on 

Exhibit A is hereby approved with the following conditions of approval, and such real property is 

hereby annexed to and made a part of the City of Salida. 

 

1. That the applicant include language in the annexation agreement and plat notes on the 

annexation plat regarding the provision of 14’ wide easements for 10’ wide crusher fines 

public trails to be built and maintained by the HRRMC at  

a. the toe of the hill near the southern property line of Lot 1-A connecting the 

hospital perimeter trail to the Angler’s Trail at the base of the hill at a point just 

above Co. Rd. 154 and  

b. a trail connecting the hospital perimeter trail north to the existing trail that 

connects Franz Lake to Sand Lake.  

This language shall also define the timing of the construction of the two trails.   

 

2. That the maximum building height of structures on Lot 1-A not exceed 35’.  

 

3. Within ten (10) days after final publication of this Ordinance, the City Clerk of 

the City of Salida, Colorado, on behalf of the City shall: 

 

A. File one (1) copy of the Annexation Map and the original of this Annexation 

Ordinance in the office of the City Clerk of the City of Salida, Colorado; 

 

B. File for recording three (3) certified copies of this Annexation Ordinance and 

three (3) copies of the Annexation Map, containing a legal description of the 

annexation parcel, with the County Clerk and Recorder of Chaffee County, 

Colorado, with directions to the Chaffee County Clerk and Recorder to file 

one certified copy of this Annexation Ordinance and one copy of the 

Annexation Map with the Division of Local Government of the Department of 

Local Affairs of the State of Colorado and one certified copy of this 

Annexation Ordinance and one copy of the Annexation Map with the 

Colorado Department of Revenue; and 

 

C. File one certified copy of this Annexation Ordinance and one copy of the 

Annexation Map in the office of the County Assessor of Chaffee County, 

Colorado. 

 

INTRODUCED ON FIRST READING, on April 18, 2017, ADOPTED and ORDERED 

PUBLISHED IN FULL in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Salida by the City 

Council on the ___________ , 2017 and set for second reading and public hearing on the 2nd day 

of May, 2017. 

 

INTRODUCED ON SECOND READING, FINALLY ADOPTED and ORDERED 

PUBLISHED IN FULL, by the City Council on the 2nd day of May, 2017. 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 162 of 199



 

 

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

 

 

  

James LiVecchi, Mayor 

 [SEAL] 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

  

City Clerk/Deputy Clerk 

 

PUBLISHED IN FULL in the Mountain Mail after First Reading on the _____ day of 

__________, 2017, and BY TITLE ONLY, after final adoption on the ____day of __________, 

2017. 

 

 

  

City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 163 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 164 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 165 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 166 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 167 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 168 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 169 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 170 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 171 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 172 of 199



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION       Meeting Date:  April 18, 2017  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. 14.

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development Department 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Beverly Kaiser 

  

BY:    

 

 
ITEM:   Ordinance 2017-14 HRRMC Annexation Agreement 1st Reading, An ordinance of the City Council 
for the City of Salida, Colorado, approving an annexation agreement between the City of Salida and Heart of the 
Rockies Regional Medical Center. 

BACKGROUND: The request is to approve an Ordinance on first reading for the annexation agreement 

between the City of Salida and Heart of the Rockies Regional Medical Center. 

APPLICANT: 

Heart of the Rockies Regional Medical Center, 1000 Rush Drive, Salida, CO 81201  
 
LOCATION: 
The subject property is located northwest of the existing Heart of the Rockies Regional Medical Center property 
at 1000 Rush Drive.  
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW: 
To address the effects of an annexation a municipality and land owner may enter into an annexation agreement. 

The agreement is not required by law and is a matter of negotiation. The annexation agreement is a contract in 

which the municipality and landowner agree on certain mutually acceptable terms and conditions. Annexation 

agreements are permitted expressly by statute.  

The annexation agreement has been prepared and reviewed by staff and reviewed by the applicant.  The 

annexation agreement and legal description are attached. 

FISCAL NOTE: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends passing Ordinance No. 2017-14 approving the 

annexation agreement for the Snyder Annexation. 

Suggested Motions: A Council person should make a motion “to approve Ordinance No. 14, 2017, an 

ordinance of the City Council for the City of Salida, Colorado, approving the annexation agreement between the 

City of Salida and Heart of the Rockies Regional Medical Center for the H.R.R.M.C. Annexation.  

Followed by a second and then roll call and vote. 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 173 of 199



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION       Meeting Date:  April 18, 2017  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. 14.

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development Department 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Beverly Kaiser 

  

BY:    

 

 
 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 174 of 199



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION       Meeting Date:  April 18, 2017  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. 14.

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development Department 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Beverly Kaiser 

  

BY:    

 

 
 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 175 of 199



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

ORDINANCE NO. 14 

 (Series of 2017) 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, 

APPROVING AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT WITH THE HEART OF THE 

ROCKIES MEDICAL CENTER, FOR THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY INTO THE CITY. 

 

 WHEREAS, on February 27, 2017, Heart of the Rockies Regional Medical Center filed 

an Annexation Petition with the Salida City Clerk requesting that the Salida City Council 

commence proceedings to annex to the City a certain unincorporated tract of land located in the 

County of Chaffee, State of Colorado, known as the HRRMC Annexation and more particularly 

described on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (the 

“Property”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City adopted Ordinance No. __, Series of 2017, on May 02, 2017, 

annexing the Property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Salida entered into the HRRMC Annexation Agreement (the 

“Agreement”) on April 18, 2017 with Heart of the Rockies Regional Medical Center; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City and the Owner desire to enter into an Annexation Agreement, 

attached as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference, pursuant to C.R.S. §31-12-101 et 

seq. to set forth the terms and conditions of the Property’s annexation into the City. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SALIDA, COLORADO THAT:  

 

1. The aforementioned recitals are hereby fully incorporated herein.  

 

2. The City Council hereby approves the HRRMC Annexation Agreement. 

 

3. A copy of this Ordinance shall be recorded in the public records of Chaffee 

County to reflect such Amendment.   

 

INTRODUCED ON FIRST READING, ADOPTED and ORDERED PUBLISHED IN 

FULL in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Salida by the City Council on the 18th 

day of April, 2017 and set for second reading and public hearing on the 2nd  day of May, 2017. 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 176 of 199



City of Salida, Colorado 

Ordinance No.__, Series of 2017 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

INTRODUCED ON SECOND READING, FINALLY ADOPTED and ORDERED 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY, by the City Council on the 2nd day of May, 2017. 

 

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

 

 

___________________________ 

Mayor 

 

 

[SEAL] 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 

 

PUBLISHED IN FULL in the Mountain Mail after First Reading on the ____ day of 

______, 2017, and BY TITLE ONLY, after final adoption on the _____day of __________, 

2017. 

 

 

___________________________ 

Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 177 of 199



1 

 

00148850-7   

ANNEXATION AGREEMENT 

 

THIS ANNEXATION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 

_____ day of ________________, 2017, by and between the CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, 

a Colorado statutory city (“City”), and The Salida Hospital District, d/b/a The Heart of the 

Rockies Regional Medical Center (“Annexor”), each a “Party” and together the “Parties.” 

 

Section 1 - Recitals 

 

1.1 The Annexor is the fee title owner of 100% of certain lands known as the “Heart of the 

Rockies Annexation” and more particularly described on attached Exhibit A, which is 

incorporated herein by this reference (the “Property”). 

 

1.2 The Property is contiguous to the current municipal boundaries of the City and contains 

approximately 21.97 acres, more or less, in unincorporated Chaffee County, Colorado. 

 

1.3 The Annexor desires to have the Property annexed to the City, and the City desires to annex 

the Property on the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

 

1.4 Under Colorado law, the City may not annex the Property without the consent of the 

Annexor. 

 

1.5 On February 27, 2017, the Annexor filed with the City Clerk a petition for annexation of 

the Property (“Annexation Petition”). 

 

1.6 The City has determined that the Annexation Petition complies with the Colorado 

Municipal Annexation Act of 1965, as amended, Colorado Revised Statutes sections 31-12-

101 through -123 (the “Annexation Act”), and Article IX of the City’s Land Use and 

Development Code. 

 

1.7 The City has accepted the Annexation Petition, has given all notices and conducted all 

hearings required by the Annexation Act, has determined that the Property is eligible for 

annexation to the City, and has made all necessary findings in support of the annexation of 

the Property. 

 

1.8 On [[DATE]], City Council adopted Ordinance No. [[#]], annexing the Property to the City, 

and Ordinance No. [[#]], zoning the Property as Commercial District (C-1).   

 

1.9 The City and the Annexor desire to enter into this Agreement to set forth their agreements 

concerning the terms and conditions of the annexation of the Property to the City and the 

zoning and development of the Property. 

 

1.10 The City and the Annexor acknowledge that the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth 

are reasonable; within the authority of each to perform; necessary to protect, promote, and 

enhance the health, safety, and general welfare of the residents and property owners of the 

City; and mutually advantageous. 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 178 of 199



2 

 

00148850-7   

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants 

contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which is hereby acknowledged, the City and the Annexor agree as follows: 

 

Section 2 – Definitions 

 

 As used in this Agreement, the following terms have the following meanings: 

 

2.1 “Agreement” means this Annexation Agreement.  The Recitals in Section 1 above are fully 

incorporated into this Agreement and made a part hereof by this reference. 

 

2.2 “Annexation Act” means sections 31-12-101 through -123, Colorado Revised Statutes. 

 

2.3 “Annexation Petition” means the Petition for Annexation of the Property filed of record 

with the City Clerk on February 27, 2017. 

 

2.4 “Annexor” means The Salida Hospital District, d/b/a The Heart of the Rockies Regional 

Medical Center, and its successor(s) and agent(s). 

 

2.5 “City” means the City of Salida, a Colorado statutory City. 

 

2.6 “City Code” means the City of Salida Municipal Code. 

 

2.7 “City Council” means the City Council of the City of Salida, Colorado. 

 

2.8 “Dark sky-compliant” means lighting in compliance with Section 16-8-100 of the City 

Code and intended to reduce the unnecessary use of artificial light at night. 

 

2.9 “Effective Date” means the date on which City Council adopted a resolution approving the 

execution of this Agreement.  On the Effective Date, this Agreement will become binding 

upon and enforceable by the City and the Annexor. 

 

2.10 “Final Annexation Approval” means that all of the following have occurred: 

 

2.10.1 City Council has adopted a resolution approving the execution of this agreement; 

 

2.10.2 The effective date of Ordinance No. [[#]], annexing the Property to the City, has 

occurred; and 

 

2.10.3 The effective date of Ordinance No. [[#]], zoning the Property as Commercial 

District (C-1), has occurred. 

 

2.11 “Property” means the land that is described as the Heart of the Rockies Annexation in the 

Annexation Petition and that is legally described in attached Exhibit A. 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 179 of 199



3 

 

00148850-7   

2.12 “Reimbursable Costs and Fees” means all fees and costs incurred by the City in connection 

with the City’s processing and review of the proposed annexation, including without 

limitation processing and review of the Annexation Petition, zoning applications, and 

development proposals; and the City’s drafting, review, and execution of this Agreement. 

 

Section 3 – Purpose of Agreement and Binding Effect 

 

3.1 The purpose of this Agreement is to establish a contractual relationship between the City 

and the Annexor with respect to the annexation of the Property, and to establish the terms 

and conditions upon which the Property will be annexed, zoned, and developed.  The terms, 

conditions, and obligations described herein, including without limitation restrictions upon 

the zoning and development of the Property, are contractual obligations of the Parties, and 

the Annexor waives any objection to the enforcement of the terms of this Agreement as 

contractual obligations.  

 

3.2 This Agreement benefits and is binding upon the City, the Annexor, and the Annexor’s 

successor(s).  Unless otherwise specified herein, the Annexor’s obligations under this 

Agreement constitute a covenant running with the Property.  As described in Section 9.13 

below, the Annexor shall record this Agreement with the Clerk and Recorder of Chaffee 

County, Colorado.  

 

Section 4 – Annexation of Property 

 

4.1 The Annexor agrees to the Annexation of the Property, and the City agrees that it will 

annex the Property, only in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 

Section 5 – Terms and Conditions for Annexation of Property 

 

5.1 All terms and conditions imposed by this Agreement are in addition to and not in place of 

any and all requirements of the City Code, the Annexation Act, and all other applicable 

laws and regulations. 

 

5.2 Annexation of the Property to the City will not be effective until both of the following 

conditions have been met: 

 

5.2.1 The Annexor and the City have mutually executed and delivered this Agreement; 

and 

 

5.2.2 Final Annexation Approval has occurred. 

 

5.3 Zoning of Property.   

 

5.3.1 On March 27, 2017, the Salida Planning Commission recommended zoning of the 

Property as Commercial District (C-1).   

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 180 of 199



4 

 

00148850-7   

5.3.2 At its [[DATE]], 2017 meeting, the City Council approved zoning of the Property 

as Commercial District (C-1).  

 

5.3.3 Nothing in this Agreement limits, restricts, or abrogates in any way, and this 

Agreement is not to be construed to limit, restrict, or abrogate in any way, the power 

or authority of the City to rezone the Property or any portion thereof at any time 

after annexation, either on the City’s own motion or in response to a zoning petition. 

 

5.4 Utilities and Municipal Services. The City shall provide the Property the usual and 

customary municipal services provided by the City within its municipal limits generally, in 

accordance with the City Code and City policies. Limitations upon the availability of City 

utility service may exist from time to time. The Property is and will remain subject to all 

policies, ordinances, rules, regulations, platting restrictions, and permitting procedures 

currently in effect or enacted in the future to allocate or regulate the use of the City’s utility 

resources generally throughout the City. 

 

5.4.1 Water and Wastewater Service. The City shall provide water and wastewater 

treatment services to the Property upon the same basis as such services are provided 

to other properties within the City, subject to the rules and regulations given in 

Section 13 of the City Code, as it exists now and as it may be amended.  Water and 

wastewater treatment service are available on a “first come, first served” basis, and 

the availability of such services is determined at the time application therefor is 

made. The City’s obligation to provide water and wastewater treatment service to 

the Property is contingent upon the City’s certification that all water and wastewater 

facilities and all water- and wastewater-related improvements on the Property 

conform to approved plans and specifications and all applicable City standards for 

those facilities and improvements.   Connection to the City’s treated water and 

wastewater treatment facilities will be at the then-prevailing fees and rates for such 

connection and service.  The City reserves the right to refuse to provide wastewater 

treatment service for any effluent that includes prohibited wastes as described in 

Section 13-2-120 of the City Code, or that is beyond the City’s capability of treating 

in either quantity or quality. 

 

5.4.2 Fire Protection Services. The City shall provide fire protection services to the 

Property upon the same basis as such services are provided to other properties 

within the City. 

 

5.4.3 Police Services. The City shall provide police services to the Property upon the 

same basis as such services are provided to other property within the City. 

 

5.4.4 Electric, Natural Gas, Telephone, Cable TV, and Other Utility Services. The City 

does not provide electric, natural gas, telephone, or cable TV facilities or services. 

Such services are available within the City from private entities. The extension of 

such services to the Property is not the obligation or responsibility of the City. 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 181 of 199



5 

 

00148850-7   

5.4.5 Streets and Roads. Within its municipal boundaries, the City shall maintain any 

duly dedicated and accepted public streets and roads that serve the Property, both 

on- and off-site, upon the same basis as such services are provided to other 

properties within the City; provided, however, that all interior streets within the 

Property will be privately owned by the Annexor and its successor(s), and will be 

privately maintained by the Annexor and its successor(s). 

 

5.5 Fees.  The Annexor shall pay to the City the fees described below at the time set forth 

below: 

 

5.5.1 Annexor’s Reimbursement of Processing Fees.  The Annexor shall reimburse the 

City for all fees and actual costs incurred by the City in connection with the City’s 

processing and review of the proposed annexation, including without limitation 

processing and review of the Annexation Petition, zoning applications, and 

development proposals, and the City’s drafting, review, and execution of this 

Agreement (“Reimbursable Costs and Fees”).  The Reimbursable Costs and Fees 

include but are not limited to the City’s costs incurred for engineering, surveying, 

and legal services, including the services of outside City consultants and/or counsel; 

recording fees; printing and publication costs; and any and all other reasonable costs 

incurred by the City.  Interest will be imposed at rate of 1.5% per month on all 

balances not paid to the City within thirty (30) days of the effective date of the 

City’s invoicing of the Annexor for the Reimbursable Costs and Fees, with that 

effective date determined in accordance with Section 9.8 below.  In addition to any 

and all remedies available to the City and in the event the City is forced to pursue 

collection of any amounts due and unpaid under this provision or under this 

Agreement, the City shall be entitled to collect attorney’s fees and costs incurred in 

said collection efforts in addition to the amount due and unpaid. 

 

5.5.2 Payment of Currently Existing Fees as a Condition of Annexation.  The Annexor 

shall pay to the City any fees required to be paid under this Agreement or the 

currently existing City Code, regardless of whether the relevant provisions of the 

City Code are later amended, repealed, or declared to be invalid. Payment of such 

fees pursuant to this Agreement is agreed to by and between the Parties as a 

condition of the annexation, and as a pre-condition to any development review.  The 

Annexor further agrees not to contest any ordinance imposing such fees as they 

pertain to the Property.  

 

5.6 Interior Streets.  Streets within the Property will be privately owned and maintained by the 

Annexor.   

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 182 of 199



6 

 

00148850-7   

5.6.1 The Annexor shall build all interior streets to City design standards. 

 

5.6.2 The Annexor and its successor(s) shall privately maintain interior streets in 

perpetuity, in good and safe condition, and in keeping with best practices for road 

maintenance.  The City will not be responsible for maintenance or replacement of 

interior streets, or for the clearing or removal of snow from interior streets and their 

appurtenances. 

 

5.6.3 The City shall have the right, but not the affirmative or binding obligation, to enter 

onto the Property, with ten (10) days’ prior notice, to correct or maintain the 

condition of interior streets. In the event the City undertakes such correction or 

maintenance, the Annexor shall pay the actual costs of such correction or 

maintenance activity plus ten percent (10%) within thirty (30) days of the City’s 

delivery of an invoice to the Annexor for such costs. 

 

5.6.4 All interior streets must meet all Salida Fire Department requirements.  

 

5.6.5 In the case of underground utility repairs, the City shall complete the asphalt patches 

resulting from the repair to the City standards for asphalt patching in force at the 

time of the repair.  The City has no obligation and will bear no liability for any other 

street repairs or improvements as a result of the utility repair. 

 

5.7 Dedications and Easements.  At no cost to the City, the Annexor shall dedicate or convey to 

the City all rights-of-way, easements, and public land reasonably required by the City.  The 

City may require dedication of rights-of-way, easements, or public land at any time 

construction thereof or thereon is deemed necessary in the public interest, even if the 

Property is not being platted or developed at the time the City deems dedication of the 

rights-of-way, easements, or public land necessary. 

 

5.7.1 The Annexor shall dedicate public access and an easement for a trail along the toe of 

the hill near the southern property line of Lot 1-A within the Property (see depiction 

of trail location on Exhibit A), connecting the Hospital perimeter trail to the 

Angler’s Trail at the base of the hill at a point just above Co. Rd. 154.  The trail 

must be ten (10) feet wide, with an easement width of fourteen (14) feet, and must 

be constructed from concrete to allow for access by those with disabilities.  The 

Annexor shall construct said trail connection and dedicate or otherwise convey the 

above-described easement to the City within two (2) years of Final Annexation 

Approval.  The Annexor shall maintain the trail in perpetuity in a safe and usable 

condition. 

 

5.7.2 The Annexor shall dedicate public access and an easement for a trail between the 

Hospital perimeter trail in the northern portion of the property and the trail north of 

Co. Rd. 154 that connects Franz Lake to Sand Lake.  The trail must be ten (10) feet 

wide, with an easement width of fourteen (14) feet, and must be constructed from 

concrete to allow for access by those with disabilities.  The Annexor shall construct 

said trail connection and dedicate or otherwise convey the above-described 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 183 of 199



7 

 

00148850-7   

easement to the City within two (2) years of Final Annexation Approval.  The 

Annexor shall maintain the trail in perpetuity in a safe and usable condition. 

 

5.7.3 The Annexor shall dedicate public utility easements for all City water and sewer 

mains constructed and installed on the Property. 

 

5.7.4 The Annexor shall dedicate public utility easements for all interior streets.   

 

5.8 Water Mains.  The Annexor will stub 8-inch water main utilities across County Road 154 to 

provide a potential future connection to adjoining properties.  The City acknowledges that 

in accordance with City Code Sections 13-2-160 and 13-2-150, the Annexor may be 

eligible for a prorated utility reimbursement by the connecting properties for the extension 

completed by the Annexor.  Said reimbursement will be limited to a maximum of 50% of 

the cost of construction of the water main utilities. 

 

5.9 In the case of underground utility repairs, the City shall complete the asphalt patches 

resulting from the repair to the City standards for asphalt patching in force at the time of the 

repair.  The City bears and will bear no liability for any other street repairs or improvements 

as a result of such utility repair. 

 

5.10 All lighting on the Property must be “dark sky”-compliant. 

 

5.11 In meeting its obligations with respect to public improvements under this Section 5 and 

under the City Code, the Annexor shall deliver to the City a reasonable performance 

guarantee in the form of cash, a letter of credit, a cash bond, a performance bond, or another 

security instrument acceptable to and approved in writing by the City Attorney. 

 

5.12 Drainage.  Prior to any future development of the Property, the Annexor shall obtain the 

City’s approval of a master drainage plan that complies with all applicable laws, 

regulations, and ordinances.  The Annexor’s activities, operations, and development on the 

Property must comply with the master drainage plan and with all applicable laws, 

ordinances, and regulations pertaining to drainage. 

 

Section 6 – Zoning 

 

6.1 The Annexor requests and consents to Commercial District (C-1) zoning.  Upon Final 

Annexation Approval, the Property will be subject to and must adhere to all applicable 

zoning regulations of the City, as those regulations may be amended.  The Annexor shall 

cease and desist from any non-conforming uses on the Property within one (1) year from the 

date of Final Annexation Approval. In that one (1) year period, there must be no expansion 

of any non- conforming use. 

 

Section 7 – Breach by Annexor and City’s Remedies 

 

7.1 In the event of a breach of any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement by the 

Annexor, the City may take any action necessary or appropriate to enforce its rights, 

including without limitation any or all of the following: 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 184 of 199



8 

 

00148850-7   

 

7.1.1 The refusal to issue any building permit or Certificate of Occupancy to the Annexor; 

provided, however, that this remedy will be unavailable to the City until after the 

affidavit described in Section 7.1.2 below has been recorded; and provided further 

that this remedy will not be available against a bona fide third party. 

 

7.1.2 The recording with the Chaffee County Clerk and Recorder of a first affidavit 

approved in writing by the City Attorney and signed by the City Administrator or 

the City Administrator’s designee, declaring that the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement have been breached by the Annexor. At the next regularly scheduled City 

Council meeting following recording of such first affidavit, the City Council shall 

either approve the filing of said first affidavit or direct the City Administrator to file 

a second affidavit declaring that the default has been cured and nullifying the first 

affidavit. Upon the recording of a first affidavit, no parcels or portions thereof on the 

Property may be sold until the default has been cured.  An affidavit signed by the City 

Administrator or the City Administrator’s designee and approved by the City 

Council declaring that the default has been cured will remove this restriction and be 

sufficient evidence when recorded that the default has been cured. 

 

7.1.3 A demand that any performance guarantee given for completion of any public 

improvement be paid or honored. 

 

7.1.4 The refusal to allow further development review for the Property. 

 

7.1.5 Any other remedy available in equity or at law. 

 

7.2 Unless immediate action is necessary to protect the health, safety, or welfare of the City’s 

residents, the City shall give the Annexor ten (10) days’ written notice of the City’s intent 

to take any action under this Section 7, during which 10-day period the Annexor may cure 

the breach described in said notice and prevent further remedial action by the City. In the 

event the breach is not cured within the 10-day period, the City will consider whether the 

Annexor has undertaken reasonable steps to timely complete the cure if additional time is 

required.  

 

7.3 The District Court of the County of Chaffee, State of Colorado, will have exclusive 

jurisdiction to resolve any dispute over this Agreement. 

 

7.4 Any waiver by the City of one or more terms of this Agreement will not constitute, and is 

not to be construed as constituting, a waiver of other terms.  A waiver of any provision of 

this Agreement in any one instance will constitute, and is not to be construed as 

constituting, a waiver of such provision in other instances. 

 

Section 8 – Indemnification and Release 

 

8.1 Release of Liability.  The Annexor acknowledges that the City cannot be legally bound by 

the representations of any of its officers or agents or their designees except in accordance 

with the City Code, City ordinances, and the laws of the State of Colorado.  The Annexor 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 185 of 199



9 

 

00148850-7   

further acknowledges that it acts at its own risk with respect to relying or acting upon any 

representation or undertaking by the City or its officers or agents or their designees, which 

representation or undertaking subsequently is held unlawful by a court of competent jurisdiction.  

Accordingly, the Annexor expressly waives and releases any current or future claims 

related to or arising from any such representation or undertaking by the City or its officers 

or agents or their designees. 

 

8.2 Indemnification. 

 

8.2.1 The Annexor shall indemnify and hold harmless the City, and the City's officers, 

agents, employees, and their designees, from and against any and all claims, 

damages, losses, and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys' fees and costs, 

arising from or in connection with the following:  (a) the City’s approval of the 

proposed annexation, (b) the City’s approval of the proposed zoning, (c) any 

approval given during development review of the Property; (d) except to the extent 

of any actual negligence on the part of the City, and the City's officers, agents, 

employees, and their designees, any road or sidewalk enlargement, extension, 

realignment, improvement, or maintenance, or approval thereof; or (e) any other 

item contained in this Agreement. 

 

8.2.2 The Annexor shall reimburse the City for all fees, expenses, and costs, including 

attorneys’ fees and costs, incurred in any action brought against the City as a result 

of the City's approval of the proposed annexation and proposed zoning; and shall 

reimburse the City for all fees, expenses, and costs, including attorneys' fees and 

costs, associated with any referendum election, review of petition for referendum, 

protest, or any other proceedings to challenge the City’s approval of the proposed 

annexation or zoning. Nothing in this Agreement obligates or compels the City to 

proceed with any action or referendum position, other than as the City Council, in its 

sole discretion, directs. 

 

Section 9 – General Provisions 

 

9.1 Waiver of Defects. In executing this Agreement, the Annexor waives all objections it may 

have to any defects in the form or execution of this Agreement concerning the power of the 

City to impose conditions on the Annexor as set forth herein.  The Annexor further waives 

all objections it may have to the procedure, substance, and form of the ordinances or 

resolutions adopting this Agreement. 

 

9.2 Final Agreement. This Agreement supersedes and controls all prior written and oral 

agreements and representations of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and 

is the total integrated agreement between the Parties. 

 

9.3 Modifications.  This Agreement may be modified only by a subsequent written agreement 

executed by both Parties.  

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 186 of 199



10 

 

00148850-7   

9.4 Voluntary Agreement. The Annexor agrees to comply with all of the terms and conditions of 

this Annexation Agreement on a voluntary and contractual basis, as a condition of 

annexation of the Property to the City.  

 

9.5 Election. The Annexor represents and submits that to the extent an election would be 

required by the Annexation Act to approve the annexation or impose terms and conditions 

upon the Property to be annexed, the Annexor owns one hundred percent (100%) of the 

Property to be annexed, and would vote to approve the annexation and all terms and 

conditions as set forth herein. Thus, any election necessarily would result in a majority of the 

electors' approval to the annexation and the terms and conditions. 

 

9.6 Annexor’s Representations. All representations of the Annexor, either oral or as set forth in 

the Annexation Petition and zoning application, and all documents previously or 

subsequently submitted with reference thereto, are to be considered incorporated into this 

Annexation Agreement as if set forth in full herein.  

 

9.7 Survival. The City’s and the Annexor’s representations, covenants, warranties, and 

obligations set forth herein, except as they may be fully performed before or on the 

Effective Date, will survive the Effective Date and are enforceable at law or in equity. 

 

9.8 Notice. All notices required under this Agreement must be in writing and must be hand- 

delivered or sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, to 

the addresses of the Parties as set forth below. All notices so given will be considered 

effective immediately upon hand-delivery, and seventy-two (72) hours after deposit in the 

United States Mail with the proper address as set forth below. Either Party by notice so 

given may change the address to which future notices are to be sent. 

 

 

Notice to the City: City of Salida 

 Attn:  City Administrator and City Attorney 

448 East First Street 

Salida, CO 81201 

 

Notice to the Annexor:            Heart of the Rockies Regional Medical Center 

                                                1000 Rush Drive 

                                                Salida, CO 81201 

 

9.9 Terms and Conditions as Consideration for Annexation.  The Annexor acknowledges that 

the City’s decision to annex the Property is at the City’s sole discretion.  In consideration 

for the City’s agreement to annex, the Annexor agrees to be bound by all of the terms and 

conditions of such annexation contained herein, and further acknowledges that such terms and 

conditions are requisite to the City’s decision to annex the Property. The Annexor further 

agrees and acknowledges that its decision to proceed with annexation is a voluntary act of 

the Annexor, and that the Annexor has the sole and absolute discretion to withdraw its 

petition for annexation in lieu of such voluntary act. 

 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 187 of 199



11 

 

00148850-7   

9.10 Applicable Laws, Ordinances, and Regulations.  The Annexor understands and agrees that 

the Property, upon annexation, and all subsequent development of the Property, will be 

subject to and bound by the applicable provisions of laws, ordinances, resolutions, 

regulations, and policies of the City or the State as they exist at the time of annexation and 

as they may from time to time be amended or adopted.  Nothing in this Agreement 

constitutes or is to be construed as constituting a repeal of existing ordinances or 

regulations, or as a waiver or abnegation of the City’s legislative, governmental, or police 

powers to protect the health, safety, and general welfare of the City and its inhabitants. 

 

9.11 Termination.  In the event that the annexation of the Property is for any reason not 

completed, this Agreement will terminate and become null and void and of no force and 

effect.  In such an event, the Annexor shall pay all Reimbursable Costs and Expenses 

incurred by the City to the time of termination.  Otherwise, unless and until the Property is 

disconnected from the City in accordance with Colorado law, including without limitation 

sections 31-12-601 through -605, the term of this Agreement is perpetual. 

 

9.12 Severability.  The terms of this Agreement are severable.  If a court of competent 

jurisdiction finds any provision hereof to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining terms 

and conditions of the Agreement will remain in full force and effect.  

 

9.13 Recording.  The Annexor shall record this Agreement with the Clerk and Recorder of 

Chaffee County, Colorado. 

 

9.14 No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, confers or is 

intended to confer any rights or remedies whatsoever upon any person or entity other than 

the City, the Annexor, and the Annexor’s successor(s). 

 

WHEREFORE, the parties hereto have executed duplicate originals of this Agreement on 

the day and year first written above. 

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

 

By   Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

  
City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

By    Name  Title    

 

 

 

STATE OF COLORADO ) 

) ss. 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 188 of 199



12 

 

00148850-7   

COUNTY OF ) 

 

Acknowledged, subscribed, and sworn to before me this  day of  2017 by 

  , as Mayor, and  by  , as Clerk, on 

behalf of the City of Salida, Colorado. 

 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

My Commission expires:  . 

 

  
Notary Public 

 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF COLORADO ) 

) ss. 

COUNTY OF ) 

 

Acknowledged, subscribed, and sworn to before me this  day of  2017 by 

   as  of  . 

 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

My Commission expires:  . 

 

  
Notary Public 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 189 of 199



EXHIBIT A 

 

PROPOSED D.O.W. TO H.R.R.M.C. PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: 

 

A tract of land located within Tract 2 of the Colorado Division of Wildlife Subdivision Exemption 

(Reception No. 353750), being in the South Half of the Northeast Quarter (S½ NE ¼) and the 

Southeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (SE¼ NW¼) of Section 31, Township 50 North, 

Range 9 East of the New Mexico Principal Meridian, Chaffee County, Colorado, being more 

particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at the Southwest corner of Lot 1-R of the Heart of the Rockies Medical Campus Phase 

II Planned Development, being a point on the south boundary of the said S½ NE¼, from whence 

the East ¼ corner (brass cap) of said Section 31 bears South 89°18’11” East 1656.00 feet; 

Thence proceeding around the tract herein described, along the west and north boundaries of said 

Lot 1-R, the following two (2) courses and distances: 

First North 00°41’49” East 778.40 feet; and thence North 89°25’58” East 1018.54 feet to the 

Northeast corner of said Lot 1-R, being a point on a curve on the westerly right-of-way boundary 

of Colorado State Highway No. 291, said curve having a radius of 2004.93 feet and a chord which 

bears North 30°02’05” West 258.07 feet; 

Thence along the arc of said curve, to the right, a distance of 258.25 feet; 

Thence leaving said highway boundary, South 68°27’08” West 100.00 feet; 

Thence North 86°44’43” West 895.08 feet to the beginning of a curve to the right, said curve 

having a central angle of 35°20’02”, a radius of 280.0 feet and a chord which bears North 

69°04’42” West 169.95 feet; 

Thence along the arc of said curve a distance of 172.67 feet to the end of said curve; 

Thence North 51°24’40” West 50.94 feet; 

Thence South 04°03’35” West 900.39 feet; 

Thence North 89°18’11” West 472.97 feet; 

Thence North 86°14’41” West 1241.27 feet; 

Thence South 00°00’00” West 256.55 feet to a point on the north right-of-way boundary of 

Chaffee County Road No. 160; 

Thence South 86°14’41” East along said county road boundary 479.90 feet to the south boundary 

of the said SE¼ NW¼; 

Thence South 89°17’32” East 666.36 feet to the Southeast corner of said SE¼ NW¼; 

Thence South 89°18’11” East along the south boundary of the said S½ NE¼ a distance of 916.60 

feet to the point of beginning. 

Containing 21.97 Acres. 

 

The above described tract of land is identified as Lot 1-A on the D.O.W.–H.R.R.M.C. LOT LINE 

ADJUSTMENT plat which has been submitted to Chaffee County for approval. 

 

Property description prepared by: 

Michael K. Henderson 

203 G Street 

Salida, CO  81201  

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 190 of 199



April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 191 of 199



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION       Meeting Date:  April 18, 2017  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. 15.

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development Department 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Beverly Kaiser 

  

BY:    

 

 
ITEM:   Ordinance 2017-15 H.R.R.M.C. Zoning 1st Reading, An ordinance of the City Council for the City 
of Salida, Colorado, approving the zoning of the newly annexed parcel as Commercial (C-1). 

BACKGROUND: An ordinance of the City Council for the City of Salida, Colorado zoning certain real 

property known as the as the Heart of the Rockies Medical Center (HRRMC) Lot 1-A parcel with a Commercial 

(C-1) zone district. 

APPLICANTS: 
Heart of the Rockies Regional Medical Center, 1000 Rush Drive, Salida, CO 81201. 
 
LOCATION: 
The subject property is located northwest of the existing Heart of the Rockies Regional Medical Center property 
at 1000 Rush Drive.  
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW: 
Zoning of the property is the second step in the annexation process for the HRRMC Lot 1-A Annexation 

property.  The applicant has requested to be zoned Commercial (C-1) which is consistent with the 

recommendation of the Planning Commission.   

The Planning Commission reviewed the zoning application on March 27, 2017. The staff report and the draft 
minutes from the March 27th Planning Commission are attached to this memo.  
 

FISCAL NOTE: 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff would suggest passing the ordinance to zone the HRRMC Lot 1-A 

Annexation as Commercial (C-1). 

Suggested Motion: A Council person should make a motion “to approve Ordinance No. 2017-15, an 

ordinance of the City Council for the City of Salida, Colorado, zoning certain real property known as the HRRMC 

Lot 1-A Annexation with a Commercial zone district designation, and setting the public hearing date for May 2, 

2017 and ordering the ordinance to be published in full.”  

 

Followed by a second and then roll call and vote. 

  

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 192 of 199



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

ORDINANCE NO. 15 

 SERIES OF 2017  

  

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, ZONING CERTAIN 

REAL PROPERTY KNOWN AS THE HEART OF THE ROCKIES MEDICAL CENTER 

(HRRMC) LOT 1-A ANNEXATION AS COMMERCIAL (C-1) ZONE DISTRICT 

 

WHEREAS, January 31, 2017, the Heart of the Rockies Medical Center (“Petitioner”), 

filed a General Development Application to commence proceedings to annex to the City of 

Salida (the “City”) a certain unincorporated tract of land comprised of 21.97 acres located at 

1000 Rush Drive, Salida, County of Chaffee, State of Colorado (the “Property”), and being more 

particularly described on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. ___, Series of 2017 the City of Salida annexed the Heart 

of the Rockies Medical Center Lot 1-A Annexation to the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, Petitioner has filed an application to zone the Property within the 

Commercial (C-1) zone district, and on March 27, 2017 the City of Salida Planning Commission 

considered the zoning application for the Property and recommended that the City Council zone 

as Commercial  (C-1); and 

 

WHEREAS, as required by the Salida Municipal Code, the public hearing on the zoning 

application for the HRRMC Lot 1-A Annexation was held on May 2, 2017 at a regularly 

scheduled meeting of the Salida City Council. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF SALIDA, COLORADO, THAT: 

 

 1. The aforementioned recitals are hereby fully incorporated herein.   

 

2. The Property described on Exhibit A is hereby zoned Commercial (C-1). 

 

3. Promptly following adoption of this Ordinance, the City Administrator shall cause 

the terms of this Ordinance to be incorporated into the Official Zoning Map of the City pursuant 

to Section 16-4-210 of the SMC, together with the Ordinance number and date, date of 

amendment, and initials of the draftsman making the change.  The signed original copy of the 

Zoning Map shall be filed with the City Clerk.  The Clerk shall also record a certified copy of 

this Ordinance with the Chaffee County Clerk and Recorder.  The City staff is further directed to 

comply with all provisions of the Salida Land Use Regulations, SMC §16-1-10, et seq., to 

implement the provisions of this Ordinance. 

 

 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 193 of 199



INTRODUCED ON FIRST READING, on April 18, 2017, ADOPTED and ORDERED 

PUBLISHED IN FULL in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Salida by the City 

Council on the ____ day of __________, 2017 and set for second reading and public hearing on 

the 2nd day of May, 2017. 

 

 

INTRODUCED ON SECOND READING, FINALLY ADOPTED and ORDERED 

PUBLISHED IN FULL, by the City Council on the 2nd day of May, 2017. 

 

 

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

 

 

  

James LiVecchi, Mayor 

 [SEAL] 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

  

City Clerk/Deputy Clerk 

 

PUBLISHED IN FULL in the Mountain Mail after First Reading on the ____ day of 

__________, 2017, and BY TITLE ONLY, after final adoption on the ____day of __________, 

2017. 

 

 

  

City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 194 of 199



 PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

  
   

MEETING DATE: March 27, 2017      
  
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Heart of the Rockies Regional Medical Center Annexation - Zoning 

Review  
 
AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing    
  
 
REQUEST:  
The request is to recommend zoning designation for the 21.97 acres located at 1000 Rush Drive, 
Salida, Colorado known as Lot 1-A addition to the Heart of the Rockies Regional Medical Campus 
Planned Development.  The request is to designate the proposed annexation as PD Planned 
Development with C-1 as the underlying zone.   
 
APPLICANT:  Salida Hospital District “Heart of the Rockies Regional Medical Center” 1000 Rush 
Drive, Salida, Colorado 81201 
 
LOCATION: 
The subject property is a certain unincorporated tract of land comprised of 21.97 acres on Hwy 291, 
north and west of the Heart of the Rockies Regional Medical Center, County of Chaffee, State of 
Colorado as shown on the attached annexation plat.  With the new annexation, the combined total 
area of the medical campus would be 46.29 acres. 
            
BACKGROUND REVIEW: 
 
All territory annexed to the City subsequent to July 3, 2002 shall be zoned according to district 
classifications of Article IV and detailed in Section 16-4-20. Such classification shall be determined 
by the City Council, upon recommendation of the Planning Commission.  
 
Zoning of the property is the second step in the annexation process. The applicant is requesting a 
PD Planned Development, with C-1 underlying zone Zone District designation.   This is to 
accommodate the expansion of the Heart of the Rockies Regional Medical campus.  The existing 
zoning on the property in Chaffee County is RUR (Rural).  Adjacent properties to the west and 
north within the County are zoned RUR (Rural).  Property south of the proposed annexation is 
zoned RES (residential) in Chaffee County.  The Heart of the Rockies Regional Medical Center PD 
is located east and southeast of the proposed annexation. 
 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 195 of 199



The Heart of the Rockies Regional Medical Campus Planned Development was approved by the 
City Council via Ordinance No. 29, Series 2008 on November 6, 2008.  The ordinance referred to an 
Overall Development Plan map but no plan PD text, however, conditions of approval were included 
in the Council approval.  The final approving ordinance, maps, and copies of the minutes listing 
conditions of approval are attached. 
 
In addition to the annexation and accompanying zoning, the current application is for City Council 
approval of a “substantial modification” to the Hospital PD under Section 16-7-150 Modifications 
of the Salida Land Use and Development Code.  The text accompanying the application and Exhibit 
B (plan map) define the amended Master Plan Concept.  The proposed modifications include: 

1. A combined medical clinic and office space structure adjoining the existing main hospital 
building.  This structure is proposed at four stories, or 68 feet tall. 

2. A hanger and crew quarters for REACH Air Ambulance near the emergency room wing.   
3. Realignment of Co. Rd. 154 further south to provide access to the norther portion of the 

medical campus. 
4. Additional medical clinic on the northern portion of the campus. 
5. The Master Plan Concept illustrates a nursing home at the northwest corner of the property, 

but the applicants have stated that this use is conceptual in nature. 
6. A future addition of the existing hospital building on the northwest side. 

 
 
OBSERVATIONS:  
This section is intended to highlight observations or concerns raised by staff to assist the 
Commission in doing the same. Additional concerns or questions may arise after a presentation by 
the applicant. 
 

1. Annexation of the subject property is underway, with a public hearing scheduled before the 
City Council on May 2, 2017. Zoning the property is required at the time of annexation, or 
may occur within 90 days following annexation approval by the City Council.   

2. The property consists of approximately 21.97 acres of land located on Highway 291, north and 
west of the Heart of the Rockies Regional Medical Center.  

3. The proposed zoning district (PD) with C-1 as the underlying zone provides a logical 
extension of the regional medical campus.   

4. The property has access from Highway 291 and is to have access from relocation of County 
Road 154. 

5. The property may be served by city sewer and water.   

6. The zone district provides a compatible land use with surrounding properties. The proposed 
district is consistent with the goals of the Salida Comprehensive Plan. 

7. The application includes a substantial modification of an existing Planned Development.  As a 
PD “is a negotiated zone district” (16-7-40 (b) (1)), additional relevant items can be brought to 
the table during review.  During a site visit, staff noticed that opportunity exists for a trail 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 196 of 199



connection at the base of the hill along the southern portion of the property between the 
hospital perimeter trail to Co. Rd. 154 or the trail to Franz Lake that drops off of Co. Rd. 160. 
This trail connection could be included in an annexation agreement for the annexation of Lot 
1-A or as a condition of approval for the amended Planned Development. 

8. The current PD modification application includes a proposed height deviation of 68 feet for 
the new medical clinic/office structure adjoining the hospital.  Section 16-7-40 (b) (8) of the 
Planned Development plan evaluation criteria states: 

The maximum height of buildings may be increased above the maximum permitted for like buildings 
in other zone districts.  In no case shall a building exceed the maximum height requirement if the 
deviation shall result in: 

a. Adverse visual impacts on adjacent sites or other areas in the vicinity, including extreme contrast, 
interruption of vistas or scale that is disproportionate to surrounding development or natural features. 

b. Potential problems for adjacent sites caused by shadows, loss of air circulation or loss of view. 

c. Inability to provide adequate fire protection using equipment currently in use by the Fire 
Department. 

 

REVIEW STANDARDS FOR MAP AMENDMENTS Section 16-4-210 (c) 

1. Consistent with Comprehensive Plan. The proposed amendment shall be consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan. 

 The property is a natural extension of the City’s municipal boundary. The annexation 
and PD with C-1 underlying zone for the property is consistent with the vision and 
goals set forth in the Comprehensive Plan and is compatible with adjacent land and 
appropriate for the area.  

2. Consistency with Purpose of Zone District. The proposed amendment shall be 
consistent with the purpose of the zone district to which the property is to be designated.  

 The applicant is requesting one zone district, PD Planned Development with C-1 
underlying zone. Designation of the subject property is consistent with the 
surrounding area and will provide appropriate land use. 

3. Compatibility with Surrounding Zone Districts and Uses. The development 
permitted by the proposed amendment shall be compatible with surrounding zone districts, 
land uses and neighborhood character.   

 The zoning classification is consistent with the zoning of other properties in the area. 
The proposal is adjacent to the hospital Planned Development (PD) zoning in the 
City.  

4. Changed Conditions or Errors. The applicant shall demonstrate that conditions 
affecting the subject or the surrounding neighborhood have changed, or that due to 
incorrect assumptions or conclusions about the property, one (1) or more errors in the 
boundaries shown on the Official Zoning Map have occurred.  

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 197 of 199



 This application is a result of the need for zoning due to annexation, not due to a 
map error or change in use in the neighborhood.  

 
PROJECT REVIEW HISTORY:  

The Heart of the Rockies Regional Medical Center Lot 1-A Annexation proposal went 
before the City Council and Planning Commission for joint “concept” review on February 
22, 2017.  Comments were generally favorable.  The fact that the proposed annexation 
enables much needed expansion of the medical campus was the focus of discussion. 
 
On March 21, 2017 the application went before the City Council for consideration of a 
resolution before the Council finding substantial compliance on the part of the annexation 
proposal and setting the date for public hearing with regard to an annexation petition.  The 
resolution passed and the hearing date was set for May 2, 2017 
 

RECOMMENDED FINDINGS:  
1. That the application is in compliance with the review standards for map amendments. The 

proposed PD Planned Development with C-1 underlying zone designation for the property 
furthers the goals and policies of the Salida Comprehensive Plan and are compatible with the 
zoning and use of nearby and neighboring properties.  
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Based upon the observations, review standards, and findings outlined above, staff recommends the 
following: 
 
That the Commission recommend APPROVAL of the application to designate the proposal to 
annex the property at 1000 Rush Drive as PD Planned Development with underlying C-1 Zone 
District.  
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
That the recommended findings be made and the recommended action be taken. 
 
BECAUSE THIS APPLICATION IS FOR A ZONING OF AN ANNEXATION.   THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION IS MAKING A RECOMMENDATION TO THE SALIDA 
CITY COUNCIL WHICH WILL MAKE THE FINAL DECISION ON THIS 
APPLICATION. 
 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 198 of 199



City Administrator Report 
City of Salida, CO 

April 18, 2017 
 
Community Development Director:  Administration has hired Mr. Glen Van Nimwegen, AICP as 
the new Community Development Director for the City of Salida.  Mr. Van Nimwegen is the 
current Planning and Development Services Director for Telluride Mountain Village.  Over his 
thirty plus year career he has served as Community Development Director for the City of Littleton, 
CO and the City of Peoria, AZ, as well as the Assistant Director of Planning and Development for 
the City of Chandler, AZ among other professional positions.  Mr. Van Nimwegen holds a Bachelor 
of Science in Design and a Masters in Public Administration with an emphasis in Urban 
Management and Planning from Arizona State University.  Administration believes his depth of 
experience will be an asset to Salida as the community wrestles with complicated and pressing 
development issues.  His start date is targeted for May 8. 
 
Grant Manager Position:  A recent internal analysis noted that this year the City of Salida will be 
administering nearly $2 million in grants from over a half dozen sources.  To this end, 
administration will pursue creating and filling a position specifically designed to administer these 
grants after their award.  It is expected this position will be most effective as a contract position.  
The 2017 Budget has $5,000 earmarked for “consulting-general” in the Economic Development 
Fund (33-16-52-41-0) which, due to no other defined uses of this line, would be the natural 
location where this position would derive its funding. 
 
Court Clerk/Administrative Assistant:  As approved in the 2017 budget, Administration will be 
posting a job announcement for the combined positions of Court Clerk and Administrative 
Assistant.  Neither of these positions are fulltime positions but both are important.  Currently 
April Franklin is covering the court clerk position while also holding down the duties of Planner 
Tech I which, with an increase in planning applications, is taking up more and more of her time.  
She will move over full time to Planner Tech I and a new person will assume her clerk duties as 
well as provide needed administrative assistance to all the first floor city departments within the 
Touber Building.   
 
Please note, Sec. 2-5-60 of the Salida Code states that “…The City Administrator, with the 
approval of the City Council, may appoint a person to serve as Court Clerk, whose duties shall be 
those assigned by the Municipal Judge…”  If it is the desire of Council, you may give this 
perfunctory “approval” now as in the past it has not been a formalized action of this body.     
 
RV Dump Station:  Per direction of the City Council, administration reached out the Poncha 
Springs to see where there might be possibilities in cooperation regarding their RV Dump Station.  
Poncha Springs administration responded positively and both communities are reviewing what 
will work best with both parties. 
 
Continued Updates:  In between the time of this report being written and the Council meeting 
administration expects the possibility of more items to be added as a verbal update. 

April 18, 2017 City Council Meeting Packet 
Page 199 of 199



4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 1 of 37

Budget Report
City of Salida, CO Account Summary

For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 10 - GENERAL FUND

Revenue

Department: 00 - General

Category: 40 - Tax Revenue

Sales Tax - City 2,259,422.00 282,203.16 -1,977,218.84 87.51 %0.0010-00-4010-0 2,259,422.00

Occupation Tax on Lodging 0.00 43,948.63 43,948.63 0.00 %0.0010-00-4020-0 0.00

Franchise Fees 340,000.00 76,006.03 -263,993.97 77.65 %11,170.4710-00-4030-0 340,000.00

Category: 40 - Tax Revenue Total: 402,157.8211,170.472,599,422.00 2,599,422.00 -2,197,264.18 84.53 %

Category: 41 - Fees for General Services

NSF Fees 0.00 40.00 40.00 0.00 %0.0010-00-4128-0 0.00

Vin Inspections 5,000.00 2,220.00 -2,780.00 55.60 %320.0010-00-4181-0 5,000.00

Charge for Copies & Open Records 1,000.00 34.25 -965.75 96.58 %32.7510-00-4191-0 1,000.00

Category: 41 - Fees for General Services Total: 2,294.25352.756,000.00 6,000.00 -3,705.75 61.76 %

Category: 44 - Intergovernmental Revenue

Sales Tax - County 1,800,000.00 115,588.67 -1,684,411.33 93.58 %0.0010-00-4410-0 1,800,000.00

Cigarette Tax 19,000.00 7,119.71 -11,880.29 62.53 %1,666.2710-00-4420-0 19,000.00

Other State Taxes 65,000.00 9,409.31 -55,590.69 85.52 %0.0010-00-4425-0 65,000.00

Highway Users Tax 218,378.00 34,234.17 -184,143.83 84.32 %0.0010-00-4430-0 218,378.00

Motor Vehicle Registration 25,000.00 8,101.50 -16,898.50 67.59 %2,099.0010-00-4432-0 25,000.00

County Road & Bridge 8,000.00 3,583.77 -4,416.23 55.20 %1,024.7710-00-4434-0 8,000.00

Federal Grants 57,225.00 0.00 -57,225.00 100.00 %0.0010-00-4450-3 0.00

State Grants 96,801.00 30,943.01 -65,857.99 68.03 %0.0010-00-4454-3 96,801.00

Grants - Pass-through 15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.0010-00-4458-1 15,000.00

Category: 44 - Intergovernmental Revenue Total: 223,980.144,790.042,247,179.00 2,304,404.00 -2,080,423.86 90.28 %

Category: 48 - Capital Revenue

Sale of Equipment 115,000.00 0.00 -115,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-00-4850-3 115,000.00

Insurance Proceeds 0.00 95,018.42 95,018.42 0.00 %12,380.0010-00-4860-3 0.00

Donations for Capital Improvements 28,500.00 10,000.00 -18,500.00 64.91 %0.0010-00-4870-3 28,500.00

Category: 48 - Capital Revenue Total: 105,018.4212,380.00143,500.00 143,500.00 -38,481.58 26.82 %

Category: 49 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Interest Revenue 20,000.00 6,341.54 -13,658.46 68.29 %0.0010-00-4901-0 20,000.00

Gains/Losses on Investments 0.00 764.45 764.45 0.00 %0.0010-00-4906-0 0.00

Rent, Leases & Royalties 60,000.00 14,006.04 -45,993.96 76.66 %3,290.0110-00-4911-0 60,000.00

Other Misc Revenues 1,000.00 6,681.97 5,681.97 668.20 %29.8710-00-4980-0 1,000.00

Category: 49 - Miscellaneous Revenue Total: 27,794.003,319.8881,000.00 81,000.00 -53,206.00 65.69 %

Department: 00 - General Total: 761,244.6332,013.145,077,101.00 5,134,326.00 -4,373,081.37 85.17 %

Department: 15 - Administration & Elected Officials

Category: 41 - Fees for General Services

Vital Statistics Records 18,500.00 8,111.14 -10,388.86 56.16 %1,081.2510-15-4171-0 18,500.00

Other Services Revenue 150.00 0.00 -150.00 100.00 %0.0010-15-4199-0 150.00

Category: 41 - Fees for General Services Total: 8,111.141,081.2518,650.00 18,650.00 -10,538.86 56.51 %

Category: 43 - Licenses and Permits

Liquor Licenses 14,000.00 2,478.75 -11,521.25 82.29 %148.7510-15-4301-0 14,000.00

Special Events Liquor Permits 1,200.00 100.00 -1,100.00 91.67 %0.0010-15-4302-0 1,200.00

Medical Marijuana Dispensary License 3,000.00 0.00 -3,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-15-4311-0 3,000.00

Business Licenses 4,000.00 325.00 -3,675.00 91.88 %50.0010-15-4321-0 4,000.00

Other Licenses and Permits 1,000.00 200.00 -800.00 80.00 %0.0010-15-4331-0 1,000.00

Category: 43 - Licenses and Permits Total: 3,103.75198.7523,200.00 23,200.00 -20,096.25 86.62 %

Department: 15 - Administration & Elected Officials Total: 11,214.891,280.0041,850.00 41,850.00 -30,635.11 73.20 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 2 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Department: 16 - Community Development

Category: 41 - Fees for General Services

Planning and Zoning Fees 40,000.00 16,884.43 -23,115.57 57.79 %2,233.7010-16-4141-0 40,000.00

Development Review Reimbursements 7,500.00 4,673.66 -2,826.34 37.68 %2,282.3910-16-4142-1 7,500.00

Category: 41 - Fees for General Services Total: 21,558.094,516.0947,500.00 47,500.00 -25,941.91 54.61 %

Category: 49 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Land Dedication (Fees in Lieu) 0.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 %0.0010-16-4931-3 0.00

Category: 49 - Miscellaneous Revenue Total: 6,000.000.000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 16 - Community Development Total: 27,558.094,516.0947,500.00 47,500.00 -19,941.91 41.98 %

Department: 21 - Police

Category: 41 - Fees for General Services

Other Services Revenue 3,000.00 300.00 -2,700.00 90.00 %0.0010-21-4199-0 3,000.00

Category: 41 - Fees for General Services Total: 300.000.003,000.00 3,000.00 -2,700.00 90.00 %

Category: 42 - Fines & Forfeitures

Court Fines 35,000.00 9,904.20 -25,095.80 71.70 %1,615.0010-21-4201-0 35,000.00

Parking Fines 15,000.00 6,030.00 -8,970.00 59.80 %1,090.0010-21-4204-0 15,000.00

Court Cost Charges 6,000.00 3,243.24 -2,756.76 45.95 %390.0010-21-4221-0 6,000.00

Category: 42 - Fines & Forfeitures Total: 19,177.443,095.0056,000.00 56,000.00 -36,822.56 65.75 %

Category: 49 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Community Programs Donations 0.00 50.00 50.00 0.00 %0.0010-21-4920-0 0.00

Category: 49 - Miscellaneous Revenue Total: 50.000.000.00 0.00 50.00 0.00 %

Department: 21 - Police Total: 19,527.443,095.0059,000.00 59,000.00 -39,472.56 66.90 %

Department: 22 - Fire

Category: 41 - Fees for General Services

Fire Plans & Inspections 5,000.00 1,528.10 -3,471.90 69.44 %30.0010-22-4161-0 5,000.00

Emergency Response Fees 20,000.00 0.00 -20,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-22-4166-0 20,000.00

Category: 41 - Fees for General Services Total: 1,528.1030.0025,000.00 25,000.00 -23,471.90 93.89 %

Category: 44 - Intergovernmental Revenue

South Ark Fire District 70,000.00 0.00 -70,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-22-4460-0 70,000.00

Category: 44 - Intergovernmental Revenue Total: 0.000.0070,000.00 70,000.00 -70,000.00 100.00 %

Category: 49 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Fireworks Donations 5,000.00 1,131.79 -3,868.21 77.36 %0.0010-22-4921-0 5,000.00

Category: 49 - Miscellaneous Revenue Total: 1,131.790.005,000.00 5,000.00 -3,868.21 77.36 %

Department: 22 - Fire Total: 2,659.8930.00100,000.00 100,000.00 -97,340.11 97.34 %

Department: 30 - Streets Infrastructure

Category: 41 - Fees for General Services

Public Works Charges 10,000.00 4,235.00 -5,765.00 57.65 %0.0010-30-4151-0 10,000.00

Category: 41 - Fees for General Services Total: 4,235.000.0010,000.00 10,000.00 -5,765.00 57.65 %

Department: 30 - Streets Infrastructure Total: 4,235.000.0010,000.00 10,000.00 -5,765.00 57.65 %

Department: 31 - Facilities & Vehicle Management

Category: 41 - Fees for General Services

Public Works Charges 22,000.00 3,472.65 -18,527.35 84.22 %0.0010-31-4151-0 22,000.00

Category: 41 - Fees for General Services Total: 3,472.650.0022,000.00 22,000.00 -18,527.35 84.22 %

Department: 31 - Facilities & Vehicle Management Total: 3,472.650.0022,000.00 22,000.00 -18,527.35 84.22 %

Department: 51 - Pool & Recreation

Category: 45 - Fees for Recreation & Event Services

Hot Springs Pool 404,000.00 108,465.05 -295,534.95 73.15 %6,451.8710-51-4501-0 404,000.00

Soaking Pool Fees 25,000.00 7,467.00 -17,533.00 70.13 %474.0010-51-4506-0 25,000.00

Vending Machine Commissions 600.00 57.15 -542.85 90.48 %0.0010-51-4519-0 600.00

Recreation Programs 40,000.00 10,644.50 -29,355.50 73.39 %220.0010-51-4521-0 40,000.00

Other Recreation Revenues 10,000.00 2,339.42 -7,660.58 76.61 %0.0010-51-4529-0 10,000.00

Marvin Park Rentals/Fees 1,000.00 0.00 -1,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-51-4540-0 1,000.00

Park Rental Charges 16,000.00 3,845.00 -12,155.00 75.97 %110.0010-51-4541-0 16,000.00



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 3 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Category: 45 - Fees for Recreation & Event Services Total: 132,818.127,255.87496,600.00 496,600.00 -363,781.88 73.25 %

Department: 51 - Pool & Recreation Total: 132,818.127,255.87496,600.00 496,600.00 -363,781.88 73.25 %

Revenue Total: 962,730.7148,190.105,854,051.00 5,911,276.00 -4,948,545.29 83.71 %

Expense

Department: 15 - Administration & Elected Officials

Category: 51 - Personnel

Administrative Salaries and Wages 314,984.00 74,381.34 240,602.66 76.39 %10,793.5110-15-5101-0 314,984.00

Overtime 0.00 2,987.64 -2,987.64 0.00 %422.6710-15-5104-0 0.00

FICA Taxes 24,096.00 5,807.67 18,288.33 75.90 %841.9810-15-5111-0 24,096.00

Unemployment Insurance 945.00 216.53 728.47 77.09 %33.0210-15-5112-0 945.00

Health Insurance 50,000.00 7,605.55 42,394.45 84.79 %0.0010-15-5121-0 50,000.00

Other Benefits Costs 10,000.00 1,211.13 8,788.87 87.89 %319.6810-15-5129-0 10,000.00

Retirement 18,899.00 1,040.55 17,858.45 94.49 %262.2810-15-5131-0 18,899.00

Workers Compensation Insurance 1,200.00 479.69 720.31 60.03 %79.9810-15-5141-0 1,200.00

Wellness Program 1,000.00 350.00 650.00 65.00 %0.0010-15-5181-0 1,000.00

Recruiting & Hiring Costs 3,000.00 2,847.78 152.22 5.07 %141.4510-15-5191-0 3,000.00

Category: 51 - Personnel Total: 96,927.8812,894.57424,124.00 424,124.00 327,196.12 77.15 %

Category: 52 - Contracted Services

Professional Services 15,000.00 18,038.33 -3,038.33 -20.26 %4,174.2110-15-5201-0 15,000.00

Legal - General Services 80,000.00 10,745.87 69,254.13 86.57 %0.0010-15-5211-0 80,000.00

Legal - Special Projects 5,000.00 11,793.08 -6,793.08 -135.86 %230.0010-15-5213-3 5,000.00

Lawsuit Costs 5,000.00 61,947.71 -56,947.71 -1,138.95 %0.0010-15-5215-3 5,000.00

Audit 20,000.00 3,200.00 16,800.00 84.00 %0.0010-15-5217-0 20,000.00

IT - General Services 15,000.00 1,674.99 13,325.01 88.83 %0.0010-15-5221-0 15,000.00

IT - Special Projects 0.00 6,326.23 -6,326.23 0.00 %6,326.2310-15-5223-3 0.00

IT - Annual Maintenance, Support, Ho… 10,000.00 1,896.05 8,103.95 81.04 %50.0010-15-5224-0 10,000.00

Consulting - General 5,000.00 1,660.00 3,340.00 66.80 %0.0010-15-5241-0 5,000.00

Other Contracted Services 16,000.00 6,211.45 9,788.55 61.18 %0.0010-15-5298-0 16,000.00

Category: 52 - Contracted Services Total: 123,493.7110,780.44171,000.00 171,000.00 47,506.29 27.78 %

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials

Operating Supplies 2,500.00 822.36 1,677.64 67.11 %0.0010-15-5300-0 2,500.00

Office Supplies 4,000.00 2,285.84 1,714.16 42.85 %53.3010-15-5310-0 4,000.00

Gasoline & Diesel Fuel 250.00 22.69 227.31 90.92 %0.0010-15-5350-0 250.00

Motor Vehicle Parts 500.00 0.00 500.00 100.00 %0.0010-15-5355-0 500.00

Non-capital Tools & Equipment 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-15-5370-0 1,000.00

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials Total: 3,130.8953.308,250.00 8,250.00 5,119.11 62.05 %

Category: 54 - Utilities

Gas 5,500.00 990.03 4,509.97 82.00 %0.0010-15-5410-0 5,500.00

Electricity 7,000.00 5,233.21 1,766.79 25.24 %773.2110-15-5420-0 7,000.00

Water 1,500.00 112.79 1,387.21 92.48 %0.0010-15-5430-0 1,500.00

Sewer 1,500.00 112.77 1,387.23 92.48 %0.0010-15-5440-0 1,500.00

Telephone 3,600.00 1,930.28 1,669.72 46.38 %0.0010-15-5450-0 3,600.00

Broadband 600.00 1,012.71 -412.71 -68.79 %0.0010-15-5460-0 600.00

Trash Removal 750.00 209.60 540.40 72.05 %0.0010-15-5470-0 750.00

Category: 54 - Utilities Total: 9,601.39773.2120,450.00 20,450.00 10,848.61 53.05 %

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs

Postage & Freight 3,400.00 970.22 2,429.78 71.46 %23.7510-15-5501-0 3,400.00

Bank & Credit Card Fees 500.00 129.22 370.78 74.16 %68.8910-15-5503-0 500.00

Advertising 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-15-5505-0 2,000.00

Legal Notices & Document Recording 5,000.00 862.27 4,137.73 82.75 %0.0010-15-5506-0 5,000.00

Election Costs 12,000.00 0.00 12,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-15-5508-0 12,000.00

Subscriptions, Dues and Memberships 12,000.00 968.30 11,031.70 91.93 %0.0010-15-5513-0 12,000.00

Other Event or Program Costs 500.00 0.00 500.00 100.00 %0.0010-15-5520-0 500.00

Personnel Activities & Events 5,500.00 700.31 4,799.69 87.27 %0.0010-15-5528-0 5,500.00

Special One-Time Event Costs 1,000.00 750.00 250.00 25.00 %0.0010-15-5529-3 1,000.00

Property / Casualty Insurance 88,000.00 42,851.67 45,148.33 51.30 %20,517.9610-15-5530-0 88,000.00



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 4 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Lease Expense - Copiers, Machinery &… 4,000.00 1,789.65 2,210.35 55.26 %0.0010-15-5544-0 4,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Buildings 6,000.00 1,397.07 4,602.93 76.72 %0.0010-15-5552-0 6,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Copiers & Of… 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-15-5554-0 1,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Machinery &… 0.00 171.58 -171.58 0.00 %0.0010-15-5556-0 0.00

Meeting Costs 1,000.00 328.08 671.92 67.19 %168.6810-15-5575-0 1,000.00

Training Costs 15,000.00 3,063.18 11,936.82 79.58 %1,450.1810-15-5580-0 15,000.00

Travel Costs - Mileage Reimbursement 2,000.00 440.85 1,559.15 77.96 %262.2210-15-5586-0 2,000.00

Travel Costs - Other 3,000.00 138.00 2,862.00 95.40 %138.0010-15-5589-0 3,000.00

Miscellaneous 500.00 -15.90 515.90 103.18 %0.0010-15-5599-0 500.00

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs Total: 54,544.5022,629.68162,400.00 162,400.00 107,855.50 66.41 %

Category: 56 - Financing Obligations

Lease Purchase Obligation - Principle 120,800.00 29,873.19 90,926.81 75.27 %0.0010-15-5615-0 120,800.00

Interest on Lease Purchase Obligations 41,032.00 10,584.81 30,447.19 74.20 %0.0010-15-5625-0 41,032.00

Category: 56 - Financing Obligations Total: 40,458.000.00161,832.00 161,832.00 121,374.00 75.00 %

Category: 59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999)

Touber Building - Minor Improvemen… 7,500.00 0.00 7,500.00 100.00 %0.0010-15-5921-0 7,500.00

Furniture & Fixtures 0.00 198.16 -198.16 0.00 %0.0010-15-5928-0 0.00

Computer & Software Expenditures 7,000.00 1,663.09 5,336.91 76.24 %34.9710-15-5941-0 7,000.00

Audio Visual Equipment 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-15-5943-0 5,000.00

Other Budgetary Capital Items 17,000.00 15,288.00 1,712.00 10.07 %0.0010-15-5991-3 17,000.00

Category: 59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999) Total: 17,149.2534.9736,500.00 36,500.00 19,350.75 53.02 %

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +)

Elevator Replacement 60,000.00 202.63 59,797.37 99.66 %0.0010-15-6028-3 60,000.00

Audio Visual Equipment 5,000.00 7,825.81 -2,825.81 -56.52 %0.0010-15-6043-3 5,000.00

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) Total: 8,028.440.0065,000.00 65,000.00 56,971.56 87.65 %

Department: 15 - Administration & Elected Officials Total: 353,334.0647,166.171,049,556.00 1,049,556.00 696,221.94 66.33 %

Department: 16 - Community Development

Category: 51 - Personnel

Salaries and Wages 182,639.00 19,253.45 163,385.55 89.46 %2,676.9810-16-5101-0 182,639.00

FICA Taxes 13,972.00 1,458.09 12,513.91 89.56 %203.1010-16-5111-0 13,972.00

Unemployment Insurance 548.00 57.50 490.50 89.51 %7.9610-16-5112-0 548.00

Health Insurance 15,000.00 2,680.50 12,319.50 82.13 %0.0010-16-5121-0 15,000.00

Other Benefits Costs 1,000.00 203.86 796.14 79.61 %56.3910-16-5129-0 1,000.00

Retirement 10,958.00 971.62 9,986.38 91.13 %122.3210-16-5131-0 10,958.00

Workers Compensation Insurance 300.00 50.67 249.33 83.11 %16.8910-16-5141-0 300.00

Recruiting & Hiring Costs 0.00 390.04 -390.04 0.00 %0.0010-16-5191-0 0.00

Category: 51 - Personnel Total: 25,065.733,083.64224,417.00 224,417.00 199,351.27 88.83 %

Category: 52 - Contracted Services

Legal - General Services 2,000.00 23.17 1,976.83 98.84 %0.0010-16-5211-0 2,000.00

Legal - Reimbursable Charges 1,000.00 1,817.00 -817.00 -81.70 %1,817.0010-16-5216-1 1,000.00

IT - General Services 1,500.00 500.01 999.99 66.67 %0.0010-16-5221-0 1,500.00

IT - Annual Maintenance, Support, Ho… 0.00 29.98 -29.98 0.00 %14.9910-16-5224-0 0.00

General Engineering 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-16-5233-0 5,000.00

Consulting - General 6,000.00 9,248.00 -3,248.00 -54.13 %3,825.0010-16-5241-0 6,000.00

Consulting - Special Projects 0.00 2,598.75 -2,598.75 0.00 %0.0010-16-5243-3 0.00

Other Reimbursable Services 7,500.00 5,514.95 1,985.05 26.47 %2,456.8910-16-5296-1 7,500.00

Category: 52 - Contracted Services Total: 19,731.868,113.8823,000.00 23,000.00 3,268.14 14.21 %

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials

Operating Supplies 500.00 10.00 490.00 98.00 %0.0010-16-5300-0 500.00

Office Supplies 1,500.00 252.52 1,247.48 83.17 %10.0010-16-5310-0 1,500.00

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials Total: 262.5210.002,000.00 2,000.00 1,737.48 86.87 %

Category: 54 - Utilities

Electricity 0.00 1,205.52 -1,205.52 0.00 %773.2110-16-5420-0 0.00

Telephone 100.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 %0.0010-16-5450-0 100.00

Category: 54 - Utilities Total: 1,205.52773.21100.00 100.00 -1,105.52 -1,105.52 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 5 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs

Postage & Freight 500.00 6.47 493.53 98.71 %0.0010-16-5501-0 500.00

Advertising 500.00 0.00 500.00 100.00 %0.0010-16-5505-0 500.00

Legal Notices & Recording Fees 500.00 42.31 457.69 91.54 %0.0010-16-5506-0 500.00

Subscriptions, Dues and Memberships 1,500.00 10.00 1,490.00 99.33 %0.0010-16-5513-0 1,500.00

Lease Expense - Copiers, Machinery &… 3,000.00 1,163.34 1,836.66 61.22 %0.0010-16-5544-0 3,000.00

Meeting Costs 500.00 0.00 500.00 100.00 %0.0010-16-5575-0 500.00

Training Costs 2,000.00 299.00 1,701.00 85.05 %39.0010-16-5580-0 2,000.00

Travel Costs - Mileage Reimbursement 600.00 153.01 446.99 74.50 %0.0010-16-5586-0 600.00

Travel Costs - Other 2,000.00 662.83 1,337.17 66.86 %0.0010-16-5589-0 2,000.00

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs Total: 2,336.9639.0011,100.00 11,100.00 8,763.04 78.95 %

Category: 59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999)

Computer & Software Expenditures 2,500.00 836.18 1,663.82 66.55 %0.0010-16-5941-0 2,500.00

Category: 59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999) Total: 836.180.002,500.00 2,500.00 1,663.82 66.55 %

Department: 16 - Community Development Total: 49,438.7712,019.73263,117.00 263,117.00 213,678.23 81.21 %

Department: 21 - Police

Category: 51 - Personnel

Police Salaries and Wages 935,932.00 286,431.61 649,500.39 69.40 %34,999.7610-21-5101-0 935,932.00

Overtime 67,000.00 19,010.71 47,989.29 71.63 %3,442.5510-21-5104-0 67,000.00

FICA Taxes 14,543.00 5,190.94 9,352.06 64.31 %655.5310-21-5111-0 14,543.00

Unemployment Insurance 3,009.00 891.00 2,118.00 70.39 %112.4310-21-5112-0 3,009.00

Death & Disability 13,000.00 5,927.70 7,072.30 54.40 %767.8810-21-5114-0 13,000.00

Health Insurance 175,000.00 50,193.70 124,806.30 71.32 %0.0010-21-5121-0 175,000.00

Other Benefits Costs 0.00 2,324.33 -2,324.33 0.00 %592.0410-21-5129-0 0.00

Retirement 3,500.00 983.72 2,516.28 71.89 %124.8810-21-5131-0 3,500.00

Pension - FPPA SWDB Contributions 50,000.00 19,097.48 30,902.52 61.81 %2,465.3010-21-5133-0 50,000.00

Pension - Old Hire FPPA Contributions 66,500.00 0.00 66,500.00 100.00 %0.0010-21-5135-3 66,500.00

Workers Compensation Insurance 33,000.00 6,798.57 26,201.43 79.40 %2,266.1910-21-5141-0 33,000.00

Wellness Program 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-21-5181-0 3,000.00

Recruiting & Hiring Costs 1,000.00 175.00 825.00 82.50 %0.0010-21-5191-0 1,000.00

Category: 51 - Personnel Total: 397,024.7645,426.561,365,484.00 1,365,484.00 968,459.24 70.92 %

Category: 52 - Contracted Services

Professional Services 2,000.00 57.75 1,942.25 97.11 %0.0010-21-5201-0 2,000.00

IT - General Services 10,000.00 2,499.99 7,500.01 75.00 %0.0010-21-5221-0 10,000.00

IT - Annual Maintenance, Support, Ho… 8,200.00 129.99 8,070.01 98.41 %0.0010-21-5224-0 8,200.00

Outside Lab & Analytic Services 15,000.00 6,798.60 8,201.40 54.68 %0.0010-21-5251-0 15,000.00

Other Contracted Services 64,000.00 12,298.96 51,701.04 80.78 %0.0010-21-5298-0 64,000.00

Category: 52 - Contracted Services Total: 21,785.290.0099,200.00 99,200.00 77,414.71 78.04 %

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials

Operating Supplies 5,500.00 3,958.13 1,541.87 28.03 %0.0010-21-5300-0 5,500.00

Office Supplies 3,800.00 725.39 3,074.61 80.91 %0.0010-21-5310-0 3,800.00

Clothing and Uniforms 11,300.00 4,324.13 6,975.87 61.73 %1,188.6310-21-5329-0 11,300.00

Firearms and Related Supplies 8,000.00 4,537.21 3,462.79 43.28 %126.4810-21-5340-0 8,000.00

Gasoline & Diesel Fuel 16,000.00 3,649.16 12,350.84 77.19 %97.2210-21-5350-0 16,000.00

Motor Vehicle Parts 6,000.00 2,731.15 3,268.85 54.48 %17.9410-21-5355-0 6,000.00

Non-capital Tools & Equipment 3,900.00 5,244.90 -1,344.90 -34.48 %0.0010-21-5370-0 3,900.00

Other Supplies 200.00 25.00 175.00 87.50 %0.0010-21-5390-0 200.00

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials Total: 25,195.071,430.2754,700.00 54,700.00 29,504.93 53.94 %

Category: 54 - Utilities

Gas 6,000.00 990.03 5,009.97 83.50 %0.0010-21-5410-0 6,000.00

Electricity 9,000.00 4,027.70 4,972.30 55.25 %0.0010-21-5420-0 9,000.00

Water 1,800.00 112.79 1,687.21 93.73 %0.0010-21-5430-0 1,800.00

Sewer 1,500.00 112.77 1,387.23 92.48 %0.0010-21-5440-0 1,500.00

Telephone 12,000.00 4,433.36 7,566.64 63.06 %0.0010-21-5450-0 12,000.00

Broadband 2,800.00 920.00 1,880.00 67.14 %0.0010-21-5460-0 2,800.00



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 6 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Trash Removal 600.00 209.40 390.60 65.10 %0.0010-21-5470-0 600.00

Category: 54 - Utilities Total: 10,806.050.0033,700.00 33,700.00 22,893.95 67.93 %

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs

Postage & Freight 500.00 56.98 443.02 88.60 %0.0010-21-5501-0 500.00

Bank & Credit Card Fees 0.00 69.00 -69.00 0.00 %0.0010-21-5503-0 0.00

Licenses, Fees & Permits 100.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 %0.0010-21-5511-0 100.00

Subscriptions, Dues and Memberships 9,500.00 3,491.36 6,008.64 63.25 %0.0010-21-5513-0 9,500.00

Other Event or Program Costs 500.00 0.00 500.00 100.00 %0.0010-21-5520-0 500.00

Lease Expense - Copiers, Machinery &… 3,000.00 1,216.22 1,783.78 59.46 %0.0010-21-5544-0 3,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Buildings 4,000.00 1,397.07 2,602.93 65.07 %0.0010-21-5552-0 4,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Copiers & Of… 1,700.00 0.00 1,700.00 100.00 %0.0010-21-5554-0 1,700.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Machinery &… 2,500.00 244.58 2,255.42 90.22 %0.0010-21-5556-0 2,500.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Vehicles 1,000.00 1,580.28 -580.28 -58.03 %360.8410-21-5558-0 1,000.00

Meeting Costs 0.00 157.56 -157.56 0.00 %0.0010-21-5575-0 0.00

Training Costs 13,000.00 1,945.99 11,054.01 85.03 %218.0010-21-5580-0 13,000.00

Travel Costs - Other 6,500.00 -72.14 6,572.14 101.11 %-72.1410-21-5589-0 6,500.00

Special Incident Response Costs 0.00 250.00 -250.00 0.00 %0.0010-21-5596-3 0.00

Miscellaneous 0.00 -0.99 0.99 0.00 %0.0010-21-5599-0 0.00

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs Total: 10,335.91506.7042,300.00 42,300.00 31,964.09 75.57 %

Category: 59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999)

Machinery & Equipment Expenditures 3,000.00 500.00 2,500.00 83.33 %0.0010-21-5931-0 3,000.00

Computer & Software Expenditures 2,800.00 1,458.47 1,341.53 47.91 %0.0010-21-5941-0 2,800.00

Other Budgetary Capital Items 57,225.00 0.00 57,225.00 100.00 %0.0010-21-5991-3 0.00

Category: 59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999) Total: 1,958.470.005,800.00 63,025.00 61,066.53 96.89 %

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +)

Building Acquisition 91,700.00 0.00 91,700.00 100.00 %0.0010-21-6021-3 91,700.00

Police Station - Routine Improvements 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-21-6022-0 6,000.00

Patrol Vehicle Routine Replacements 83,800.00 3,192.29 80,607.71 96.19 %0.0010-21-6031-0 83,800.00

Other Police Vehicles 11,700.00 0.00 11,700.00 100.00 %0.0010-21-6032-3 11,700.00

Machinery & Equipment 7,500.00 7,307.50 192.50 2.57 %0.0010-21-6035-3 7,500.00

IT - Capitalized Hardware & Software 5,500.00 6,552.00 -1,052.00 -19.13 %0.0010-21-6041-3 5,500.00

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) Total: 17,051.790.00206,200.00 206,200.00 189,148.21 91.73 %

Department: 21 - Police Total: 484,157.3447,363.531,807,384.00 1,864,609.00 1,380,451.66 74.03 %

Department: 22 - Fire

Category: 51 - Personnel

Fire Dept Salaries and Wages 742,529.00 199,155.23 543,373.77 73.18 %25,571.8210-22-5101-0 742,529.00

Overtime 50,000.00 21,806.71 28,193.29 56.39 %1,842.1310-22-5104-0 50,000.00

FICA Taxes 11,492.00 3,798.16 7,693.84 66.95 %495.1110-22-5111-0 11,492.00

Unemployment Insurance 2,378.00 637.02 1,740.98 73.21 %78.5210-22-5112-0 2,378.00

Death & Disability 9,000.00 3,467.14 5,532.86 61.48 %411.8410-22-5114-0 9,000.00

Health Insurance 120,000.00 29,096.30 90,903.70 75.75 %0.0010-22-5121-0 120,000.00

Other Benefits Costs 0.00 1,654.10 -1,654.10 0.00 %413.5310-22-5129-0 0.00

Pension - FPPA SWDB Contributions 48,000.00 16,226.26 31,773.74 66.20 %1,995.7210-22-5133-0 48,000.00

Pension - Old Hire FPPA Contributions 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-22-5135-3 10,000.00

Workers Compensation Insurance 36,000.00 7,542.37 28,457.63 79.05 %2,514.1110-22-5141-0 36,000.00

Recruiting & Hiring Costs 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-22-5191-0 1,000.00

Category: 51 - Personnel Total: 283,383.2933,322.781,030,399.00 1,030,399.00 747,015.71 72.50 %

Category: 52 - Contracted Services

Professional Services 4,800.00 1,600.00 3,200.00 66.67 %400.0010-22-5201-0 4,800.00

IT - General Services 4,100.00 1,025.01 3,074.99 75.00 %0.0010-22-5221-0 4,100.00

IT - Annual Maintenance, Support, Ho… 5,400.00 675.00 4,725.00 87.50 %675.0010-22-5224-0 5,400.00

Outside Lab & Analytic Services 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-22-5251-0 3,000.00

Other Contracted Services 2,200.00 0.00 2,200.00 100.00 %0.0010-22-5298-0 2,200.00

Category: 52 - Contracted Services Total: 3,300.011,075.0019,500.00 19,500.00 16,199.99 83.08 %

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials

Operating Supplies 5,900.00 713.69 5,186.31 87.90 %69.0910-22-5300-0 5,900.00



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 7 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Office Supplies 1,900.00 865.46 1,034.54 54.45 %496.6610-22-5310-0 1,900.00

Clothing and Uniforms 6,600.00 347.75 6,252.25 94.73 %0.0010-22-5329-0 6,600.00

Gasoline & Diesel Fuel 10,800.00 1,204.55 9,595.45 88.85 %0.0010-22-5350-0 10,800.00

Motor Vehicle Parts 6,000.00 209.79 5,790.21 96.50 %3.6910-22-5355-0 6,000.00

Non-capital Tools & Equipment 1,000.00 39.01 960.99 96.10 %31.0210-22-5370-0 1,000.00

Other Supplies 500.00 0.00 500.00 100.00 %0.0010-22-5390-0 500.00

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials Total: 3,380.25600.4632,700.00 32,700.00 29,319.75 89.66 %

Category: 54 - Utilities

Telephone 3,000.00 690.75 2,309.25 76.98 %0.0010-22-5450-0 3,000.00

Broadband 1,500.00 503.04 996.96 66.46 %0.0010-22-5460-0 1,500.00

Trash Removal 800.00 164.85 635.15 79.39 %0.0010-22-5470-0 800.00

Category: 54 - Utilities Total: 1,358.640.005,300.00 5,300.00 3,941.36 74.37 %

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs

Postage & Freight 500.00 12.14 487.86 97.57 %0.0010-22-5501-0 500.00

Licenses, Fees & Permits 200.00 150.00 50.00 25.00 %0.0010-22-5511-0 200.00

Subscriptions, Dues and Memberships 2,950.00 533.54 2,416.46 81.91 %0.0010-22-5513-0 2,950.00

Other Event or Program Costs 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-22-5520-0 1,000.00

Fireworks 14,000.00 14,300.00 -300.00 -2.14 %14,300.0010-22-5522-0 14,000.00

Lease Expense - Copiers, Machinery &… 1,400.00 352.56 1,047.44 74.82 %48.0210-22-5544-0 1,400.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Buildings 2,000.00 524.22 1,475.78 73.79 %0.0010-22-5552-0 2,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Copiers & Of… 500.00 369.49 130.51 26.10 %0.0010-22-5554-0 500.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Machinery &… 8,100.00 77.84 8,022.16 99.04 %0.0010-22-5556-0 8,100.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Vehicles 5,100.00 411.10 4,688.90 91.94 %83.5010-22-5558-0 5,100.00

Training Costs 6,000.00 3,704.70 2,295.30 38.26 %131.7010-22-5580-0 6,000.00

Travel Costs - Other 2,906.00 1,773.76 1,132.24 38.96 %93.7610-22-5589-0 2,906.00

Miscellaneous 0.00 -40.00 40.00 0.00 %-40.0010-22-5599-0 0.00

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs Total: 22,169.3514,616.9844,656.00 44,656.00 22,486.65 50.36 %

Category: 59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999)

Furniture & Fixtures 8,200.00 0.00 8,200.00 100.00 %0.0010-22-5928-0 8,200.00

Category: 59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999) Total: 0.000.008,200.00 8,200.00 8,200.00 100.00 %

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +)

Building Acquisition 91,700.00 0.00 91,700.00 100.00 %0.0010-22-6021-3 91,700.00

Kissell Restoration 67,500.00 4,665.50 62,834.50 93.09 %2,265.5010-22-6032-3 67,500.00

Machinery & Equipment 35,000.00 0.00 35,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-22-6035-3 35,000.00

Remote Control Monitor 13,000.00 0.00 13,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-22-6050-3 13,000.00

Wireless Intercoms 14,000.00 0.00 14,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-22-6051-3 14,000.00

Thermo Camera 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-22-6052-3 10,000.00

Cardiac Monitor 40,000.00 0.00 40,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-22-6053-3 40,000.00

Turnout Gear Replacement 9,000.00 0.00 9,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-22-6054-3 9,000.00

Extrication Tool Replacement 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-22-6055-3 5,000.00

Communication Equipment Replace… 16,000.00 0.00 16,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-22-6056-3 16,000.00

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) Total: 4,665.502,265.50301,200.00 301,200.00 296,534.50 98.45 %

Department: 22 - Fire Total: 318,257.0451,880.721,441,955.00 1,441,955.00 1,123,697.96 77.93 %

Department: 30 - Streets Infrastructure

Category: 51 - Personnel

Salaries and Wages 264,146.00 80,927.50 183,218.50 69.36 %7,573.7710-30-5101-0 264,146.00

Overtime 5,000.00 4,771.17 228.83 4.58 %103.7410-30-5104-0 5,000.00

On Call 1,000.00 380.00 620.00 62.00 %80.0010-30-5105-0 1,000.00

FICA Taxes 20,126.00 5,715.22 14,410.78 71.60 %492.8310-30-5111-0 20,126.00

Unemployment Insurance 810.00 232.55 577.45 71.29 %19.7010-30-5112-0 810.00

Short and Long Term Disability 0.00 360.86 -360.86 0.00 %72.6010-30-5115-0 0.00

Health Insurance 60,000.00 14,564.68 45,435.32 75.73 %0.0010-30-5121-0 60,000.00

Other Benefits Costs 0.00 1,252.56 -1,252.56 0.00 %296.7310-30-5129-0 0.00

Retirement 16,209.00 4,554.24 11,654.76 71.90 %439.1610-30-5131-0 16,209.00

Workers Compensation Insurance 14,250.00 2,887.38 11,362.62 79.74 %962.4610-30-5141-0 14,250.00



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 8 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Recruiting & Hiring Costs 300.00 0.00 300.00 100.00 %0.0010-30-5191-0 300.00

Category: 51 - Personnel Total: 115,646.1610,040.99381,841.00 381,841.00 266,194.84 69.71 %

Category: 52 - Contracted Services

General Engineering 200,000.00 0.00 200,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-30-5233-0 200,000.00

Other Contracted Services 1,000.00 250.00 750.00 75.00 %0.0010-30-5298-0 1,000.00

Category: 52 - Contracted Services Total: 250.000.00201,000.00 201,000.00 200,750.00 99.88 %

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials

Operating Supplies 2,000.00 1,017.92 982.08 49.10 %0.0010-30-5300-0 2,000.00

Office Supplies 100.00 43.30 56.70 56.70 %0.0010-30-5310-0 100.00

Clothing and Uniforms 5,000.00 197.92 4,802.08 96.04 %0.0010-30-5329-0 5,000.00

Gasoline & Diesel Fuel 7,000.00 2,115.32 4,884.68 69.78 %78.0510-30-5350-0 7,000.00

Motor Vehicle Parts 1,000.00 55.98 944.02 94.40 %38.0310-30-5355-0 1,000.00

Traffic Control Supplies & Equipment 5,000.00 125.41 4,874.59 97.49 %0.0010-30-5365-0 5,000.00

Non-capital Tools & Equipment 5,000.00 846.57 4,153.43 83.07 %173.3310-30-5370-0 5,000.00

Concrete 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-30-5382-0 1,000.00

Gravel and Sand 1,000.00 774.12 225.88 22.59 %0.0010-30-5385-0 1,000.00

Other Construction / Building Materia… 8,000.00 60.49 7,939.51 99.24 %0.0010-30-5387-0 8,000.00

Other Supplies 68.00 0.00 68.00 100.00 %0.0010-30-5390-0 68.00

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials Total: 5,237.03289.4135,168.00 35,168.00 29,930.97 85.11 %

Category: 54 - Utilities

Electricity 100,000.00 17,952.10 82,047.90 82.05 %0.0010-30-5420-0 100,000.00

Telephone 300.00 550.66 -250.66 -83.55 %0.0010-30-5450-0 300.00

Category: 54 - Utilities Total: 18,502.760.00100,300.00 100,300.00 81,797.24 81.55 %

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs

Postage & Freight 0.00 9.57 -9.57 0.00 %0.0010-30-5501-0 0.00

Legal Notices & Document Recording 300.00 0.00 300.00 100.00 %0.0010-30-5506-0 300.00

Subscriptions, Dues and Memberships 250.00 100.00 150.00 60.00 %0.0010-30-5513-0 250.00

Lease Expense - Land or Buildings 25,000.00 0.00 25,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-30-5542-0 25,000.00

Lease Expense - Copiers, Machinery &… 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.0010-30-5544-0 28,200.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Streets 60,000.00 9,811.89 50,188.11 83.65 %-705.1910-30-5550-0 60,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Undergroun… 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-30-5551-0 6,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Buildings 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-30-5552-0 2,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Machinery &… 20,000.00 7,347.92 12,652.08 63.26 %276.7110-30-5556-0 20,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Vehicles 10,000.00 515.03 9,484.97 94.85 %25.3410-30-5558-0 10,000.00

Tree Maintenance & Plantings 36,500.00 15,300.00 21,200.00 58.08 %0.0010-30-5559-0 36,500.00

Meeting Costs 500.00 0.00 500.00 100.00 %0.0010-30-5575-0 500.00

Training Costs 6,000.00 565.00 5,435.00 90.58 %0.0010-30-5580-0 6,000.00

Travel Costs - Mileage Reimbursement 0.00 216.00 -216.00 0.00 %0.0010-30-5586-0 0.00

Travel Costs - Other 400.00 58.57 341.43 85.36 %17.9510-30-5589-0 400.00

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs Total: 36,923.98-385.19195,150.00 169,950.00 133,026.02 78.27 %

Category: 59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999)

Building Improvements 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-30-5921-0 4,000.00

Machinery & Equipment Expenditures 11,000.00 0.00 11,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-30-5931-0 11,000.00

Audio Visual Equipment 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 100.00 %0.0010-30-5943-0 1,500.00

Category: 59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999) Total: 0.000.0016,500.00 16,500.00 16,500.00 100.00 %

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +)

Streets - Slurry Seal 65,000.00 0.00 65,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-30-6012-3 65,000.00

Streets - Other 0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 0.00 %0.0010-30-6017-3 0.00

Other Vehicles & Rolling Stock 30,000.00 30,143.12 -143.12 -0.48 %30,143.1210-30-6032-3 30,000.00

Machinery & Equipment 75,000.00 0.00 75,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-30-6035-3 75,000.00

Highway 50 Enhancement - Ph. 4 Con… 50,000.00 1,110.00 48,890.00 97.78 %0.0010-30-6055-3 50,000.00

Highway 50 Enhancement - Ph. 4 Proj… 58,800.00 11,855.00 46,945.00 79.84 %0.0010-30-6056-3 58,800.00

Alley Reconstruction 100,000.00 0.00 100,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-30-6068-3 100,000.00

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) Total: 44,608.1230,143.12378,800.00 378,800.00 334,191.88 88.22 %

Department: 30 - Streets Infrastructure Total: 221,168.0540,088.331,308,759.00 1,283,559.00 1,062,390.95 82.77 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 9 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Department: 31 - Facilities & Vehicle Management

Category: 51 - Personnel

Salaries and Wages 86,990.00 37,462.35 49,527.65 56.93 %4,989.3710-31-5101-0 86,990.00

Overtime 500.00 387.58 112.42 22.48 %202.0910-31-5104-0 500.00

On Call 500.00 380.00 120.00 24.00 %80.0010-31-5105-0 500.00

Special Pay - Non-recurring 6,555.00 0.00 6,555.00 100.00 %0.0010-31-5109-3 6,555.00

FICA Taxes 0.00 2,784.14 -2,784.14 0.00 %382.6510-31-5111-0 0.00

Unemployment Insurance 264.00 111.29 152.71 57.84 %15.1410-31-5112-0 264.00

Short and Long Term Disability 0.00 -225.70 225.70 0.00 %-45.1010-31-5115-0 0.00

Health Insurance 20,000.00 4,638.66 15,361.34 76.81 %0.0010-31-5121-0 20,000.00

Other Benefits Costs 0.00 218.76 -218.76 0.00 %55.7910-31-5129-0 0.00

Retirement 5,279.00 1,747.10 3,531.90 66.90 %277.1010-31-5131-0 5,279.00

Workers Compensation Insurance 3,200.00 743.85 2,456.15 76.75 %247.9510-31-5141-0 3,200.00

Category: 51 - Personnel Total: 48,248.036,204.99123,288.00 123,288.00 75,039.97 60.87 %

Category: 52 - Contracted Services

IT - General Services 3,000.00 999.99 2,000.01 66.67 %0.0010-31-5221-0 3,000.00

Other Contracted Services 300.00 0.00 300.00 100.00 %0.0010-31-5298-0 300.00

Category: 52 - Contracted Services Total: 999.990.003,300.00 3,300.00 2,300.01 69.70 %

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials

Operating Supplies 2,500.00 12.58 2,487.42 99.50 %0.0010-31-5300-0 2,500.00

Office Supplies 900.00 214.22 685.78 76.20 %0.0010-31-5310-0 900.00

Clothing and Uniforms 500.00 0.00 500.00 100.00 %0.0010-31-5329-0 500.00

Gasoline & Diesel Fuel 500.00 0.00 500.00 100.00 %0.0010-31-5350-0 500.00

Motor Vehicle Parts 5,000.00 1,012.92 3,987.08 79.74 %0.0010-31-5355-0 5,000.00

Tires 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-31-5356-0 10,000.00

Non-capital Tools & Equipment 2,000.00 254.65 1,745.35 87.27 %10.5110-31-5370-0 2,000.00

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials Total: 1,494.3710.5121,400.00 21,400.00 19,905.63 93.02 %

Category: 54 - Utilities

Gas 3,000.00 1,167.70 1,832.30 61.08 %0.0010-31-5410-0 3,000.00

Water 700.00 205.62 494.38 70.63 %0.0010-31-5430-0 700.00

Telephone 4,000.00 200.95 3,799.05 94.98 %0.0010-31-5450-0 4,000.00

Broadband 1,100.00 480.00 620.00 56.36 %0.0010-31-5460-0 1,100.00

Trash Removal 800.00 164.85 635.15 79.39 %0.0010-31-5470-0 800.00

Category: 54 - Utilities Total: 2,219.120.009,600.00 9,600.00 7,380.88 76.88 %

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs

Postage & Freight 100.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 %0.0010-31-5501-0 100.00

Subscriptions, Dues and Memberships 800.00 179.88 620.12 77.52 %0.0010-31-5513-0 800.00

Personel Activities & Events 500.00 108.42 391.58 78.32 %0.0010-31-5528-0 500.00

Lease Expense - Copiers, Machinery &… 1,550.00 449.96 1,100.04 70.97 %0.0010-31-5544-0 1,550.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Buildings 23,200.00 1,181.43 22,018.57 94.91 %155.2610-31-5552-0 5,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Copiers & Of… 600.00 0.00 600.00 100.00 %0.0010-31-5554-0 600.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Machinery &… 2,000.00 40.37 1,959.63 97.98 %0.0010-31-5556-0 2,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Vehicles 2,000.00 20.00 1,980.00 99.00 %0.0010-31-5558-0 2,000.00

Training Costs 250.00 0.00 250.00 100.00 %0.0010-31-5580-0 250.00

Travel Costs - Other 100.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 %0.0010-31-5589-0 100.00

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs Total: 1,980.06155.2612,900.00 31,100.00 29,119.94 93.63 %

Category: 59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999)

Building Improvements 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-31-5921-0 2,000.00

Furniture & Fixtures 3,000.00 1,062.62 1,937.38 64.58 %0.0010-31-5928-0 3,000.00

Category: 59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999) Total: 1,062.620.005,000.00 5,000.00 3,937.38 78.75 %

Department: 31 - Facilities & Vehicle Management Total: 56,004.196,370.76175,488.00 193,688.00 137,683.81 71.09 %

Department: 51 - Pool & Recreation

Category: 50 - Direct Cost of Revenue

Items for Resale 15,000.00 2,514.96 12,485.04 83.23 %0.0010-51-5091-0 15,000.00

Category: 50 - Direct Cost of Revenue Total: 2,514.960.0015,000.00 15,000.00 12,485.04 83.23 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 10 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Category: 51 - Personnel

Salaries and Wages 475,250.00 130,039.14 345,210.86 72.64 %16,983.0110-51-5101-0 475,250.00

Overtime 1,500.00 1,588.53 -88.53 -5.90 %392.5110-51-5104-0 1,500.00

FICA Taxes 36,471.00 9,943.32 26,527.68 72.74 %1,312.1410-51-5111-0 36,471.00

Unemployment Insurance 1,430.00 389.91 1,040.09 72.73 %51.4610-51-5112-0 1,430.00

Health Insurance 30,000.00 8,916.60 21,083.40 70.28 %0.0010-51-5121-0 30,000.00

Other Benefits Costs 0.00 460.75 -460.75 0.00 %115.1910-51-5129-0 0.00

Retirement 6,000.00 2,268.94 3,731.06 62.18 %286.1610-51-5131-0 6,000.00

Workers Compensation Insurance 14,500.00 3,063.36 11,436.64 78.87 %1,021.1210-51-5141-0 14,500.00

Recruiting & Hiring Costs 400.00 113.05 286.95 71.74 %0.0010-51-5191-0 400.00

Category: 51 - Personnel Total: 156,783.6020,161.59565,551.00 565,551.00 408,767.40 72.28 %

Category: 52 - Contracted Services

Professional Services 11,000.00 875.00 10,125.00 92.05 %150.0010-51-5201-0 11,000.00

IT - General Services 3,200.00 800.01 2,399.99 75.00 %0.0010-51-5221-0 3,200.00

IT - Annual Maintenance, Support, Ho… 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-51-5224-0 3,000.00

Consulting - Special Projects 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-51-5243-3 2,000.00

Other Contracted Services 5,000.00 898.70 4,101.30 82.03 %0.0010-51-5298-0 5,000.00

Category: 52 - Contracted Services Total: 2,573.71150.0024,200.00 24,200.00 21,626.29 89.36 %

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials

Operating Supplies 8,000.00 1,142.42 6,857.58 85.72 %0.0010-51-5300-0 8,000.00

Office Supplies 2,000.00 229.15 1,770.85 88.54 %0.0010-51-5310-0 2,000.00

Chemicals 12,000.00 315.04 11,684.96 97.37 %0.0010-51-5320-0 12,000.00

Clothing and Uniforms 500.00 0.00 500.00 100.00 %0.0010-51-5329-0 500.00

Recreation Program Supplies 7,500.00 94.11 7,405.89 98.75 %0.0010-51-5331-0 7,500.00

Gasoline & Diesel Fuel 500.00 0.00 500.00 100.00 %0.0010-51-5350-0 500.00

Motor Vehicle Parts 100.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 %0.0010-51-5355-0 100.00

Non-capital Tools & Equipment 5,000.00 776.23 4,223.77 84.48 %94.9510-51-5370-0 5,000.00

Other Supplies 300.00 0.00 300.00 100.00 %0.0010-51-5390-0 300.00

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials Total: 2,556.9594.9535,900.00 35,900.00 33,343.05 92.88 %

Category: 54 - Utilities

Gas 15,000.00 4,701.99 10,298.01 68.65 %0.0010-51-5410-0 15,000.00

Electricity 29,000.00 6,448.01 22,551.99 77.77 %0.0010-51-5420-0 29,000.00

Water 12,000.00 5,289.60 6,710.40 55.92 %0.0010-51-5430-0 12,000.00

Sewer 8,000.00 0.00 8,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-51-5440-0 8,000.00

Telephone 5,400.00 1,521.20 3,878.80 71.83 %0.0010-51-5450-0 5,400.00

Broadband 1,440.00 480.00 960.00 66.67 %0.0010-51-5460-0 1,440.00

Trash Removal 1,000.00 109.90 890.10 89.01 %0.0010-51-5470-0 1,000.00

Category: 54 - Utilities Total: 18,550.700.0071,840.00 71,840.00 53,289.30 74.18 %

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs

Postage & Freight 100.00 23.83 76.17 76.17 %0.0010-51-5501-0 100.00

Bank & Credit Card Fees 5,000.00 1,181.84 3,818.16 76.36 %0.0010-51-5503-0 5,000.00

Advertising 12,000.00 3,786.93 8,213.07 68.44 %0.0010-51-5505-0 12,000.00

Licenses, Fees & Permits 1,200.00 0.00 1,200.00 100.00 %0.0010-51-5511-0 1,200.00

Subscriptions, Dues and Memberships 300.00 136.00 164.00 54.67 %0.0010-51-5513-0 300.00

Other Event or Program Costs 7,000.00 3,147.50 3,852.50 55.04 %388.0010-51-5520-0 7,000.00

Lease Expense - Copiers, Machinery &… 1,000.00 152.68 847.32 84.73 %0.0010-51-5544-0 1,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Buildings 12,000.00 1,286.61 10,713.39 89.28 %0.0010-51-5552-0 12,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Machinery &… 10,000.00 264.91 9,735.09 97.35 %0.0010-51-5556-0 10,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Vehicles 500.00 0.00 500.00 100.00 %0.0010-51-5558-0 500.00

Training Costs 1,000.00 780.79 219.21 21.92 %0.0010-51-5580-0 1,000.00

Travel Costs - Mileage Reimbursement 300.00 0.00 300.00 100.00 %0.0010-51-5586-0 300.00

Travel Costs - Other 2,500.00 998.70 1,501.30 60.05 %0.0010-51-5589-0 2,500.00

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs Total: 11,759.79388.0052,900.00 52,900.00 41,140.21 77.77 %

Category: 59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999)

Pool Facility - Minor Improvements 8,000.00 0.00 8,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-51-5921-0 8,000.00

Machinery & Equipment Expenditures 9,500.00 -1.87 9,501.87 100.02 %0.0010-51-5931-0 9,500.00

Computer & Software Expenditures 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 100.00 %0.0010-51-5941-0 2,500.00



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 11 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Other Budgetary Capital Items 3,500.00 0.00 3,500.00 100.00 %0.0010-51-5991-0 3,500.00

Category: 59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999) Total: -1.870.0023,500.00 23,500.00 23,501.87 100.01 %

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +)

Land Improvements 48,500.00 0.00 48,500.00 100.00 %0.0010-51-6002-0 48,500.00

Lines - Upgrades & Replacements 215,000.00 900.00 214,100.00 99.58 %0.0010-51-6019-3 215,000.00

Pool Facility - Routine Improvements 12,400.00 0.00 12,400.00 100.00 %0.0010-51-6022-0 12,400.00

Pool Facility - Major Improvements 300,000.00 60.65 299,939.35 99.98 %0.0010-51-6023-3 300,000.00

Machinery & Equipment 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-51-6035-3 6,000.00

Centennial Park Improvements 70,000.00 0.00 70,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-51-6077-0 70,000.00

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) Total: 960.650.00651,900.00 651,900.00 650,939.35 99.85 %

Department: 51 - Pool & Recreation Total: 195,698.4920,794.541,440,791.00 1,440,791.00 1,245,092.51 86.42 %

Department: 54 - Parks, Open Space & Trails

Category: 51 - Personnel

Salaries and Wages 180,678.00 46,134.85 134,543.15 74.47 %8,405.4010-54-5101-0 180,678.00

Overtime 2,000.00 129.91 1,870.09 93.50 %7.0710-54-5104-0 2,000.00

On Call 1,000.00 380.00 620.00 62.00 %80.0010-54-5105-0 1,000.00

FICA Taxes 14,051.00 3,475.48 10,575.52 75.27 %631.7410-54-5111-0 14,051.00

Unemployment Insurance 551.00 137.65 413.35 75.02 %25.3610-54-5112-0 551.00

Short and Long Term Disability 0.00 -135.16 135.16 0.00 %-27.5010-54-5115-0 0.00

Health Insurance 28,000.00 7,367.56 20,632.44 73.69 %0.0010-54-5121-0 28,000.00

Other Benefits Costs 0.00 114.67 -114.67 0.00 %30.5110-54-5129-0 0.00

Retirement 11,021.00 2,729.56 8,291.44 75.23 %493.4610-54-5131-0 11,021.00

Workers Compensation Insurance 2,800.00 562.56 2,237.44 79.91 %187.5210-54-5141-0 2,800.00

Recruiting & Hiring Costs 500.00 0.00 500.00 100.00 %0.0010-54-5191-0 500.00

Category: 51 - Personnel Total: 60,897.089,833.56240,601.00 240,601.00 179,703.92 74.69 %

Category: 52 - Contracted Services

Professional Services 300.00 0.00 300.00 100.00 %0.0010-54-5201-0 300.00

Other Contracted Services 13,000.00 636.00 12,364.00 95.11 %0.0010-54-5298-0 13,000.00

Category: 52 - Contracted Services Total: 636.000.0013,300.00 13,300.00 12,664.00 95.22 %

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials

Operating Supplies 7,000.00 3,205.80 3,794.20 54.20 %0.0010-54-5300-0 7,000.00

Clothing and Uniforms 1,000.00 382.45 617.55 61.76 %0.0010-54-5329-0 1,000.00

Gasoline & Diesel Fuel 5,000.00 484.59 4,515.41 90.31 %0.0010-54-5350-0 5,000.00

Motor Vehicle Parts 5,000.00 1,033.73 3,966.27 79.33 %359.0310-54-5355-0 5,000.00

Non-capital Tools & Equipment 2,700.00 613.99 2,086.01 77.26 %0.0010-54-5370-0 2,700.00

Fertilizer 8,000.00 0.00 8,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-54-5381-0 8,000.00

Wood Products 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-54-5384-0 15,000.00

Other Supplies 4,000.00 295.29 3,704.71 92.62 %0.0010-54-5390-0 4,000.00

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials Total: 6,015.85359.0347,700.00 47,700.00 41,684.15 87.39 %

Category: 54 - Utilities

Gas 1,000.00 225.30 774.70 77.47 %0.0010-54-5410-0 1,000.00

Electricity 15,000.00 3,647.40 11,352.60 75.68 %0.0010-54-5420-0 15,000.00

Water 46,000.00 4,490.99 41,509.01 90.24 %0.0010-54-5430-0 46,000.00

Sewer 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-54-5440-0 3,000.00

Telephone 1,000.00 112.80 887.20 88.72 %0.0010-54-5450-0 1,000.00

Broadband 500.00 179.80 320.20 64.04 %0.0010-54-5460-0 500.00

Trash Removal 6,000.00 1,835.40 4,164.60 69.41 %0.0010-54-5470-0 6,000.00

Category: 54 - Utilities Total: 10,491.690.0072,500.00 72,500.00 62,008.31 85.53 %

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs

Postage & Freight 50.00 0.00 50.00 100.00 %0.0010-54-5501-0 50.00

Legal Notices & Recording Fees 100.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 %0.0010-54-5506-0 100.00

Lease Expense - Land or Buildings 3,500.00 0.00 3,500.00 100.00 %0.0010-54-5542-0 3,500.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Streets 15,000.00 5,137.92 9,862.08 65.75 %0.0010-54-5550-0 15,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Buildings 10,000.00 903.76 9,096.24 90.96 %0.0010-54-5552-0 10,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Grounds 20,000.00 8,577.79 11,422.21 57.11 %0.0010-54-5553-0 20,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Machinery &… 2,000.00 227.74 1,772.26 88.61 %0.0010-54-5556-0 2,000.00



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 12 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Repairs & Maintenance - Vandalism 0.00 790.00 -790.00 0.00 %0.0010-54-5557-3 0.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Vehicles 1,500.00 261.85 1,238.15 82.54 %0.0010-54-5558-0 1,500.00

Tree Maintenance & Plantings 8,000.00 0.00 8,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-54-5559-0 8,000.00

Miscellaneous 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-54-5599-0 15,000.00

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs Total: 15,899.060.0075,150.00 75,150.00 59,250.94 78.84 %

Category: 59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999)

Land Improvements 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 100.00 %0.0010-54-5901-0 1,500.00

Machinery & Equipment Expenditures 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-54-5931-0 2,000.00

Computer & Software Expenditures 1,000.00 947.14 52.86 5.29 %0.0010-54-5941-0 1,000.00

Audio Visual Equipment 12,000.00 0.00 12,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-54-5943-0 12,000.00

Other Budgetary Capital Items 16,000.00 0.00 16,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-54-5991-3 16,000.00

Category: 59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999) Total: 947.140.0032,500.00 32,500.00 31,552.86 97.09 %

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +)

Trails - Upgrades / Major Improveme… 7,500.00 0.00 7,500.00 100.00 %0.0010-54-6008-3 7,500.00

Vehicle Replacements 25,000.00 24,337.56 662.44 2.65 %0.0010-54-6031-0 25,000.00

Riverside Park Improvements 12,500.00 3,750.00 8,750.00 70.00 %3,750.0010-54-6071-3 0.00

Alpine Park Projects 15,000.00 3,750.00 11,250.00 75.00 %0.0010-54-6072-3 15,000.00

Marvin Park Improvements 48,500.00 66.51 48,433.49 99.86 %10.6510-54-6074-3 48,500.00

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) Total: 31,904.073,760.6596,000.00 108,500.00 76,595.93 70.60 %

Department: 54 - Parks, Open Space & Trails Total: 126,790.8913,953.24577,751.00 590,251.00 463,460.11 78.52 %

Department: 56 - Other

Category: 52 - Contracted Services

Legal - General Services 38,000.00 3,257.50 34,742.50 91.43 %0.0010-56-5211-0 38,000.00

Other Contracted Services 112,500.00 9,752.36 102,747.64 91.33 %0.0010-56-5298-0 112,500.00

Category: 52 - Contracted Services Total: 13,009.860.00150,500.00 150,500.00 137,490.14 91.36 %

Category: 54 - Utilities

Gas 3,000.00 1,000.43 1,999.57 66.65 %0.0010-56-5410-0 3,000.00

Electricity 8,200.00 4,192.92 4,007.08 48.87 %741.8310-56-5420-0 8,200.00

Water 1,500.00 353.27 1,146.73 76.45 %0.0010-56-5430-0 1,500.00

Sewer 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-56-5440-0 1,000.00

Category: 54 - Utilities Total: 5,546.62741.8313,700.00 13,700.00 8,153.38 59.51 %

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs

Licenses, Fees & Permits 7,000.00 5,886.00 1,114.00 15.91 %0.0010-56-5511-0 7,000.00

Community Event Costs 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-56-5520-0 4,000.00

Lease Expense - Land or Buildings 0.00 4,000.00 -4,000.00 0.00 %0.0010-56-5542-0 0.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Buildings 51,000.00 6,299.70 44,700.30 87.65 %0.0010-56-5552-0 51,000.00

Airport Operations 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-56-5560-0 50,000.00

NRC Operating Costs 24,000.00 -1,523.67 25,523.67 106.35 %0.0010-56-5565-1 24,000.00

Community Support Grants 30,000.00 8,050.00 21,950.00 73.17 %8,050.0010-56-5570-0 30,000.00

Creative District Grant 10,000.00 1,946.00 8,054.00 80.54 %0.0010-56-5572-0 10,000.00

Miscellaneous 7,500.00 7,500.00 0.00 0.00 %0.0010-56-5599-0 7,500.00

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs Total: 32,158.038,050.00183,500.00 183,500.00 151,341.97 82.48 %

Category: 59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999)

Other Budgetary Capital Items 7,000.00 0.00 7,000.00 100.00 %0.0010-56-5991-3 0.00

Category: 59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999) Total: 0.000.000.00 7,000.00 7,000.00 100.00 %

Department: 56 - Other Total: 50,714.518,791.83347,700.00 354,700.00 303,985.49 85.70 %

Expense Total: 1,855,563.34248,428.858,412,501.00 8,482,226.00 6,626,662.66 78.12 %

Fund: 10 - GENERAL FUND Surplus (Deficit): -892,832.63-200,238.75-2,558,450.00 -2,570,950.00 1,678,117.37 65.27 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 13 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 20 - WATER FUND

Revenue

Department: 00 - General

Category: 41 - Fees for General Services

Residential Service Charges 550,000.00 138,536.61 -411,463.39 74.81 %16.3020-00-4100-0 550,000.00

Residential Volume Charges 330,000.00 22,507.60 -307,492.40 93.18 %-188.2520-00-4102-0 330,000.00

Water Line Maintenance 185,000.00 47,927.71 -137,072.29 74.09 %5.6520-00-4104-0 185,000.00

Commercial Service Charges 130,000.00 32,939.53 -97,060.47 74.66 %0.0020-00-4110-0 130,000.00

Commercial Volume Charges 300,000.00 39,147.58 -260,852.42 86.95 %-2.9620-00-4112-0 300,000.00

Commercial Demand Charges 95,000.00 24,020.71 -70,979.29 74.72 %0.0020-00-4114-0 95,000.00

Late Fees 9,000.00 2,800.00 -6,200.00 68.89 %259.0020-00-4126-0 9,000.00

Final Read Fees 10,000.00 1,581.00 -8,419.00 84.19 %93.0020-00-4129-0 10,000.00

Bulk Water 2,000.00 914.19 -1,085.81 54.29 %0.0020-00-4130-0 2,000.00

Potable Water Station Sales 2,500.00 408.00 -2,092.00 83.68 %0.0020-00-4132-0 2,500.00

Public Works Charges 5,000.00 1,750.00 -3,250.00 65.00 %0.0020-00-4151-0 5,000.00

Category: 41 - Fees for General Services Total: 312,532.93182.741,618,500.00 1,618,500.00 -1,305,967.07 80.69 %

Category: 44 - Intergovernmental Revenue

State Grants 895,000.00 0.00 -895,000.00 100.00 %0.0020-00-4454-3 895,000.00

Category: 44 - Intergovernmental Revenue Total: 0.000.00895,000.00 895,000.00 -895,000.00 100.00 %

Category: 48 - Capital Revenue

System Development Fees 500,000.00 89,881.40 -410,118.60 82.02 %12,394.7220-00-4810-0 500,000.00

System Development Fees - High Zone 10,000.00 6,776.00 -3,224.00 32.24 %968.0020-00-4820-0 10,000.00

Sale of Water Meters 10,000.00 3,630.37 -6,369.63 63.70 %512.5620-00-4830-0 10,000.00

Category: 48 - Capital Revenue Total: 100,287.7713,875.28520,000.00 520,000.00 -419,712.23 80.71 %

Category: 49 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Interest Revenue 3,000.00 1,031.04 -1,968.96 65.63 %233.5720-00-4901-0 3,000.00

Other Misc Revenues 0.00 2,503.61 2,503.61 0.00 %0.0020-00-4980-0 0.00

Category: 49 - Miscellaneous Revenue Total: 3,534.65233.573,000.00 3,000.00 534.65 17.82 %

Department: 00 - General Total: 416,355.3514,291.593,036,500.00 3,036,500.00 -2,620,144.65 86.29 %

Revenue Total: 416,355.3514,291.593,036,500.00 3,036,500.00 -2,620,144.65 86.29 %

Expense

Department: 15 - Administration & Elected Officials

Category: 51 - Personnel

Salaries and Wages 60,508.00 13,720.29 46,787.71 77.32 %2,115.1920-15-5101-0 60,508.00

Overtime 100.00 1,243.58 -1,143.58 -1,143.58 %178.6820-15-5104-0 100.00

FICA Taxes 4,637.00 1,144.73 3,492.27 75.31 %175.4820-15-5111-0 4,637.00

Unemployment Insurance 182.00 44.88 137.12 75.34 %6.8820-15-5112-0 182.00

Health Insurance 12,000.00 1,797.72 10,202.28 85.02 %0.0020-15-5121-0 12,000.00

Retirement 3,636.00 594.98 3,041.02 83.64 %98.7620-15-5131-0 3,636.00

Category: 51 - Personnel Total: 18,546.182,574.9981,063.00 81,063.00 62,516.82 77.12 %

Category: 52 - Contracted Services

Professional Services 0.00 8,500.00 -8,500.00 0.00 %0.0020-15-5201-0 0.00

Legal - General Services 5,000.00 12,657.55 -7,657.55 -153.15 %4,404.0020-15-5211-0 5,000.00

Lawsuit Costs 415,000.00 427,847.79 -12,847.79 -3.10 %36.5020-15-5215-3 0.00

Audit 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 100.00 %0.0020-15-5217-0 2,500.00

IT - General Services 1,200.00 200.00 1,000.00 83.33 %0.0020-15-5221-0 1,200.00

IT - Annual Maintenance, Support, Ho… 3,000.00 290.00 2,710.00 90.33 %72.5020-15-5224-0 3,000.00

Other Contracted Services 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00 %0.0020-15-5298-0 1,000.00

Category: 52 - Contracted Services Total: 449,495.344,513.0012,700.00 427,700.00 -21,795.34 -5.10 %

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials

Office Supplies 1,000.00 603.21 396.79 39.68 %603.2120-15-5310-0 1,000.00

Non-capital Tools & Equipment 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 100.00 %0.0020-15-5370-0 2,500.00

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials Total: 603.21603.213,500.00 3,500.00 2,896.79 82.77 %

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs

Postage & Freight 9,000.00 1,826.27 7,173.73 79.71 %0.0020-15-5501-0 9,000.00



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 14 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Bank & Credit Card Fees 2,400.00 284.61 2,115.39 88.14 %0.0020-15-5503-0 2,400.00

Legal Notices & Document Recording 100.00 20.00 80.00 80.00 %0.0020-15-5506-0 100.00

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs Total: 2,130.880.0011,500.00 11,500.00 9,369.12 81.47 %

Department: 15 - Administration & Elected Officials Total: 470,775.617,691.20108,763.00 523,763.00 52,987.39 10.12 %

Department: 30 - Streets Infrastructure

Category: 51 - Personnel

Salaries and Wages 161,989.00 37,617.90 124,371.10 76.78 %4,687.7020-30-5101-0 161,989.00

Overtime 3,000.00 583.52 2,416.48 80.55 %118.9420-30-5104-0 3,000.00

On Call 1,500.00 380.00 1,120.00 74.67 %80.0020-30-5105-0 1,500.00

FICA Taxes 12,736.00 2,759.69 9,976.31 78.33 %324.3520-30-5111-0 12,736.00

Unemployment Insurance 499.00 115.63 383.37 76.83 %14.6620-30-5112-0 499.00

Health Insurance 30,000.00 6,697.28 23,302.72 77.68 %0.0020-30-5121-0 30,000.00

Retirement 9,989.00 2,102.04 7,886.96 78.96 %261.4220-30-5131-0 9,989.00

Workers Compensation Insurance 2,000.00 741.18 1,258.82 62.94 %247.0620-30-5141-0 2,000.00

Category: 51 - Personnel Total: 50,997.245,734.13221,713.00 221,713.00 170,715.76 77.00 %

Category: 52 - Contracted Services

Other Contracted Services 20,000.00 17,360.76 2,639.24 13.20 %6,400.1520-30-5298-0 20,000.00

Category: 52 - Contracted Services Total: 17,360.766,400.1520,000.00 20,000.00 2,639.24 13.20 %

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials

Operating Supplies 2,000.00 155.49 1,844.51 92.23 %142.5020-30-5300-0 2,000.00

Gasoline & Diesel Fuel 2,000.00 447.37 1,552.63 77.63 %0.0020-30-5350-0 2,000.00

Non-capital Tools & Equipment 3,000.00 752.00 2,248.00 74.93 %16.3620-30-5370-0 3,000.00

Other Construction / Building Materia… 5,000.00 29.15 4,970.85 99.42 %0.0020-30-5387-0 5,000.00

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials Total: 1,384.01158.8612,000.00 12,000.00 10,615.99 88.47 %

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs

Postage & Freight 0.00 57.31 -57.31 0.00 %0.0020-30-5501-0 0.00

Subscriptions, Dues and Memberships 100.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 %0.0020-30-5513-0 100.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Streets 15,000.00 2,745.44 12,254.56 81.70 %0.0020-30-5550-0 15,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Machinery &… 3,000.00 42.06 2,957.94 98.60 %0.0020-30-5556-0 3,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Vehicles 500.00 41.71 458.29 91.66 %0.0020-30-5558-0 500.00

Training Costs 1,000.00 311.15 688.85 68.89 %0.0020-30-5580-0 1,000.00

Travel Costs - Other 500.00 84.03 415.97 83.19 %35.1720-30-5589-0 500.00

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs Total: 3,281.7035.1720,100.00 20,100.00 16,818.30 83.67 %

Category: 56 - Financing Obligations

Loan / Bond Principle 121,003.00 0.00 121,003.00 100.00 %0.0020-30-5611-0 121,003.00

Interest on Loans / Bonds 70,602.00 0.00 70,602.00 100.00 %0.0020-30-5621-0 70,602.00

Category: 56 - Financing Obligations Total: 0.000.00191,605.00 191,605.00 191,605.00 100.00 %

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +)

Water Line Replacements 150,000.00 0.00 150,000.00 100.00 %0.0020-30-6019-3 150,000.00

Vehicles & Rolling Stock 130,000.00 0.00 130,000.00 100.00 %0.0020-30-6032-3 130,000.00

Machinery & Equipment 37,500.00 0.00 37,500.00 100.00 %0.0020-30-6035-3 37,500.00

Water Meter Replacement Program 100,000.00 6,023.46 93,976.54 93.98 %0.0020-30-6037-3 100,000.00

Fire Hydrants 30,000.00 0.00 30,000.00 100.00 %0.0020-30-6038-3 30,000.00

Water Valve Replacement Program 25,000.00 0.00 25,000.00 100.00 %0.0020-30-6039-3 25,000.00

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) Total: 6,023.460.00472,500.00 472,500.00 466,476.54 98.73 %

Department: 30 - Streets Infrastructure Total: 79,047.1712,328.31937,918.00 937,918.00 858,870.83 91.57 %

Department: 34 - Water Plant

Category: 51 - Personnel

Salaries and Wages 178,177.00 54,239.61 123,937.39 69.56 %6,580.9020-34-5101-0 178,177.00

Overtime 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00 %0.0020-34-5104-0 1,000.00

On Call 5,200.00 1,600.00 3,600.00 69.23 %200.0020-34-5105-0 5,200.00

FICA Taxes 14,105.00 4,102.22 10,002.78 70.92 %494.5720-34-5111-0 14,105.00

Unemployment Insurance 553.00 161.19 391.81 70.85 %19.4020-34-5112-0 553.00

Health Insurance 38,200.00 10,534.20 27,665.80 72.42 %0.0020-34-5121-0 38,200.00

Other Benefits Costs 0.00 447.64 -447.64 0.00 %111.9120-34-5129-0 0.00



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 15 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Retirement 11,063.00 3,327.42 7,735.58 69.92 %406.8620-34-5131-0 11,063.00

Workers Compensation Insurance 3,500.00 1,250.40 2,249.60 64.27 %416.8020-34-5141-0 3,500.00

Recruiting & Hiring Costs 500.00 0.00 500.00 100.00 %0.0020-34-5191-0 500.00

Category: 51 - Personnel Total: 75,662.688,230.44252,298.00 252,298.00 176,635.32 70.01 %

Category: 52 - Contracted Services

Professional Services 6,000.00 310.00 5,690.00 94.83 %0.0020-34-5201-0 6,000.00

IT - General Services 1,200.00 300.00 900.00 75.00 %0.0020-34-5221-0 1,200.00

General Engineering 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 100.00 %0.0020-34-5233-0 10,000.00

Consulting - Special Projects 6,300.00 0.00 6,300.00 100.00 %0.0020-34-5243-3 6,300.00

Outside Lab & Analytic Services 12,000.00 2,105.00 9,895.00 82.46 %0.0020-34-5251-0 12,000.00

Category: 52 - Contracted Services Total: 2,715.000.0035,500.00 35,500.00 32,785.00 92.35 %

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials

Operating Supplies 1,800.00 198.79 1,601.21 88.96 %0.0020-34-5300-0 1,800.00

Office Supplies 500.00 89.60 410.40 82.08 %0.0020-34-5310-0 500.00

Chemicals 30,000.00 2,869.64 27,130.36 90.43 %0.0020-34-5320-0 30,000.00

Clothing and Uniforms 800.00 0.00 800.00 100.00 %0.0020-34-5329-0 800.00

Gasoline & Diesel Fuel 3,500.00 407.27 3,092.73 88.36 %0.0020-34-5350-0 3,500.00

Motor Vehicle Parts 500.00 263.62 236.38 47.28 %0.0020-34-5355-0 500.00

Non-capital Tools & Equipment 15,000.00 400.94 14,599.06 97.33 %0.0020-34-5370-0 15,000.00

Other Supplies 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 100.00 %0.0020-34-5390-0 6,000.00

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials Total: 4,229.860.0058,100.00 58,100.00 53,870.14 92.72 %

Category: 54 - Utilities

Gas 5,500.00 1,938.34 3,561.66 64.76 %435.2320-34-5410-0 5,500.00

Electricity 35,000.00 9,634.13 25,365.87 72.47 %2,066.2920-34-5420-0 35,000.00

Telephone 2,000.00 334.71 1,665.29 83.26 %0.0020-34-5450-0 2,000.00

Broadband 1,500.00 480.00 1,020.00 68.00 %0.0020-34-5460-0 1,500.00

Trash Removal 400.00 71.85 328.15 82.04 %0.0020-34-5470-0 400.00

Category: 54 - Utilities Total: 12,459.032,501.5244,400.00 44,400.00 31,940.97 71.94 %

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs

Postage & Freight 1,000.00 188.82 811.18 81.12 %18.4820-34-5501-0 1,000.00

Legal Notices & Document Recording 600.00 0.00 600.00 100.00 %0.0020-34-5506-0 600.00

Licenses, Fees & Permits 900.00 0.00 900.00 100.00 %0.0020-34-5511-0 900.00

Subscriptions, Dues and Memberships 1,500.00 400.00 1,100.00 73.33 %0.0020-34-5513-0 1,500.00

Property / Casualty Insurance 34,100.00 17,493.52 16,606.48 48.70 %8,339.7620-34-5530-0 34,100.00

Water Storage Costs 42,000.00 959.73 41,040.27 97.71 %0.0020-34-5540-0 42,000.00

Lease Expense - Copiers, Machinery &… 500.00 99.00 401.00 80.20 %0.0020-34-5544-0 500.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Buildings 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 100.00 %0.0020-34-5552-0 10,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Machinery &… 9,000.00 740.29 8,259.71 91.77 %0.0020-34-5556-0 9,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Vehicles 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 100.00 %0.0020-34-5558-0 3,000.00

Training Costs 1,000.00 150.00 850.00 85.00 %0.0020-34-5580-0 1,000.00

Travel Costs - Other 200.00 0.00 200.00 100.00 %0.0020-34-5589-0 200.00

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs Total: 20,031.368,358.24103,800.00 103,800.00 83,768.64 80.70 %

Category: 56 - Financing Obligations

Loan / Bond Principle 27,250.00 0.00 27,250.00 100.00 %0.0020-34-5611-0 27,250.00

Category: 56 - Financing Obligations Total: 0.000.0027,250.00 27,250.00 27,250.00 100.00 %

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +)

Water Treatment Facility Upgrade 2,400,000.00 32,718.88 2,367,281.12 98.64 %9,441.3120-34-6023-3 2,400,000.00

Equipment Replacements 25,000.00 5,170.25 19,829.75 79.32 %0.0020-34-6034-0 25,000.00

Machinery & Equipment 30,000.00 0.00 30,000.00 100.00 %0.0020-34-6035-0 30,000.00

Tenderfoot Tank 33,500.00 0.00 33,500.00 100.00 %0.0020-34-6084-3 33,500.00

Building/Grounds Improvements 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 100.00 %0.0020-34-6086-3 50,000.00

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) Total: 37,889.139,441.312,538,500.00 2,538,500.00 2,500,610.87 98.51 %

Department: 34 - Water Plant Total: 152,987.0628,531.513,059,848.00 3,059,848.00 2,906,860.94 95.00 %

Expense Total: 702,809.8448,551.024,106,529.00 4,521,529.00 3,818,719.16 84.46 %

Fund: 20 - WATER FUND Surplus (Deficit): -286,454.49-34,259.43-1,070,029.00 -1,485,029.00 1,198,574.51 80.71 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 16 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 21 - WASTEWATER FUND

Revenue

Department: 00 - General

Category: 41 - Fees for General Services

Residential Service Charges 615,000.00 158,230.78 -456,769.22 74.27 %36.0221-00-4100-0 615,000.00

Residential Volume Charges 60,000.00 18,398.34 -41,601.66 69.34 %-101.2521-00-4102-0 60,000.00

Unmetered Wastewater Charges 100,000.00 20,441.19 -79,558.81 79.56 %0.0021-00-4108-0 100,000.00

Commercial Service Charges 150,000.00 37,763.43 -112,236.57 74.82 %0.0021-00-4110-0 150,000.00

Commercial Volume Charges 265,000.00 47,803.98 -217,196.02 81.96 %-6.8821-00-4112-0 265,000.00

Septage Receiving 50,000.00 9,412.45 -40,587.55 81.18 %0.0021-00-4116-0 50,000.00

Sewer Dump Station 6,000.00 410.00 -5,590.00 93.17 %0.0021-00-4117-0 6,000.00

Lab Analysis Fees 31,000.00 7,355.00 -23,645.00 76.27 %0.0021-00-4118-0 31,000.00

Late Fees 10,000.00 2,432.50 -7,567.50 75.68 %-10.5021-00-4126-0 10,000.00

Public Works Charges 5,000.00 2,025.00 -2,975.00 59.50 %0.0021-00-4151-0 5,000.00

Category: 41 - Fees for General Services Total: 304,272.67-82.611,292,000.00 1,292,000.00 -987,727.33 76.45 %

Category: 48 - Capital Revenue

System Development Fees 300,000.00 141,969.31 -158,030.69 52.68 %63,345.7221-00-4810-0 300,000.00

Category: 48 - Capital Revenue Total: 141,969.3163,345.72300,000.00 300,000.00 -158,030.69 52.68 %

Category: 49 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Interest Revenue 7,500.00 4,564.80 -2,935.20 39.14 %0.0021-00-4901-0 7,500.00

Gains/Losses on Investments 2,000.00 532.80 -1,467.20 73.36 %0.0021-00-4906-0 2,000.00

Other Misc Revenues 100.00 40.00 -60.00 60.00 %0.0021-00-4980-0 100.00

Category: 49 - Miscellaneous Revenue Total: 5,137.600.009,600.00 9,600.00 -4,462.40 46.48 %

Department: 00 - General Total: 451,379.5863,263.111,601,600.00 1,601,600.00 -1,150,220.42 71.82 %

Revenue Total: 451,379.5863,263.111,601,600.00 1,601,600.00 -1,150,220.42 71.82 %

Expense

Department: 15 - Administration & Elected Officials

Category: 51 - Personnel

Salaries and Wages 60,508.00 13,719.83 46,788.17 77.33 %2,115.1921-15-5101-0 60,508.00

Overtime 30.00 1,242.56 -1,212.56 -4,041.87 %178.3421-15-5104-0 30.00

FICA Taxes 4,631.00 1,144.62 3,486.38 75.28 %175.4621-15-5111-0 4,631.00

Unemployment Insurance 182.00 44.87 137.13 75.35 %6.8821-15-5112-0 182.00

Health Insurance 12,900.00 1,771.35 11,128.65 86.27 %0.0021-15-5121-0 12,900.00

Retirement 3,632.00 594.88 3,037.12 83.62 %98.7421-15-5131-0 3,632.00

Category: 51 - Personnel Total: 18,518.112,574.6181,883.00 81,883.00 63,364.89 77.38 %

Category: 52 - Contracted Services

Legal - General Services 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 100.00 %0.0021-15-5211-0 5,000.00

Audit 3,400.00 0.00 3,400.00 100.00 %0.0021-15-5217-0 3,400.00

IT - General Services 1,200.00 400.00 800.00 66.67 %0.0021-15-5221-0 1,200.00

IT - Annual Maintenance, Support, Ho… 3,000.00 290.00 2,710.00 90.33 %72.5021-15-5224-0 3,000.00

Category: 52 - Contracted Services Total: 690.0072.5012,600.00 12,600.00 11,910.00 94.52 %

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials

Office Supplies 0.00 603.21 -603.21 0.00 %603.2121-15-5310-0 0.00

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials Total: 603.21603.210.00 0.00 -603.21 0.00 %

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs

Postage & Freight 9,200.00 1,883.59 7,316.41 79.53 %0.0021-15-5501-0 9,200.00

Bank & Credit Card Fees 2,000.00 257.82 1,742.18 87.11 %0.0021-15-5503-0 2,000.00

Legal Notices & Document Recording 100.00 20.00 80.00 80.00 %0.0021-15-5506-0 100.00

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs Total: 2,161.410.0011,300.00 11,300.00 9,138.59 80.87 %

Department: 15 - Administration & Elected Officials Total: 21,972.733,250.32105,783.00 105,783.00 83,810.27 79.23 %

Department: 30 - Streets Infrastructure

Category: 51 - Personnel

Salaries and Wages 85,189.00 14,393.73 70,795.27 83.10 %760.6421-30-5101-0 85,189.00

Overtime 1,500.00 1,390.95 109.05 7.27 %0.0021-30-5104-0 1,500.00

On Call 2,000.00 380.00 1,620.00 81.00 %80.0021-30-5105-0 2,000.00



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 17 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

FICA Taxes 6,785.00 1,162.27 5,622.73 82.87 %63.0721-30-5111-0 6,785.00

Unemployment Insurance 266.00 48.39 217.61 81.81 %2.5221-30-5112-0 266.00

Health Insurance 15,000.00 4,014.98 10,985.02 73.23 %0.0021-30-5121-0 15,000.00

Retirement 5,321.00 817.74 4,503.26 84.63 %33.9821-30-5131-0 5,321.00

Workers Compensation Insurance 1,000.00 378.60 621.40 62.14 %126.2021-30-5141-0 1,000.00

Category: 51 - Personnel Total: 22,586.661,066.41117,061.00 117,061.00 94,474.34 80.71 %

Category: 52 - Contracted Services

General Engineering 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 100.00 %0.0021-30-5233-0 5,000.00

Other Contracted Services 66,500.00 92.80 66,407.20 99.86 %0.0021-30-5298-0 66,500.00

Category: 52 - Contracted Services Total: 92.800.0071,500.00 71,500.00 71,407.20 99.87 %

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials

Operating Supplies 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00 %0.0021-30-5300-0 1,000.00

Gasoline & Diesel Fuel 1,000.00 273.14 726.86 72.69 %0.0021-30-5350-0 1,000.00

Motor Vehicle Parts 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00 %0.0021-30-5355-0 1,000.00

Non-capital Tools & Equipment 1,500.00 29.99 1,470.01 98.00 %0.0021-30-5370-0 1,500.00

Other Construction / Building Materia… 5,000.00 1,310.97 3,689.03 73.78 %0.0021-30-5387-0 5,000.00

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials Total: 1,614.100.009,500.00 9,500.00 7,885.90 83.01 %

Category: 54 - Utilities

Water 0.00 432.53 -432.53 0.00 %0.0021-30-5430-0 0.00

Category: 54 - Utilities Total: 432.530.000.00 0.00 -432.53 0.00 %

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs

Repairs & Maintenance - Streets 1,500.00 2,150.07 -650.07 -43.34 %0.0021-30-5550-0 1,500.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Machinery &… 2,000.00 78.12 1,921.88 96.09 %0.0021-30-5556-0 2,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Vehicles 3,000.00 41.71 2,958.29 98.61 %0.0021-30-5558-0 3,000.00

Training Costs 2,000.00 186.15 1,813.85 90.69 %115.0021-30-5580-0 2,000.00

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs Total: 2,456.05115.008,500.00 8,500.00 6,043.95 71.11 %

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +)

Infrastructure Upgrades & Replacem… 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 100.00 %0.0021-30-6019-3 50,000.00

Infrastructure Improvements 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 100.00 %0.0021-30-6024-3 20,000.00

Vehicles & Rolling Stock 30,000.00 0.00 30,000.00 100.00 %0.0021-30-6032-3 30,000.00

Equipment Replacements 37,500.00 0.00 37,500.00 100.00 %0.0021-30-6034-0 37,500.00

Manhole Replacement or Refurbish 25,000.00 0.00 25,000.00 100.00 %0.0021-30-6038-3 25,000.00

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) Total: 0.000.00162,500.00 162,500.00 162,500.00 100.00 %

Department: 30 - Streets Infrastructure Total: 27,182.141,181.41369,061.00 369,061.00 341,878.86 92.63 %

Department: 35 - Wastewater Plant

Category: 51 - Personnel

Salaries and Wages 269,640.00 62,599.53 207,040.47 76.78 %7,369.0621-35-5101-0 269,640.00

Overtime 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00 %0.0021-35-5104-0 1,000.00

On Call 5,400.00 1,600.00 3,800.00 70.37 %200.0021-35-5105-0 5,400.00

FICA Taxes 21,117.00 4,679.91 16,437.09 77.84 %548.4121-35-5111-0 21,117.00

Unemployment Insurance 828.00 183.90 644.10 77.79 %21.5121-35-5112-0 828.00

Health Insurance 44,000.00 13,357.50 30,642.50 69.64 %0.0021-35-5121-0 44,000.00

Other Benefits Costs 0.00 691.09 -691.09 0.00 %172.7721-35-5129-0 0.00

Retirement 16,562.00 3,169.84 13,392.16 80.86 %393.2721-35-5131-0 16,562.00

Workers Compensation Insurance 8,000.00 1,375.71 6,624.29 82.80 %458.5721-35-5141-0 8,000.00

Recruiting & Hiring Costs 500.00 0.00 500.00 100.00 %0.0021-35-5191-0 500.00

Category: 51 - Personnel Total: 87,657.489,163.59367,047.00 367,047.00 279,389.52 76.12 %

Category: 52 - Contracted Services

IT - General Services 3,500.00 1,200.00 2,300.00 65.71 %0.0021-35-5221-0 3,500.00

IT - Annual Maintenance, Support, Ho… 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 100.00 %0.0021-35-5224-0 1,500.00

General Engineering 30,000.00 1,500.00 28,500.00 95.00 %0.0021-35-5233-0 30,000.00

Consulting - General 30,000.00 0.00 30,000.00 100.00 %0.0021-35-5241-0 30,000.00

Outside Lab & Analytic Services 12,300.00 4,486.00 7,814.00 63.53 %0.0021-35-5251-0 12,300.00

Category: 52 - Contracted Services Total: 7,186.000.0077,300.00 77,300.00 70,114.00 90.70 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 18 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials

Operating Supplies 6,000.00 669.14 5,330.86 88.85 %0.0021-35-5300-0 6,000.00

Office Supplies 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 100.00 %0.0021-35-5310-0 1,500.00

Chemicals 50,000.00 11,778.89 38,221.11 76.44 %0.0021-35-5320-0 50,000.00

Clothing and Uniforms 1,500.00 758.35 741.65 49.44 %0.0021-35-5329-0 1,500.00

Gasoline & Diesel Fuel 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 100.00 %0.0021-35-5350-0 2,500.00

Non-capital Tools & Equipment 4,500.00 33.46 4,466.54 99.26 %0.0021-35-5370-0 4,500.00

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials Total: 13,239.840.0066,000.00 66,000.00 52,760.16 79.94 %

Category: 54 - Utilities

Gas 35,000.00 5,098.93 29,901.07 85.43 %0.0021-35-5410-0 35,000.00

Electricity 100,000.00 16,554.11 83,445.89 83.45 %0.0021-35-5420-0 100,000.00

Telephone 3,000.00 707.85 2,292.15 76.41 %0.0021-35-5450-0 3,000.00

Broadband 1,700.00 480.00 1,220.00 71.76 %0.0021-35-5460-0 1,700.00

Trash Removal 2,100.00 494.55 1,605.45 76.45 %0.0021-35-5470-0 2,100.00

Category: 54 - Utilities Total: 23,335.440.00141,800.00 141,800.00 118,464.56 83.54 %

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs

Postage & Freight 2,000.00 939.29 1,060.71 53.04 %0.0021-35-5501-0 2,000.00

Bank & Credit Card Fees 0.00 4.63 -4.63 0.00 %0.0021-35-5503-0 0.00

Licenses, Fees & Permits 7,000.00 0.00 7,000.00 100.00 %0.0021-35-5511-0 7,000.00

Property / Casualty Insurance 68,299.00 30,901.28 37,397.72 54.76 %14,740.1421-35-5530-0 68,299.00

Lease Expense - Copiers, Machinery &… 2,000.00 345.78 1,654.22 82.71 %0.0021-35-5544-0 2,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Buildings 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 100.00 %0.0021-35-5552-0 10,000.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Machinery &… 40,000.00 15,292.17 24,707.83 61.77 %2,612.2521-35-5556-0 40,000.00

Training Costs 0.00 207.60 -207.60 0.00 %0.0021-35-5580-0 0.00

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs Total: 47,690.7517,352.39129,299.00 129,299.00 81,608.25 63.12 %

Category: 56 - Financing Obligations

Loan / Bond Principle 198,161.00 97,032.47 101,128.53 51.03 %0.0021-35-5611-0 198,161.00

Interest on Loans / Bonds 282,323.00 143,212.53 139,110.47 49.27 %0.0021-35-5621-0 282,323.00

Category: 56 - Financing Obligations Total: 240,245.000.00480,484.00 480,484.00 240,239.00 50.00 %

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +)

Wastewater Treatment Facility-Routi… 16,500.00 0.00 16,500.00 100.00 %0.0021-35-6022-0 16,500.00

Wastewater Treatment Facility Upgra… 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 100.00 %0.0021-35-6023-0 15,000.00

Vehicle Replacements 25,000.00 24,015.56 984.44 3.94 %24,015.5621-35-6031-0 25,000.00

Equipment Replacements 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 100.00 %0.0021-35-6034-0 50,000.00

Machinery & Equipment 15,000.00 7,410.23 7,589.77 50.60 %0.0021-35-6035-0 15,000.00

IT - Capitalized Hardware & Software 5,000.00 3,511.50 1,488.50 29.77 %0.0021-35-6041-3 5,000.00

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) Total: 34,937.2924,015.56126,500.00 126,500.00 91,562.71 72.38 %

Department: 35 - Wastewater Plant Total: 454,291.8050,531.541,388,430.00 1,388,430.00 934,138.20 67.28 %

Expense Total: 503,446.6754,963.271,863,274.00 1,863,274.00 1,359,827.33 72.98 %

Fund: 21 - WASTEWATER FUND Surplus (Deficit): -52,067.098,299.84-261,674.00 -261,674.00 209,606.91 80.10 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 19 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 26 - STEAMPLANT EVENT CENTER FUND

Revenue

Department: 00 - General

Category: 45 - Fees for Recreation & Event Services

Room Rental - Ballroom 75,000.00 11,955.00 -63,045.00 84.06 %1,930.0026-00-4551-0 75,000.00

Room Rental - Theater 30,000.00 7,675.10 -22,324.90 74.42 %1,863.1026-00-4552-0 30,000.00

Room Rental - Annex 22,000.00 6,142.00 -15,858.00 72.08 %1,980.0026-00-4553-0 22,000.00

Room Rental - Plaza 1,000.00 1,270.00 270.00 127.00 %1,270.0026-00-4554-0 1,000.00

Room Rental - Lobby 100.00 0.00 -100.00 100.00 %0.0026-00-4555-0 100.00

Ticket Sales 10,000.00 3,240.00 -6,760.00 67.60 %0.0026-00-4561-0 10,000.00

Event Sponsorship Fees 8,000.00 250.00 -7,750.00 96.88 %250.0026-00-4565-0 8,000.00

Caterer Fee 10,000.00 58.00 -9,942.00 99.42 %0.0026-00-4571-0 10,000.00

Food Sales 8,000.00 235.00 -7,765.00 97.06 %0.0026-00-4573-0 8,000.00

Beverage Sales 70,000.00 10,222.25 -59,777.75 85.40 %7.3826-00-4576-0 70,000.00

Other Rentals 11,000.00 977.00 -10,023.00 91.12 %0.0026-00-4581-0 11,000.00

Merchandise Sales 750.00 346.60 -403.40 53.79 %42.4026-00-4585-0 750.00

Friends of the SteamPlant Donations 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.0026-00-4590-0 5,000.00

Misc Services 4,500.00 896.00 -3,604.00 80.09 %50.0026-00-4599-0 4,500.00

Category: 45 - Fees for Recreation & Event Services Total: 48,266.957,392.88255,350.00 255,350.00 -207,083.05 81.10 %

Category: 49 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Other Misc Revenues 0.00 50.00 50.00 0.00 %0.0026-00-4980-0 0.00

One-time Special Revenue 0.00 2,250.00 2,250.00 0.00 %0.0026-00-4982-3 0.00

Category: 49 - Miscellaneous Revenue Total: 2,300.000.000.00 0.00 2,300.00 0.00 %

Department: 00 - General Total: 50,566.957,392.88255,350.00 255,350.00 -204,783.05 80.20 %

Revenue Total: 50,566.957,392.88255,350.00 255,350.00 -204,783.05 80.20 %

Expense

Department: 00 - General

Category: 50 - Direct Cost of Revenue

Cost of Sales - Artist Fees 20,000.00 5,542.00 14,458.00 72.29 %0.0026-00-5021-0 20,000.00

Cost of Sales - Food 5,000.00 231.90 4,768.10 95.36 %0.0026-00-5041-0 5,000.00

Cost of Sales - Beverage 20,000.00 4,277.24 15,722.76 78.61 %288.0026-00-5051-0 20,000.00

Cost of Sales - Other Event Expenses 5,500.00 0.00 5,500.00 100.00 %0.0026-00-5071-0 5,500.00

Category: 50 - Direct Cost of Revenue Total: 10,051.14288.0050,500.00 50,500.00 40,448.86 80.10 %

Department: 00 - General Total: 10,051.14288.0050,500.00 50,500.00 40,448.86 80.10 %

Department: 40 - SteamPlant - Event Center

Category: 51 - Personnel

Salaries and Wages 237,037.00 66,440.47 170,596.53 71.97 %9,085.0726-40-5101-0 237,037.00

FICA Taxes 15,000.00 5,050.16 9,949.84 66.33 %678.8826-40-5111-0 15,000.00

Unemployment Insurance 700.00 197.53 502.47 71.78 %26.6226-40-5112-0 700.00

Health Insurance 20,000.00 4,087.56 15,912.44 79.56 %0.0026-40-5121-0 20,000.00

Other Benefits Costs 0.00 270.74 -270.74 0.00 %106.2226-40-5129-0 0.00

Retirement 4,200.00 1,304.84 2,895.16 68.93 %163.7026-40-5131-0 4,200.00

Workers Compensation Insurance 5,000.00 1,026.45 3,973.55 79.47 %342.1526-40-5141-0 5,000.00

Recruiting & Hiring Costs 500.00 0.00 500.00 100.00 %0.0026-40-5191-0 500.00

Category: 51 - Personnel Total: 78,377.7510,402.64282,437.00 282,437.00 204,059.25 72.25 %

Category: 52 - Contracted Services

IT - General Services 3,600.00 900.00 2,700.00 75.00 %0.0026-40-5221-0 3,600.00

Category: 52 - Contracted Services Total: 900.000.003,600.00 3,600.00 2,700.00 75.00 %

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials

Operating Supplies 8,000.00 1,558.61 6,441.39 80.52 %0.0026-40-5300-0 8,000.00

Office Supplies 500.00 116.86 383.14 76.63 %0.0026-40-5310-0 500.00

Gasoline & Diesel Fuel 200.00 0.00 200.00 100.00 %0.0026-40-5350-0 200.00

Non-capital Tools & Equipment 4,000.00 158.47 3,841.53 96.04 %0.0026-40-5370-0 4,000.00

Category: 53 - Supplies & Materials Total: 1,833.940.0012,700.00 12,700.00 10,866.06 85.56 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 20 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Category: 54 - Utilities

Gas 8,000.00 2,486.48 5,513.52 68.92 %0.0026-40-5410-0 8,000.00

Electricity 10,000.00 2,230.40 7,769.60 77.70 %0.0026-40-5420-0 10,000.00

Water 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 100.00 %0.0026-40-5430-0 4,000.00

Telephone 3,000.00 692.74 2,307.26 76.91 %0.0026-40-5450-0 3,000.00

Broadband 1,500.00 480.00 1,020.00 68.00 %0.0026-40-5460-0 1,500.00

Trash Removal 1,800.00 338.85 1,461.15 81.18 %0.0026-40-5470-0 1,800.00

Category: 54 - Utilities Total: 6,228.470.0028,300.00 28,300.00 22,071.53 77.99 %

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs

Postage & Freight 200.00 0.00 200.00 100.00 %0.0026-40-5501-0 200.00

Bank & Credit Card Fees 3,000.00 471.51 2,528.49 84.28 %0.0026-40-5503-0 3,000.00

Advertising 20,000.00 2,576.01 17,423.99 87.12 %0.0026-40-5505-0 20,000.00

Licenses, Fees & Permits 2,200.00 939.00 1,261.00 57.32 %0.0026-40-5511-0 2,200.00

Subscriptions, Dues and Memberships 1,000.00 125.00 875.00 87.50 %0.0026-40-5513-0 1,000.00

Property / Casualty Insurance 4,000.00 2,523.28 1,476.72 36.92 %1,191.3926-40-5530-0 4,000.00

Lease Expense - Copiers, Machinery &… 1,800.00 962.49 837.51 46.53 %0.0026-40-5544-0 1,800.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Buildings 600.00 660.00 -60.00 -10.00 %0.0026-40-5552-0 600.00

Repairs & Maintenance - Machinery &… 1,700.00 604.00 1,096.00 64.47 %0.0026-40-5556-0 1,700.00

Tree Plantings & Maintenance 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00 %0.0026-40-5559-0 1,000.00

Training Costs 500.00 0.00 500.00 100.00 %0.0026-40-5580-0 500.00

Travel Costs - Mileage Reimbursement 250.00 0.00 250.00 100.00 %0.0026-40-5586-0 250.00

Travel Costs - Other 0.00 26.86 -26.86 0.00 %0.0026-40-5589-0 0.00

Miscellaneous 100.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 %0.0026-40-5599-0 100.00

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs Total: 8,888.151,191.3936,350.00 36,350.00 27,461.85 75.55 %

Category: 59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999)

Machinery & Equipment Expenditures 7,500.00 3,937.40 3,562.60 47.50 %0.0026-40-5931-0 7,500.00

Category: 59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999) Total: 3,937.400.007,500.00 7,500.00 3,562.60 47.50 %

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +)

Window Replacement in Theater 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 100.00 %0.0026-40-6026-3 6,000.00

Shade Structure for Plaza 17,000.00 0.00 17,000.00 100.00 %0.0026-40-6027-3 17,000.00

Banquet Chairs 7,400.00 0.00 7,400.00 100.00 %0.0026-40-6029-3 7,400.00

Update Theater Speakers 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 100.00 %0.0026-40-6044-3 10,000.00

Upgrade Sound System - Plaza 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 100.00 %0.0026-40-6045-3 4,000.00

Upgrade Theater Lighting 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 100.00 %0.0026-40-6046-3 10,000.00

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) Total: 0.000.0054,400.00 54,400.00 54,400.00 100.00 %

Department: 40 - SteamPlant - Event Center Total: 100,165.7111,594.03425,287.00 425,287.00 325,121.29 76.45 %

Expense Total: 110,216.8511,882.03475,787.00 475,787.00 365,570.15 76.83 %

Fund: 26 - STEAMPLANT EVENT CENTER FUND Surplus (Deficit): -59,649.90-4,489.15-220,437.00 -220,437.00 160,787.10 72.94 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 21 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 30 - CONSERVATION TRUST FUND

Revenue

Department: 00 - General

Category: 44 - Intergovernmental Revenue

Lottery Proceeds - CTF 60,000.00 12,604.05 -47,395.95 78.99 %0.0030-00-4490-0 60,000.00

Category: 44 - Intergovernmental Revenue Total: 12,604.050.0060,000.00 60,000.00 -47,395.95 78.99 %

Category: 49 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Interest Revenue 500.00 163.73 -336.27 67.25 %0.0030-00-4901-0 500.00

Category: 49 - Miscellaneous Revenue Total: 163.730.00500.00 500.00 -336.27 67.25 %

Department: 00 - General Total: 12,767.780.0060,500.00 60,500.00 -47,732.22 78.90 %

Revenue Total: 12,767.780.0060,500.00 60,500.00 -47,732.22 78.90 %

Expense

Department: 54 - Parks, Open Space & Trails

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +)

Alpine Park Projects 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 100.00 %0.0030-54-6072-3 20,000.00

Centennial Park Improvements 30,000.00 56.98 29,943.02 99.81 %7.5030-54-6077-3 30,000.00

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) Total: 56.987.5050,000.00 50,000.00 49,943.02 99.89 %

Department: 54 - Parks, Open Space & Trails Total: 56.987.5050,000.00 50,000.00 49,943.02 99.89 %

Expense Total: 56.987.5050,000.00 50,000.00 49,943.02 99.89 %

Fund: 30 - CONSERVATION TRUST FUND Surplus (Deficit): 12,710.80-7.5010,500.00 10,500.00 2,210.80 -21.06 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 22 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 31 - STREETS FUND

Revenue

Department: 00 - General

Category: 40 - Tax Revenue

Sales Tax - City (32%) 2,860,825.00 357,300.59 -2,503,524.41 87.51 %0.0031-00-4010-0 2,860,825.00

Category: 40 - Tax Revenue Total: 357,300.590.002,860,825.00 2,860,825.00 -2,503,524.41 87.51 %

Department: 00 - General Total: 357,300.590.002,860,825.00 2,860,825.00 -2,503,524.41 87.51 %

Revenue Total: 357,300.590.002,860,825.00 2,860,825.00 -2,503,524.41 87.51 %

Expense

Department: 30 - Streets Infrastructure

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +)

Crosswalks 40,000.00 0.00 40,000.00 100.00 %0.0031-30-6002-3 40,000.00

Sidewalk Improvements 110,000.00 0.00 110,000.00 100.00 %0.0031-30-6009-3 110,000.00

Streets - Curb, Gutter, Drainage 150,000.00 0.00 150,000.00 100.00 %0.0031-30-6014-3 150,000.00

Streets - Other (Teller Safe Intersecti… 225,000.00 0.00 225,000.00 100.00 %0.0031-30-6017-3 225,000.00

Street Rebuild - Water Lines 665,000.00 25,700.00 639,300.00 96.14 %0.0031-30-6018-3 665,000.00

Street Rebuild - Sewer Lines 75,000.00 241.00 74,759.00 99.68 %0.0031-30-6019-3 75,000.00

Streets - Hunt Street 995,000.00 47,508.91 947,491.09 95.23 %0.0031-30-6020-3 995,000.00

Streets - Palmer Street 500,000.00 9,632.50 490,367.50 98.07 %0.0031-30-6021-3 500,000.00

Streets - 5th Street 305,000.00 0.00 305,000.00 100.00 %0.0031-30-6022-3 305,000.00

Streets - Scout Hut Grading/Parking 150,000.00 0.00 150,000.00 100.00 %0.0031-30-6023-3 150,000.00

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) Total: 83,082.410.003,215,000.00 3,215,000.00 3,131,917.59 97.42 %

Department: 30 - Streets Infrastructure Total: 83,082.410.003,215,000.00 3,215,000.00 3,131,917.59 97.42 %

Expense Total: 83,082.410.003,215,000.00 3,215,000.00 3,131,917.59 97.42 %

Fund: 31 - STREETS FUND Surplus (Deficit): 274,218.180.00-354,175.00 -354,175.00 628,393.18 177.42 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 23 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 32 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

Revenue

Department: 00 - General

Category: 40 - Tax Revenue

Sales Tax - City (up to 8%) 306,444.00 38,240.22 -268,203.78 87.52 %0.0032-00-4010-0 306,444.00

Category: 40 - Tax Revenue Total: 38,240.220.00306,444.00 306,444.00 -268,203.78 87.52 %

Category: 44 - Intergovernmental Revenue

State Grants 786,113.00 0.00 -786,113.00 100.00 %0.0032-00-4454-3 786,113.00

Category: 44 - Intergovernmental Revenue Total: 0.000.00786,113.00 786,113.00 -786,113.00 100.00 %

Category: 48 - Capital Revenue

Donations for Capital Improvements 185,575.00 0.00 -185,575.00 100.00 %0.0032-00-4870-3 185,575.00

Category: 48 - Capital Revenue Total: 0.000.00185,575.00 185,575.00 -185,575.00 100.00 %

Department: 00 - General Total: 38,240.220.001,278,132.00 1,278,132.00 -1,239,891.78 97.01 %

Revenue Total: 38,240.220.001,278,132.00 1,278,132.00 -1,239,891.78 97.01 %

Expense

Department: 51 - Pool & Recreation

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +)

Pool Facility - Major Improvements 700,000.00 0.00 700,000.00 100.00 %0.0032-51-6023-3 700,000.00

Centennial Park Improvements 350,000.00 0.00 350,000.00 100.00 %0.0032-51-6077-0 350,000.00

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) Total: 0.000.001,050,000.00 1,050,000.00 1,050,000.00 100.00 %

Department: 51 - Pool & Recreation Total: 0.000.001,050,000.00 1,050,000.00 1,050,000.00 100.00 %

Department: 54 - Parks, Open Space & Trails

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +)

New Trails Project 299,788.00 0.00 299,788.00 100.00 %0.0032-54-6006-3 299,788.00

Other Park Projects 655,000.00 11,643.09 643,356.91 98.22 %0.0032-54-6079-3 590,000.00

Category: 60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) Total: 11,643.090.00889,788.00 954,788.00 943,144.91 98.78 %

Department: 54 - Parks, Open Space & Trails Total: 11,643.090.00889,788.00 954,788.00 943,144.91 98.78 %

Expense Total: 11,643.090.001,939,788.00 2,004,788.00 1,993,144.91 99.42 %

Fund: 32 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND Surplus (Deficit): 26,597.130.00-661,656.00 -726,656.00 753,253.13 103.66 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 24 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 33 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND

Revenue

Department: 00 - General

Category: 40 - Tax Revenue

Sales Tax - City (up to 2%) 110,000.00 13,760.94 -96,239.06 87.49 %0.0033-00-4010-0 110,000.00

Category: 40 - Tax Revenue Total: 13,760.940.00110,000.00 110,000.00 -96,239.06 87.49 %

Department: 00 - General Total: 13,760.940.00110,000.00 110,000.00 -96,239.06 87.49 %

Revenue Total: 13,760.940.00110,000.00 110,000.00 -96,239.06 87.49 %

Expense

Department: 16 - Community Development

Category: 52 - Contracted Services

Consulting - General 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 100.00 %0.0033-16-5241-0 5,000.00

Category: 52 - Contracted Services Total: 0.000.005,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 100.00 %

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs

Subscriptions, Dues and Memberships 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.0033-16-5513-0 2,000.00

Training Costs 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00 %0.0033-16-5580-0 1,000.00

Travel Costs - Mileage Reimbursement 250.00 0.00 250.00 100.00 %0.0033-16-5586-0 250.00

Travel Costs - Other 500.00 0.00 500.00 100.00 %0.0033-16-5589-0 500.00

Miscellaneous 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00 %0.0033-16-5599-0 1,000.00

Category: 55 - Other Operating Costs Total: 2,000.000.004,750.00 4,750.00 2,750.00 57.89 %

Department: 16 - Community Development Total: 2,000.000.009,750.00 9,750.00 7,750.00 79.49 %

Expense Total: 2,000.000.009,750.00 9,750.00 7,750.00 79.49 %

Fund: 33 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND Surplus (Deficit): 11,760.940.00100,250.00 100,250.00 -88,489.06 88.27 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 25 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 34 - LODGING TAX FUND

Revenue

Department: 00 - General

Category: 40 - Tax Revenue

Occupation Tax on Lodging 235,000.00 0.00 -235,000.00 100.00 %0.0034-00-4020-0 235,000.00

Category: 40 - Tax Revenue Total: 0.000.00235,000.00 235,000.00 -235,000.00 100.00 %

Department: 00 - General Total: 0.000.00235,000.00 235,000.00 -235,000.00 100.00 %

Revenue Total: 0.000.00235,000.00 235,000.00 -235,000.00 100.00 %

Fund: 34 - LODGING TAX FUND Total: 0.000.00235,000.00 235,000.00 -235,000.00 100.00 %

Report Surplus (Deficit): -230,694.99 -965,717.06-4,780,671.00 -5,273,171.00 4,307,453.94 81.69 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 26 of 37

Group Summary

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

ActivityCategor…
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

Remaining

Fund: 10 - GENERAL FUND

Revenue

Department: 00 - General

40 - Tax Revenue 402,157.8211,170.472,599,422.00 2,599,422.00 -2,197,264.18 84.53 %

41 - Fees for General Services 2,294.25352.756,000.00 6,000.00 -3,705.75 61.76 %

44 - Intergovernmental Revenue 223,980.144,790.042,247,179.00 2,304,404.00 -2,080,423.86 90.28 %

48 - Capital Revenue 105,018.4212,380.00143,500.00 143,500.00 -38,481.58 26.82 %

49 - Miscellaneous Revenue 27,794.003,319.8881,000.00 81,000.00 -53,206.00 65.69 %

761,244.6332,013.145,077,101.00 5,134,326.00 -4,373,081.37Department: 00 - General Total: 85.17 %

Department: 15 - Administration & Elected Officials

41 - Fees for General Services 8,111.141,081.2518,650.00 18,650.00 -10,538.86 56.51 %

43 - Licenses and Permits 3,103.75198.7523,200.00 23,200.00 -20,096.25 86.62 %

11,214.891,280.0041,850.00 41,850.00 -30,635.11Department: 15 - Administration & Elected Officials Total: 73.20 %

Department: 16 - Community Development

41 - Fees for General Services 21,558.094,516.0947,500.00 47,500.00 -25,941.91 54.61 %

49 - Miscellaneous Revenue 6,000.000.000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 %

27,558.094,516.0947,500.00 47,500.00 -19,941.91Department: 16 - Community Development Total: 41.98 %

Department: 21 - Police

41 - Fees for General Services 300.000.003,000.00 3,000.00 -2,700.00 90.00 %

42 - Fines & Forfeitures 19,177.443,095.0056,000.00 56,000.00 -36,822.56 65.75 %

49 - Miscellaneous Revenue 50.000.000.00 0.00 50.00 0.00 %

19,527.443,095.0059,000.00 59,000.00 -39,472.56Department: 21 - Police Total: 66.90 %

Department: 22 - Fire

41 - Fees for General Services 1,528.1030.0025,000.00 25,000.00 -23,471.90 93.89 %

44 - Intergovernmental Revenue 0.000.0070,000.00 70,000.00 -70,000.00 100.00 %

49 - Miscellaneous Revenue 1,131.790.005,000.00 5,000.00 -3,868.21 77.36 %

2,659.8930.00100,000.00 100,000.00 -97,340.11Department: 22 - Fire Total: 97.34 %

Department: 30 - Streets Infrastructure

41 - Fees for General Services 4,235.000.0010,000.00 10,000.00 -5,765.00 57.65 %

4,235.000.0010,000.00 10,000.00 -5,765.00Department: 30 - Streets Infrastructure Total: 57.65 %

Department: 31 - Facilities & Vehicle Management

41 - Fees for General Services 3,472.650.0022,000.00 22,000.00 -18,527.35 84.22 %

3,472.650.0022,000.00 22,000.00 -18,527.35Department: 31 - Facilities & Vehicle Management Total: 84.22 %

Department: 51 - Pool & Recreation

45 - Fees for Recreation & Event Services 132,818.127,255.87496,600.00 496,600.00 -363,781.88 73.25 %

132,818.127,255.87496,600.00 496,600.00 -363,781.88Department: 51 - Pool & Recreation Total: 73.25 %

962,730.7148,190.105,854,051.00 5,911,276.00 -4,948,545.29Revenue Total: 83.71 %

Expense

Department: 15 - Administration & Elected Officials

51 - Personnel 96,927.8812,894.57424,124.00 424,124.00 327,196.12 77.15 %

52 - Contracted Services 123,493.7110,780.44171,000.00 171,000.00 47,506.29 27.78 %

53 - Supplies & Materials 3,130.8953.308,250.00 8,250.00 5,119.11 62.05 %

54 - Utilities 9,601.39773.2120,450.00 20,450.00 10,848.61 53.05 %

55 - Other Operating Costs 54,544.5022,629.68162,400.00 162,400.00 107,855.50 66.41 %

56 - Financing Obligations 40,458.000.00161,832.00 161,832.00 121,374.00 75.00 %

59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999) 17,149.2534.9736,500.00 36,500.00 19,350.75 53.02 %

60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) 8,028.440.0065,000.00 65,000.00 56,971.56 87.65 %

353,334.0647,166.171,049,556.00 1,049,556.00 696,221.94Department: 15 - Administration & Elected Officials Total: 66.33 %

Department: 16 - Community Development

51 - Personnel 25,065.733,083.64224,417.00 224,417.00 199,351.27 88.83 %

52 - Contracted Services 19,731.868,113.8823,000.00 23,000.00 3,268.14 14.21 %

53 - Supplies & Materials 262.5210.002,000.00 2,000.00 1,737.48 86.87 %

54 - Utilities 1,205.52773.21100.00 100.00 -1,105.52 -1,105.52 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 27 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

ActivityCategor…
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

Remaining

55 - Other Operating Costs 2,336.9639.0011,100.00 11,100.00 8,763.04 78.95 %

59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999) 836.180.002,500.00 2,500.00 1,663.82 66.55 %

49,438.7712,019.73263,117.00 263,117.00 213,678.23Department: 16 - Community Development Total: 81.21 %

Department: 21 - Police

51 - Personnel 397,024.7645,426.561,365,484.00 1,365,484.00 968,459.24 70.92 %

52 - Contracted Services 21,785.290.0099,200.00 99,200.00 77,414.71 78.04 %

53 - Supplies & Materials 25,195.071,430.2754,700.00 54,700.00 29,504.93 53.94 %

54 - Utilities 10,806.050.0033,700.00 33,700.00 22,893.95 67.93 %

55 - Other Operating Costs 10,335.91506.7042,300.00 42,300.00 31,964.09 75.57 %

59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999) 1,958.470.005,800.00 63,025.00 61,066.53 96.89 %

60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) 17,051.790.00206,200.00 206,200.00 189,148.21 91.73 %

484,157.3447,363.531,807,384.00 1,864,609.00 1,380,451.66Department: 21 - Police Total: 74.03 %

Department: 22 - Fire

51 - Personnel 283,383.2933,322.781,030,399.00 1,030,399.00 747,015.71 72.50 %

52 - Contracted Services 3,300.011,075.0019,500.00 19,500.00 16,199.99 83.08 %

53 - Supplies & Materials 3,380.25600.4632,700.00 32,700.00 29,319.75 89.66 %

54 - Utilities 1,358.640.005,300.00 5,300.00 3,941.36 74.37 %

55 - Other Operating Costs 22,169.3514,616.9844,656.00 44,656.00 22,486.65 50.36 %

59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999) 0.000.008,200.00 8,200.00 8,200.00 100.00 %

60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) 4,665.502,265.50301,200.00 301,200.00 296,534.50 98.45 %

318,257.0451,880.721,441,955.00 1,441,955.00 1,123,697.96Department: 22 - Fire Total: 77.93 %

Department: 30 - Streets Infrastructure

51 - Personnel 115,646.1610,040.99381,841.00 381,841.00 266,194.84 69.71 %

52 - Contracted Services 250.000.00201,000.00 201,000.00 200,750.00 99.88 %

53 - Supplies & Materials 5,237.03289.4135,168.00 35,168.00 29,930.97 85.11 %

54 - Utilities 18,502.760.00100,300.00 100,300.00 81,797.24 81.55 %

55 - Other Operating Costs 36,923.98-385.19195,150.00 169,950.00 133,026.02 78.27 %

59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999) 0.000.0016,500.00 16,500.00 16,500.00 100.00 %

60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) 44,608.1230,143.12378,800.00 378,800.00 334,191.88 88.22 %

221,168.0540,088.331,308,759.00 1,283,559.00 1,062,390.95Department: 30 - Streets Infrastructure Total: 82.77 %

Department: 31 - Facilities & Vehicle Management

51 - Personnel 48,248.036,204.99123,288.00 123,288.00 75,039.97 60.87 %

52 - Contracted Services 999.990.003,300.00 3,300.00 2,300.01 69.70 %

53 - Supplies & Materials 1,494.3710.5121,400.00 21,400.00 19,905.63 93.02 %

54 - Utilities 2,219.120.009,600.00 9,600.00 7,380.88 76.88 %

55 - Other Operating Costs 1,980.06155.2612,900.00 31,100.00 29,119.94 93.63 %

59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999) 1,062.620.005,000.00 5,000.00 3,937.38 78.75 %

56,004.196,370.76175,488.00 193,688.00 137,683.81Department: 31 - Facilities & Vehicle Management Total: 71.09 %

Department: 51 - Pool & Recreation

50 - Direct Cost of Revenue 2,514.960.0015,000.00 15,000.00 12,485.04 83.23 %

51 - Personnel 156,783.6020,161.59565,551.00 565,551.00 408,767.40 72.28 %

52 - Contracted Services 2,573.71150.0024,200.00 24,200.00 21,626.29 89.36 %

53 - Supplies & Materials 2,556.9594.9535,900.00 35,900.00 33,343.05 92.88 %

54 - Utilities 18,550.700.0071,840.00 71,840.00 53,289.30 74.18 %

55 - Other Operating Costs 11,759.79388.0052,900.00 52,900.00 41,140.21 77.77 %

59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999) -1.870.0023,500.00 23,500.00 23,501.87 100.01 %

60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) 960.650.00651,900.00 651,900.00 650,939.35 99.85 %

195,698.4920,794.541,440,791.00 1,440,791.00 1,245,092.51Department: 51 - Pool & Recreation Total: 86.42 %

Department: 54 - Parks, Open Space & Trails

51 - Personnel 60,897.089,833.56240,601.00 240,601.00 179,703.92 74.69 %

52 - Contracted Services 636.000.0013,300.00 13,300.00 12,664.00 95.22 %

53 - Supplies & Materials 6,015.85359.0347,700.00 47,700.00 41,684.15 87.39 %

54 - Utilities 10,491.690.0072,500.00 72,500.00 62,008.31 85.53 %

55 - Other Operating Costs 15,899.060.0075,150.00 75,150.00 59,250.94 78.84 %

59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999) 947.140.0032,500.00 32,500.00 31,552.86 97.09 %

60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) 31,904.073,760.6596,000.00 108,500.00 76,595.93 70.60 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 28 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

ActivityCategor…
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

Remaining

126,790.8913,953.24577,751.00 590,251.00 463,460.11Department: 54 - Parks, Open Space & Trails Total: 78.52 %

Department: 56 - Other

52 - Contracted Services 13,009.860.00150,500.00 150,500.00 137,490.14 91.36 %

54 - Utilities 5,546.62741.8313,700.00 13,700.00 8,153.38 59.51 %

55 - Other Operating Costs 32,158.038,050.00183,500.00 183,500.00 151,341.97 82.48 %

59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999) 0.000.000.00 7,000.00 7,000.00 100.00 %

50,714.518,791.83347,700.00 354,700.00 303,985.49Department: 56 - Other Total: 85.70 %

1,855,563.34248,428.858,412,501.00 8,482,226.00 6,626,662.66Expense Total: 78.12 %

-892,832.63-200,238.75-2,558,450.00 -2,570,950.00 1,678,117.37Fund: 10 - GENERAL FUND Surplus (Deficit): 65.27 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 29 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

ActivityCategor…
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

Remaining

Fund: 20 - WATER FUND

Revenue

Department: 00 - General

41 - Fees for General Services 312,532.93182.741,618,500.00 1,618,500.00 -1,305,967.07 80.69 %

44 - Intergovernmental Revenue 0.000.00895,000.00 895,000.00 -895,000.00 100.00 %

48 - Capital Revenue 100,287.7713,875.28520,000.00 520,000.00 -419,712.23 80.71 %

49 - Miscellaneous Revenue 3,534.65233.573,000.00 3,000.00 534.65 17.82 %

416,355.3514,291.593,036,500.00 3,036,500.00 -2,620,144.65Department: 00 - General Total: 86.29 %

416,355.3514,291.593,036,500.00 3,036,500.00 -2,620,144.65Revenue Total: 86.29 %

Expense

Department: 15 - Administration & Elected Officials

51 - Personnel 18,546.182,574.9981,063.00 81,063.00 62,516.82 77.12 %

52 - Contracted Services 449,495.344,513.0012,700.00 427,700.00 -21,795.34 -5.10 %

53 - Supplies & Materials 603.21603.213,500.00 3,500.00 2,896.79 82.77 %

55 - Other Operating Costs 2,130.880.0011,500.00 11,500.00 9,369.12 81.47 %

470,775.617,691.20108,763.00 523,763.00 52,987.39Department: 15 - Administration & Elected Officials Total: 10.12 %

Department: 30 - Streets Infrastructure

51 - Personnel 50,997.245,734.13221,713.00 221,713.00 170,715.76 77.00 %

52 - Contracted Services 17,360.766,400.1520,000.00 20,000.00 2,639.24 13.20 %

53 - Supplies & Materials 1,384.01158.8612,000.00 12,000.00 10,615.99 88.47 %

55 - Other Operating Costs 3,281.7035.1720,100.00 20,100.00 16,818.30 83.67 %

56 - Financing Obligations 0.000.00191,605.00 191,605.00 191,605.00 100.00 %

60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) 6,023.460.00472,500.00 472,500.00 466,476.54 98.73 %

79,047.1712,328.31937,918.00 937,918.00 858,870.83Department: 30 - Streets Infrastructure Total: 91.57 %

Department: 34 - Water Plant

51 - Personnel 75,662.688,230.44252,298.00 252,298.00 176,635.32 70.01 %

52 - Contracted Services 2,715.000.0035,500.00 35,500.00 32,785.00 92.35 %

53 - Supplies & Materials 4,229.860.0058,100.00 58,100.00 53,870.14 92.72 %

54 - Utilities 12,459.032,501.5244,400.00 44,400.00 31,940.97 71.94 %

55 - Other Operating Costs 20,031.368,358.24103,800.00 103,800.00 83,768.64 80.70 %

56 - Financing Obligations 0.000.0027,250.00 27,250.00 27,250.00 100.00 %

60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) 37,889.139,441.312,538,500.00 2,538,500.00 2,500,610.87 98.51 %

152,987.0628,531.513,059,848.00 3,059,848.00 2,906,860.94Department: 34 - Water Plant Total: 95.00 %

702,809.8448,551.024,106,529.00 4,521,529.00 3,818,719.16Expense Total: 84.46 %

-286,454.49-34,259.43-1,070,029.00 -1,485,029.00 1,198,574.51Fund: 20 - WATER FUND Surplus (Deficit): 80.71 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 30 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

ActivityCategor…
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

Remaining

Fund: 21 - WASTEWATER FUND

Revenue

Department: 00 - General

41 - Fees for General Services 304,272.67-82.611,292,000.00 1,292,000.00 -987,727.33 76.45 %

48 - Capital Revenue 141,969.3163,345.72300,000.00 300,000.00 -158,030.69 52.68 %

49 - Miscellaneous Revenue 5,137.600.009,600.00 9,600.00 -4,462.40 46.48 %

451,379.5863,263.111,601,600.00 1,601,600.00 -1,150,220.42Department: 00 - General Total: 71.82 %

451,379.5863,263.111,601,600.00 1,601,600.00 -1,150,220.42Revenue Total: 71.82 %

Expense

Department: 15 - Administration & Elected Officials

51 - Personnel 18,518.112,574.6181,883.00 81,883.00 63,364.89 77.38 %

52 - Contracted Services 690.0072.5012,600.00 12,600.00 11,910.00 94.52 %

53 - Supplies & Materials 603.21603.210.00 0.00 -603.21 0.00 %

55 - Other Operating Costs 2,161.410.0011,300.00 11,300.00 9,138.59 80.87 %

21,972.733,250.32105,783.00 105,783.00 83,810.27Department: 15 - Administration & Elected Officials Total: 79.23 %

Department: 30 - Streets Infrastructure

51 - Personnel 22,586.661,066.41117,061.00 117,061.00 94,474.34 80.71 %

52 - Contracted Services 92.800.0071,500.00 71,500.00 71,407.20 99.87 %

53 - Supplies & Materials 1,614.100.009,500.00 9,500.00 7,885.90 83.01 %

54 - Utilities 432.530.000.00 0.00 -432.53 0.00 %

55 - Other Operating Costs 2,456.05115.008,500.00 8,500.00 6,043.95 71.11 %

60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) 0.000.00162,500.00 162,500.00 162,500.00 100.00 %

27,182.141,181.41369,061.00 369,061.00 341,878.86Department: 30 - Streets Infrastructure Total: 92.63 %

Department: 35 - Wastewater Plant

51 - Personnel 87,657.489,163.59367,047.00 367,047.00 279,389.52 76.12 %

52 - Contracted Services 7,186.000.0077,300.00 77,300.00 70,114.00 90.70 %

53 - Supplies & Materials 13,239.840.0066,000.00 66,000.00 52,760.16 79.94 %

54 - Utilities 23,335.440.00141,800.00 141,800.00 118,464.56 83.54 %

55 - Other Operating Costs 47,690.7517,352.39129,299.00 129,299.00 81,608.25 63.12 %

56 - Financing Obligations 240,245.000.00480,484.00 480,484.00 240,239.00 50.00 %

60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) 34,937.2924,015.56126,500.00 126,500.00 91,562.71 72.38 %

454,291.8050,531.541,388,430.00 1,388,430.00 934,138.20Department: 35 - Wastewater Plant Total: 67.28 %

503,446.6754,963.271,863,274.00 1,863,274.00 1,359,827.33Expense Total: 72.98 %

-52,067.098,299.84-261,674.00 -261,674.00 209,606.91Fund: 21 - WASTEWATER FUND Surplus (Deficit): 80.10 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 31 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

ActivityCategor…
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

Remaining

Fund: 26 - STEAMPLANT EVENT CENTER FUND

Revenue

Department: 00 - General

45 - Fees for Recreation & Event Services 48,266.957,392.88255,350.00 255,350.00 -207,083.05 81.10 %

49 - Miscellaneous Revenue 2,300.000.000.00 0.00 2,300.00 0.00 %

50,566.957,392.88255,350.00 255,350.00 -204,783.05Department: 00 - General Total: 80.20 %

50,566.957,392.88255,350.00 255,350.00 -204,783.05Revenue Total: 80.20 %

Expense

Department: 00 - General

50 - Direct Cost of Revenue 10,051.14288.0050,500.00 50,500.00 40,448.86 80.10 %

10,051.14288.0050,500.00 50,500.00 40,448.86Department: 00 - General Total: 80.10 %

Department: 40 - SteamPlant - Event Center

51 - Personnel 78,377.7510,402.64282,437.00 282,437.00 204,059.25 72.25 %

52 - Contracted Services 900.000.003,600.00 3,600.00 2,700.00 75.00 %

53 - Supplies & Materials 1,833.940.0012,700.00 12,700.00 10,866.06 85.56 %

54 - Utilities 6,228.470.0028,300.00 28,300.00 22,071.53 77.99 %

55 - Other Operating Costs 8,888.151,191.3936,350.00 36,350.00 27,461.85 75.55 %

59 - Budgetary Capital Expenditures ($500 - $4,999) 3,937.400.007,500.00 7,500.00 3,562.60 47.50 %

60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) 0.000.0054,400.00 54,400.00 54,400.00 100.00 %

100,165.7111,594.03425,287.00 425,287.00 325,121.29Department: 40 - SteamPlant - Event Center Total: 76.45 %

110,216.8511,882.03475,787.00 475,787.00 365,570.15Expense Total: 76.83 %

-59,649.90-4,489.15-220,437.00 -220,437.00 160,787.10Fund: 26 - STEAMPLANT EVENT CENTER FUND Surplus (Deficit): 72.94 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 32 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

ActivityCategor…
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

Remaining

Fund: 30 - CONSERVATION TRUST FUND

Revenue

Department: 00 - General

44 - Intergovernmental Revenue 12,604.050.0060,000.00 60,000.00 -47,395.95 78.99 %

49 - Miscellaneous Revenue 163.730.00500.00 500.00 -336.27 67.25 %

12,767.780.0060,500.00 60,500.00 -47,732.22Department: 00 - General Total: 78.90 %

12,767.780.0060,500.00 60,500.00 -47,732.22Revenue Total: 78.90 %

Expense

Department: 54 - Parks, Open Space & Trails

60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) 56.987.5050,000.00 50,000.00 49,943.02 99.89 %

56.987.5050,000.00 50,000.00 49,943.02Department: 54 - Parks, Open Space & Trails Total: 99.89 %

56.987.5050,000.00 50,000.00 49,943.02Expense Total: 99.89 %

12,710.80-7.5010,500.00 10,500.00 2,210.80Fund: 30 - CONSERVATION TRUST FUND Surplus (Deficit): -21.06 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 33 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

ActivityCategor…
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

Remaining

Fund: 31 - STREETS FUND

Revenue

Department: 00 - General

40 - Tax Revenue 357,300.590.002,860,825.00 2,860,825.00 -2,503,524.41 87.51 %

357,300.590.002,860,825.00 2,860,825.00 -2,503,524.41Department: 00 - General Total: 87.51 %

357,300.590.002,860,825.00 2,860,825.00 -2,503,524.41Revenue Total: 87.51 %

Expense

Department: 30 - Streets Infrastructure

60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) 83,082.410.003,215,000.00 3,215,000.00 3,131,917.59 97.42 %

83,082.410.003,215,000.00 3,215,000.00 3,131,917.59Department: 30 - Streets Infrastructure Total: 97.42 %

83,082.410.003,215,000.00 3,215,000.00 3,131,917.59Expense Total: 97.42 %

274,218.180.00-354,175.00 -354,175.00 628,393.18Fund: 31 - STREETS FUND Surplus (Deficit): 177.42 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 34 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

ActivityCategor…
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

Remaining

Fund: 32 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

Revenue

Department: 00 - General

40 - Tax Revenue 38,240.220.00306,444.00 306,444.00 -268,203.78 87.52 %

44 - Intergovernmental Revenue 0.000.00786,113.00 786,113.00 -786,113.00 100.00 %

48 - Capital Revenue 0.000.00185,575.00 185,575.00 -185,575.00 100.00 %

38,240.220.001,278,132.00 1,278,132.00 -1,239,891.78Department: 00 - General Total: 97.01 %

38,240.220.001,278,132.00 1,278,132.00 -1,239,891.78Revenue Total: 97.01 %

Expense

Department: 51 - Pool & Recreation

60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) 0.000.001,050,000.00 1,050,000.00 1,050,000.00 100.00 %

0.000.001,050,000.00 1,050,000.00 1,050,000.00Department: 51 - Pool & Recreation Total: 100.00 %

Department: 54 - Parks, Open Space & Trails

60 - Capital Purchases & Improvements ($5,000 +) 11,643.090.00889,788.00 954,788.00 943,144.91 98.78 %

11,643.090.00889,788.00 954,788.00 943,144.91Department: 54 - Parks, Open Space & Trails Total: 98.78 %

11,643.090.001,939,788.00 2,004,788.00 1,993,144.91Expense Total: 99.42 %

26,597.130.00-661,656.00 -726,656.00 753,253.13Fund: 32 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND Surplus (Deficit): 103.66 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 35 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

ActivityCategor…
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

Remaining

Fund: 33 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND

Revenue

Department: 00 - General

40 - Tax Revenue 13,760.940.00110,000.00 110,000.00 -96,239.06 87.49 %

13,760.940.00110,000.00 110,000.00 -96,239.06Department: 00 - General Total: 87.49 %

13,760.940.00110,000.00 110,000.00 -96,239.06Revenue Total: 87.49 %

Expense

Department: 16 - Community Development

52 - Contracted Services 0.000.005,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 100.00 %

55 - Other Operating Costs 2,000.000.004,750.00 4,750.00 2,750.00 57.89 %

2,000.000.009,750.00 9,750.00 7,750.00Department: 16 - Community Development Total: 79.49 %

2,000.000.009,750.00 9,750.00 7,750.00Expense Total: 79.49 %

11,760.940.00100,250.00 100,250.00 -88,489.06Fund: 33 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND Surplus (Deficit): 88.27 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 36 of 37

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

ActivityCategor…
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

Remaining

Fund: 34 - LODGING TAX FUND

Revenue

Department: 00 - General

40 - Tax Revenue 0.000.00235,000.00 235,000.00 -235,000.00 100.00 %

0.000.00235,000.00 235,000.00 -235,000.00Department: 00 - General Total: 100.00 %

0.000.00235,000.00 235,000.00 -235,000.00Revenue Total: 100.00 %

0.000.00235,000.00 235,000.00 -235,000.00Fund: 34 - LODGING TAX FUND Total: 100.00 %

Report Surplus (Deficit): -230,694.99 -965,717.06-4,780,671.00 -5,273,171.00 4,307,453.94 81.69 %



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2017 Period Ending: 04/30/2017

4/14/2017 6:26:51 AM Page 37 of 37

Fund Summary

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)Fund
Period

Activity
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget

10 - GENERAL FUND -892,832.63-200,238.75-2,558,450.00 -2,570,950.00 1,678,117.37

20 - WATER FUND -286,454.49-34,259.43-1,070,029.00 -1,485,029.00 1,198,574.51

21 - WASTEWATER FUND -52,067.098,299.84-261,674.00 -261,674.00 209,606.91

26 - STEAMPLANT EVENT CENTER FUND -59,649.90-4,489.15-220,437.00 -220,437.00 160,787.10

30 - CONSERVATION TRUST FUND 12,710.80-7.5010,500.00 10,500.00 2,210.80

31 - STREETS FUND 274,218.180.00-354,175.00 -354,175.00 628,393.18

32 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 26,597.130.00-661,656.00 -726,656.00 753,253.13

33 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND 11,760.940.00100,250.00 100,250.00 -88,489.06

34 - LODGING TAX FUND 0.000.00235,000.00 235,000.00 -235,000.00

Report Surplus (Deficit): -230,694.99 -965,717.06-4,780,671.00 -5,273,171.00 4,307,453.94



Sales Tax Trend Report
and Other General Fund Financial Highlights

Through February 2017

City Sales Tax Collections Seasonality - % of Full Year

Based on vendor reporting date 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 '16 vs. '15 '17 vs. '16

January 225,902$        241,375$        256,212$        284,842$        295,704$        331,448$        350,309$        343,874$        5.7% -1.8%

February 226,968          237,458          263,576          265,938          278,374          314,835          337,226          347,631          7.1% 3.1%

March 264,269          287,272          308,751          320,642          334,011          389,540          397,318          2.0%

April 234,460          255,869          281,908          282,046          314,939          339,040          376,977          11.2%

May 259,013          300,053          314,112          345,069          375,896          378,264          408,439          8.0%

June 362,260          350,946          399,280          416,414          422,145          478,252          517,900          8.3%

July 375,063          397,998          433,332          479,025          495,831          506,072          550,871          8.9%

August 350,636          391,738          382,105          408,462          440,899          509,564          567,094          11.3%

September 281,025          328,714          359,758          380,952          402,939          490,513          502,357          2.4%

October 252,248          283,245          296,262          337,046          349,717          384,043          402,167          4.7%

November 274,775          276,479          298,506          310,816          323,864          361,364          389,488          7.8%

December 310,297          327,816          358,520          373,482          408,007          436,420          461,592          5.8%

Total Amount 3,416,916$     3,678,962$     3,952,322$     4,204,733$     4,442,327$     4,919,355$     5,261,737$     691,505$        7.0%

Annual Increase (Decrease) (44,870)$         262,046$        273,360$        252,411$        237,594$        477,028$        342,383$        3,969$            

% Change -1.3% 7.7% 7.4% 6.4% 5.7% 10.7% 7.0% 0.6%

3% City Sales Tax Rate

Chaffee County Sales Tax 

(Salida's allocation)

January 76,982$          81,517$          81,305$          93,330$          93,452$          104,602$        113,981$        115,589$        9.0% 1.4%

February 79,454            80,664            85,158            85,096            89,295            98,201            106,373          117,205          8.3% 10.2%

March 96,147            94,390            97,619            103,018          108,758          128,636          129,149          0.4%

April 81,012            86,164            88,848            86,467            102,686          103,699          117,829          13.6%

May 93,431            111,445          104,974          114,730          116,805          122,636          129,804          5.8%

June 131,095          122,789          133,487          136,503          142,779          157,270          178,282          13.4%

July 143,556          142,640          147,832          152,147          159,465          174,639          189,535          8.5%

August 127,661          131,904          128,110          139,335          146,256          166,890          193,401          15.9%

September 107,193          115,554          121,425          123,639          139,676          162,424          170,832          5.2%

October 84,580            93,876            98,411            108,140          111,043          112,126          130,341          16.2%

November 97,377            86,000            92,847            96,334            96,110            119,365          121,753          2.0%

December 108,316          109,183          114,751          115,403          126,093          135,983          144,028          5.9%

Total Amount 1,226,804$     1,256,125$     1,294,766$     1,354,142$     1,432,420$     1,586,472$     1,725,309$     232,793$        8.8%

Annual Increase (Decrease) (5,796)$           23,525$          38,641$          59,376$          78,278$          154,051$        138,837$        12,440$          

% Change -0.5% 1.9% 3.1% 4.6% 5.8% 10.8% 8.8% 5.6%

City Tax Allocation:

Capital Improvements 797,280          858,424          922,209          981,104          1,036,543       1,147,850       1,227,739       38,240            79,889         (1,189,499)   

Capital Expenditures 205,015          220,738          237,139          252,284          266,540          295,161          315,704          n/a 20,543         

Economic Development 22,779            24,526            26,349            28,032            29,616            32,796            35,078            13,761            2,283           (21,317)        

Unrestricted General Fund 1,252,869       1,348,953       1,449,185       1,541,736       1,628,853       1,803,764       1,929,304       282,203          125,540       (1,647,101)   

Streets / Other Infrastructure 1,138,972       1,226,321       1,317,441       1,401,578       1,480,776       n/a n/a n/a

Streets - Capital Expenditure 1,229,839       1,315,434       357,301          85,596         (958,134)      

Streets - Maintain & Repair 409,946          438,478          n/a 28,532         

Comparison to Budget

Final Budget 4,461,200$     4,880,000$     5,158,600$     5,509,400$     5,781,000$     6,415,400$     6,490,000$     7,336,691$     846,691$     

Received 4,643,719       4,935,087       5,247,088       5,558,876       5,874,747       6,505,826       6,987,046       924,298          (6,062,748)   

Over (Under) 182,519$        55,087$          88,488$          49,476$          93,747$          90,426$          497,046$        

Budget Variance 4.1% 1.1% 1.7% 0.9% 1.6% 1.4% 7.7%

Taxable Sales in Salida 113,897,186$ 122,632,065$ 131,744,070$ 140,157,776$ 148,077,565$ 163,978,492$ 175,391,249$ 23,050,164$   

Annual Growth -1.3% 7.7% 7.4% 6.4% 5.7% 10.7% 7.0%

NOT FINAL

Total Revenues 6,558,190$     6,584,366$     7,573,659$     7,434,040$     7,553,028$     9,414,226$     9,287,803$     

Total  Expenditures ** 6,289,604       6,373,605       6,714,330       7,317,153       7,279,976       8,993,886       7,771,315       

Over (Under) 268,586$        210,761$        859,329$        116,887$        273,052$        420,340$        1,516,488$     

Sales Tax as a

percentage of total revenue 70.8% 75.0% 69.3% 74.8% 77.8% 69.1% 75.2%

excluding grant revenue 75.7% 77.1% 78.3% 75.4% 79.9% 77.5% 80.3%

Grant Revenue 421,924$        184,726$        871,321$        62,642$          200,965$        1,020,765$     590,739$        

Percentage of total revenue 6.4% 2.8% 11.5% 0.8% 2.7% 10.8% 6.4%

Cash Balance 1,795,017$     2,302,823$     2,588,134$     2,895,445$     3,450,073$     3,131,723$     4,872,092$     

Debt Balance 2,530,452$     1,782,823$     1,706,045$     1,600,585$     1,491,483$     1,378,614$     1,262,426$     

**  Includes cash transfers from the General Fund to the SteamPlant Event Center Fund and, in 2014 and 2015, also to the Water and Sewer Funds.

Other General Fund Financial Data:

1Sales Tax Trend By Month CURRENT, 4/17/2017, 8:02 AM


	CityCouncilAgenda20170418
	1. Council Acton Form-Consent Agenda Pg. 3
	CityCouncilMinutes20170418
	Salid Rotary
	Articipate

	2. CAF Whittington Amendment to Agrement 4-13-17 Pg. 34
	3. Council Acton Form-Short Term Rental Regulation Pg. 35
	Ordinance No. 07 Series 2017

	4. Council Acton Form-Short Term Licensing Pg. 42
	Ordinance No 2017-06 Repealing and Replacing Article VI, Chapter 6 of the Municipal Code

	5. Ordinance 2017-08 Panhandling_Final Pg. 46
	ACLU Letter

	6. Council Acton Form-Ground Lease Pg. 52
	Ord 2017-09 Ground lease Liebl
	Pesnell Hanger Lease
	Pesnell New Taxi lane Lease
	Scan1216

	7. CAF Reso 2017-23 tennis pickleball GOCO Pg. 70
	Reso 2017-23 Agreement with GOCO for Centennial Park tennis-pickleball courts
	GOCO_Grant_Agreement

	8. Request For Council Action Res. 2017-22 GARNA funding Request Pg. 90
	Resolution 2017-22 Appropriating Additional Sums of Money in the General fund for the 2017 Budget

	9. Additional Appropriation for Airport Pg. 92
	10. Council Acton Form-Snyder Annexation Pg. 102
	Ordinance No.  -Snyder Annexation
	Snyder annexation application packet
	1_CoverLetter
	2A_General-Development-Application-Form-signed
	2B_Authorization_Ltr_Powell
	2D_Ownership_Ltr
	3_Petition
	4_Narrative

	Snyder Annexation Plat
	PC Staff Report Snyder Annexation

	11. Council Acton Form-Snyder Annexation agreement Pg. 123
	12. Council Acton Form-Snyder Zoning Pg. 140
	Ordinance No.  -Snyder Zoning
	_01292017_MapAmendment_Package
	1_CoverLetter
	2A_General-Development-Application-Form-signed
	2B_Authorization_Ltr_Powell
	2C_Legal_Description
	2D_Ownership_Ltr
	3_MapAmendmentPackage
	PC Staff Report Snyder  Zoning


	PZMinutes20170327
	13. Council Acton Form-HRRMC Annexation Pg. 159
	HRRMC Annexation Application materials
	Hosp. Annexation Plat 2017
	HRRMC PC Annexa Staff Report

	Ordinance No.  -HRRMC  Annexation

	14. Council Acton Form- HRRMC Annexation agreement Pg. 173
	Ordinance 2017- HRRMC Annexation Agreement
	M. Wilbur email withdrawing PD modification

	15. Council Acton Form-Zoning Pg. 192
	Ordinance No.  HRRMC  Zoning
	PC Staff Report RE zoning

	Administrator Report



